
1 
 

 

Management Staff: 
Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 
Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Police Chief 
Greg McFadden, Unit Chief, CAL FIRE/ 
   Butte County Fire/Paradise Fire 
Gina Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer 
Marc Mattox, Public Works Director/ 
   Town Engineer 

Town Council: 
Greg Bolin, Mayor 
Jody Jones, Vice Mayor 
Steve “Woody” Culleton, Council Member 
Scott Lotter, Council Member 
John J. Rawlings, Council Member 
 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM – October 13, 2015 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to 

participate, please contact the Town Clerk's Department, at 872-6291 x101 or x102 at least 48 

hours in advance of the meeting. Hearing assistance devices for the hearing impaired are 

available from the Town Clerk. 

Town Council Meetings are held at the Paradise Town Hall located at 5555 Skyway, Paradise, 

California.  Members of the public may address the Town Council on any agenda item, including 

closed session. If you wish to address the Town Council on any matter on the Agenda, it is 

requested that you complete a "Request to Address Council" card and give it to the Town Clerk 

prior to the beginning of the Council Meeting.  The Mayor or Presiding Chair will introduce each 

agenda item, and following a report from staff, ask the Clerk to announce each speaker.  Agendas 

and request cards are located outside the entrance door to the Council Chamber. 

All writings or documents which are related to any item on an open session agenda and which are 

distributed to a majority of the Town Council within 72 hours of a Regular Meeting will be available 

for public inspection at the Town Hall in the Town Clerk Department located at 5555 Skyway, 

Room 3, at the time the subject writing or document is distributed to a majority of the subject 

body.  Regular business hours are Monday through Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  

Agendas and supporting information is posted on the Town’s website at 

www.townofparadise.com in compliance with California’s open meeting laws.  Click on the 

Agenda and Minutes button. 

1

http://www.townofparadise.com/


2 
 

1.     OPENING 

              a.      Call to Order 

              b.      Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America 

              c.      Invocation 

              d.      Roll Call 

              e.      Presentations and Proclamations: 

(1) Introduction of Police Canine - "Taz" by Officer Manuel Ayala. 

(2) Domestic Violence Awareness Month 

(3) Recognition of Kelly Wells for leadership on Measure C Citizen's 
Oversight Committee. 

(4) Presentation made to the City of Chico by Vice Mayor Jody Jones 
relating to Waste Water Disposal Options for the Town of Paradise. 

(5) TOP Access Demonstration by Public Works Director Marc Mattox 

TOP Access is an electronic program that automates requests from 
the public for public works services. 

2.     ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS - None. 

3.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

         One roll call vote will be taken for all items placed on the consent calendar. 

3a. p7 Approve the minutes of the September 8, 2015 Regular Town 
Council meeting.   

3b. p15 Approve September 2015 cash disbursements in the amount of 
$771,593.43. 

3c. p22 (1) Waive second reading of the entire Town Ordinance No. 557 
and approve reading by title only; and, (2)  Adopt Town Ordinance No. 
557, "An Ordinance Adding Chapter 15.14 within the Paradise Municipal 
Code Related to Expedited Permitting Procedure for Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Systems." 

3d. p26 Adopt Resolution 15-40, A Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of 
Grant Funding from the Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) AVOID the 8 Grant 
Funds for FY2015/2016 at an estimated amount of up to $60,000   

3e. p33 Approve recruitment for two temporary Street Maintenance 
Workers. 

3f. p34 Adopt Resolution 15-41, A Resolution Authorizing the Town 
Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding between the City 
of Chico, City of Oroville, City of Gridley and the Town of Paradise for AB-

2



3 
 

109 funds. Approval results in funding to offset the cost of the prison 
realignment legislation implemented by the passage of AB-109.  

3g. p41 Adopt Resolution No. 15-42, A Resolution Authorizing the 
Disposition of Records Pursuant to Government Code Section 34090.   

3h. p48 Adopt Resolution No. 15-43, A Resolution of the Town Council of 
the Town of Paradise Accepting the Work Performed under the Skyway 
Guardrail Emergency Repairs Contract No. 15-15.  (ROLL CALL VOTE)  
The emergency repair was authorized by the Town Council on September 
8th, 2015.   The work was executed by Santos Excavating.  Costs in the 
amount of $24,842 will be reimbursed by the insurance carrier of the 
motorist that caused the damage. 

3i. p50 Update on the Emergency Siding Repair Project for the Police 
Department facility.   No action requested, report for information update 
only.   The emergency repair was authorized by the Town Council on 
September 8, 2015.  A contract has been executed and work by Ginno 
Construction is in progress.  Scope of services is for a not to exceed 
amount of $37,847.00. 

4.     PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

There are no public hearings scheduled for tonight’s meeting.   

5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS - None 

6.     PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

This is the time for members of the audience who have completed a "Request to Address 

Council" card and given it to the Clerk to present items not on the Agenda. Comments should be 

limited to a maximum of three minutes duration. The Town Council is prohibited by State Law 

from taking action on any item presented if it is not listed on the Agenda. 

7.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

7a. p76 Consider appointing one of the designated alternates to fill a 
vacancy on the Measure C Oversight Committee due to a resignation of 
the committee chair; (ROLL CALL VOTE); or, provide an alternate 
direction to staff and schedule this matter for the November 10, 2015 
Council Meeting.   

7b. p77 Review the report on the 2014/15 estimated actual budget and the 
2015/16 operating and capital budget, and approve the recommended 
budget adjustments.  (ROLL CALL VOTE)  

7c. p118 Consider (1) Approving the proposed property exchange 
agreement relating to Town property on American Way; and, (2) Adopting 
Resolution No. 15-__, ”A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 
Paradise authorizing an exchange agreement between the Town of 

3



4 
 

Paradise and MC Horning Jr.”; and, (3) Authorizing the Town Manager to 
execute an agreement with L&L Surveying of Paradise, CA to perform Lot 
Line Adjustment and Record of Survey.  (ROLL CALL VOTE) 

7d. p130 Consider adopting Resolution No. 15-__, A Resolution Amending 
and Restating Conduct of Council Meetings.  Approval will change the 
agenda format and order of business on the agenda.  (ROLL CALL 
VOTE) 

7e. p148 Consider adopting a logo that coordinates with the Butte County 
branding theme.  (ROLL CALL VOTE) 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION (Council Initiatives) 

8a.     Council oral reports of their representation on Committees/Commissions. 

8b.     Discussion of future agenda items 

9.     STAFF/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION 

9a.     Town Manager oral reports 

9b.     Community Development Director oral reports 

10.   CLOSED SESSION 

10a. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(a), the Town Council will 
hold a closed session to meet with Town Attorney Dwight Moore and 
Town Manager Lauren Gill relating to existing litigation as follows:  

(1) Town of Paradise vs. Brandy L. Braun, Butte County Superior Court 
Case No. 164611. 

(2) Harold Funk vs. Town of Paradise, U.S. District Court, Eastern District 

of California, Case No. 2:09-cv-01000-MCE-KJM.   

11.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

  

4



5



 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION 

for Honorable Service  

to the Town of Paradise  

is hereby presented to: 

  

Kelly Wells, Chairperson 

To the Measure “C” Oversight Committee  

 

 

Date:  October 13, 2015  _________________________________________  

          Greg Bolin, Mayor  

6



1 
 

MINUTES 

PARADISE TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM – September 08, 2015 

1.     OPENING 

The September 8, 2015 Town Council meeting was called to order by Mayor Greg Bolin 

at 6:02 p.m. in the Town Council Chamber at 5555 Skyway, Paradise, California, who 

led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.  Council 

Member Steve “Woody” Culleton offered an invocation. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Steve Woody Culleton, Jody Jones, Scott Lotter, 

and Greg Bolin, Mayor.  

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  John J. Rawlings.  

STAFF PRESENT:  Town Clerk Joanna Gutierrez, Town Manager Lauren Gill, Town 
Attorney Dwight Moore, Finance Director Gina Will, Assistant Town Clerk Dina Volenski, 
Business and Housing Services Supervisor Kate Anderson, Community Development 
Director Craig Baker, Public Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox, Building 
Official Anthony Lindsey, Police Chief Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen and Battalion Chief  
Curtis Lawrie. 
 
             e.      Presentation: 

(1) Monica Nolan, Executive Director of the Paradise Chamber of 
Commerce and Steve Crowder, Owner of “A Stitch Above” 
embroidery services, thanked the many Town employees and 
Council Members who volunteered their services during the 2015 
Party in the Park event, and presented each volunteer with an “It’s 
Cooler Up Here” T-shirt, a joint recognition by the Paradise 
Chamber of Commerce and "A Stitch Above". 

2.     ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS – None. 

3.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Mayor Bolin called for comment cards on the Consent Calendar.  

 1.  Ward Habriel stated that he is speaking for six to eight people who think that 
there are too many expenditure items on the consent calendar and that too many 
expenditures are made outside of Butte County.   

 
 Town Manager Gill noted that many of the products and services necessary for 

the Town operation are very specialized and are not provided or available in our 
area. 

 

7



2 
 

 MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Jones, approved by unanimous roll call vote 
the consent calendar items 3a – 3j as presented; Rawlings absent and not 
voting.  

 
3a. Approved Minutes from the August 4, 2015 Special Joint Meeting with 

Paradise Irrigation District and the August 11, 2015 Regular Town Council 
Meeting. 

3b. Approved cash disbursements for August 2015 in the amount of 
$1,065,764.58. (310-10-30) 

3c. Accepted a $1,000 cash donation to the Paradise Fire Department. (395-50-

13) 

3d. Authorized the Town Manager to execute documents to purchase the 
Police Vehicle Emergency Equipment and Installation to Sutter Buttes 
Communications Inc, 445 Palora Avenue, Yuba City, California 95991 for 
a total amount of $41,398.30.  The vehicles will be financed through a five-
year lease purchase agreement approved by Council on August 11, 2015. 
(380-45-53 & 510-20-109) 

3e. Awarded Contract 15-12, Fire Engine Exhaust Removal Project, to Air 
Vacuum, Inc. of Dover, NH in the amount of their bid of $20,511.00 and 
authorized the Town Manager to execute the Agreement. (510-20-110 & 440-

65-22) 

3f. Approved an amended and restated professional services agreement with 
Lauren Gill for Town Manager services with an expiration date of June 30, 
2020. (510-20-55) 

3g. Acknowledged receipt of the 4th Quarter Investment Report for the Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2015. (360-30-006) 

3h. Approved reading ordinance by title only; and, introduced Ordinance No. 
557 adding Chapter 15.14 of the Town of Paradise Municipal Code 
relating to Expedited Permitting Procedure for Small Residential Rooftop 
Solar Systems. (540-16-126) 

3i. Authorized the Town Manager to enter into a one-year Partnership 
Investment Agreement with 3Core.  A partnership with 3Core is a 
requirement for applying to EDA and other grants which could provide 
funding for a sewer and other projects.  Fiscal impact for 2015/2016 is 
$3,500.  (110-30-28 & 510-20-111) 

3j. Approved Resolution No. 15-36, A Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Paradise Approving Government Crime Policies for the Purpose 
of Bonding Town Officers and Employees and Establishing Policy Limits. 
(170-30-006) 

 

 

8



3 
 

4.     PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

The Mayor referenced the Town Council adopted procedure for public hearings: 

5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5a. Following a report from Town Manager Lauren Gill, Mayor Bolin 
conducted a public hearing to receive comment on the Consolidated 
Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.  Mayor Bolin opened the 
hearing at 6:19 pm.  There were no speakers for or against the item and 
Mayor Bolin closed the hearing at 6:20 pm.   

 MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Culleton, authorized the Town 
Manager to submit the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation 
Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Program to the Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Roll call 
vote was unanimous; Rawlings was absent and not voting.  (710-10-81) 

6.     PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

1.  Tom Kelly discussed the Sierra Nevada Conservancy meeting that was held 
in Paradise and informed Council that the Fire Safe Council (FSC) took the 
attendees on a tour to demonstrate fuel clearances that were accomplished via 
the FSC management of over $5 million worth of grant funding, that the FSC has 
received a $21,000 grant for an evacuation trailer, discussed the benefits of 
being a FireWise community and invited the Town Council to the next Fire Safe 
Council meeting.   

 
2.  Carol Kirk, PHS High School, stated that because she has many of her high 
school students in the audience that she would like to clarify that the Council is 
an elected body and that she has a problem with the general nature of a 
statement made earlier by one person on behalf of other people, that she thinks 
the people should be at the meeting to speak for themselves, and if the people 
are not happy with the Council then they can vote them out of office. 

 
7.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

Following a report from Town Manager Gill and Casey Hatcher, Butte County 
representative, Mayor Bolin called for public comment on the proposed resolution 
of consent for the County to form a tourism business improvement district. 
 
1.  Tom Kelly spoke in favor of the resolution, stating that tourism is what brought 
him to Paradise fifty years ago.   

7a. MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Culleton, adopted Resolution No. 15-
37, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise Granting 
Consent to the County of Butte to Form the Butte County Tourism 

9



4 
 

Business Improvement District (BCTBID).  Roll call vote was unanimous; 
Rawlings was absent and not voting.  (1060-30-02) 

 
7b. MOTION by Jones, seconded by Lotter, awarded Contract 15-13, 

Pearson Rd Pavement Rehabilitation Project, to Franklin Construction of 
Chico, California, in the amount of their bid of $99,979.00; and, (2) 
Acknowledged Paradise Irrigation District’s (PID) Letter of Intent dated 
August 27, 2015 to reimburse the Town of Paradise for incurred pavement 
rehabilitation costs.    Roll call vote was unanimous; Rawlings was absent 
and not voting. (510-20-112) 

   
Following a report by Public Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox, Town 
Attorney Moore stated for the record that Mayor Greg Bolin has no conflict of 
interest relating to the Clark Road Safety Enhancements Project. 
 
7c. MOTION by Jones, seconded by Lotter, awarded Contract 14-05, Clark 

Road Safety Enhancements, to Franklin Construction of Chico, California 
in the amount of their bid of $441,441.00 and authorized the Town 
Manager to execute necessary documents.  Roll call vote was unanimous; 
Rawlings was absent and not voting.  (510-20-113 & 950-40-24) 

 
7d. MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Culleton, (1) Adopted Resolution No. 

15-38, “A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise 
Declaring an Emergency and Authorizing Repair or Replacement of the 
Paradise Police Department Building Exterior Siding Without Observance 
of Public Bidding Requirements”; and, (2) Authorized the Town Manager 
to execute agreements for a contractor and/or materials for the subject 
project. Roll call vote was unanimous; Rawlings was absent and not 
voting.  (510-20-115) 

 Council discussed the probability of the cost of this project exceeding the 
estimate and that it is likely that additional funding will be necessary. 

  
1. Ward Habriel suggested that cementitious siding be considered for this 

project.  

7e. MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Jones, (1) Adopted Resolution No. 15-
39, ”A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise Declaring 
an Emergency and Authorizing Repair or Replacement of the Guardrail on 
Skyway Without Observance of Public Bidding Requirements”; and, (2) 
Awarded Contract 15-15 Skyway Guardrail Repair to Santos Excavating in 
the amount of their bid of $24,842.00 and authorized the Town Manager 
and Town Attorney to execute the necessary documents.  Roll call vote 
was unanimous; Rawlings was absent and not voting. (510-20-114) 

 
 
 

 

10



5 
 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION (Council Initiatives) 

8a. Discuss responsibility and procedures for cleanup of roadways after traffic 
collisions.  (LOTTER) 

Council Member Lotter stated that he placed this matter on the agenda after 
observing excess glass left in the roadway at two separate locations after traffic 
accidents, and that it is his understanding that the tow companies that are called 
out to accidents on a rotating basis are responsible for the cleanup of the road 
way.   
 
Police Chief Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen stated that she has reviewed the 34-page 
agreement with the tow companies, explained that tow companies are contracted 
and certified by the California Highway Patrol (CHP), and that picking up glass 
after an accident is not one of the requirements of the contract.  Chief Tazzari-
Dineen stated that she has requested officers on scene of an accident to take 
extra steps to work with the tow companies after a traffic accident, and noted that 
many traffic accidents are not reported to the police department and, as such, 
officers not dispatched to the scene.  Council discussed with the Town Attorney 
the pros and cons of adopting an ordinance to compel clean up by tow 
companies after an accident; discussed the cost to public works for extra 
callouts; and took no action on the matter. 

8b. Consider approving a letter of support to Representative Doug LaMalfa for 
H.R. 2775 regarding Remote Transaction Parity Tax.  (550-30-001) 

Vice Mayor Jones stated that she requested that this item be put on the agenda 
as online retailers are obligated to collect the same sales tax as brick and mortar 
businesses and she would like to level the playing field as Paradise is missing 
out due to our location and lack of retail merchandisers. 

1.   Tom Kelly stated that people like to shop online and thinks everyone in the 
Town should be able to vote on whether or not sales tax is collected for online 
sales. 

Council concurred to approve a letter of support to Representative Doug LaMalfa 
for HR 2775 regarding Remote Transaction Parity Tax for all Council Members to 
sign. 

8c. Consider designating an additional alternate voting delegate to the Town's 
voting delegate regarding the League of California Cities 2015 annual 
conference.  (150-50-65) 

Council concurred to appoint Council Member Steve “Woody” Culleton as the 
Town’s voting delegate at the LCC 2015 annual conference in place of Council 
Member John J. Rawlings who is unable to attend. 

 

 

11



6 
 

 8d.     Council oral reports of their representation on Committees/Commissions. 

Vice Mayor Jones attended Butte County Association of Governments (BCAG) 
and Butte County Air Quality Management (BCAQMD) District board meetings; 
and, presented information at the September 1, 2015, Chico City Council 
meeting regarding the Town’s desire to include a pipeline to the Chico plant as a 
feasible wastewater disposal alternative for the purpose of applying for grant 
monies for an environmental study and that the Chico Council indicated that they 
might schedule this item on a future agenda for discussion.   

 
Council Member Culleton attended the September 1, 2015, City of Chico Council 
meeting; a reception at the Butte County Fairgrounds for the Executive Directors 
and informed that a Paradise girl was a runner up in the Miss Butte County 
contest. 

 
Council Member Lotter attended the September 1, 2015, City of Chico Council 
meeting and has heard many compliments on Vice Mayor Jones’ presentation; 
attended the Butte County Fair; sat in on an Emergency Operations Training in 
Paradise and provided feedback for improvements to the operation, informed 
Council there was a good turnout of volunteers and staff; attended the LAFCo 
board meeting; and the Gold Nugget Museum’s Days of Living History event. 

 
Mayor Bolin and Vice Mayor Jones attended a meeting with Northern Recycling 
and Waste Services, the Town’s franchised waste disposal service provider, to 
discuss the future with this waste disposal company.  
 

 8e.     Discussion of future agenda items  

Council concurred to schedule Vice Mayor Jones’ presentation that was shown at 

the September 1, 2015, Chico City Council for the next Paradise Town Council 

meeting. 

9.     STAFF/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION 

 9a.     Town Manager oral reports 

 Appointment to fill a vacancy on the Measure C Committee will be on the next 
Council agenda as the committee chair, Kelly Wells, has resigned as she is 
moving out of the jurisdictional area.  
 

 Since Council Member Rawlings is unable to attend the 2015 Annual League of 
California Cities Conference, Manager Gill plans to attend as a presenter at a 
breakout session to discuss how the Town used the League’s fiscal health 
diagnostic tool.  
 

  
 

12



7 
 

9b.     Community Development Director oral reports 

 

 Pheasant Ridge Commons was issued three Certificates of Completion for three 
buildings/six units 
 

 Dental Office behind the Holiday Market, a 6500 square foot building, was issued 
a permit for septic construction; a certificate of correction was issued for this 
facility relating to setbacks; a site plan relating to drainage will be turned in 
tomorrow 

 Lynn’s (Optimo) project for an expansion to include two drive-thrus, was 
approved by the Planning Commission in July and construction plans are in 
development 
 

 Code Enforcement action relating to a public nuisance property located at 
Nunneley and Sawmill has brought about a positive response and cleanup of the 
nine-acres by the property owners; demolition permits for the two houses on the 
property have been issued; eighteen vehicles have been removed  
 
Mayor Bolin adjourned the Council meeting at 7:51 p.m. to hold the Successor 
Agency Meeting and reconvened the Council meeting at 7:55 p.m. 

 
10.   CLOSED SESSION 

1.  Ward Habriel commented on the number of closed session items relating to 
litigation.   

 
 Attorney Moore noted that only one of the lawsuits was initiated by the Town. 
 

At 7:56 pm Mayor Bolin announced that the Town Council would hold closed 
sessions for the following matters:  
 
10a. Pursuant to Government code section 54956.9(a), the Town Council will 

hold a closed session to meet with Town Attorney Dwight Moore and 
Town Manager Lauren Gill relating to existing litigation as follows:  

 
(1)  Town of Paradise vs. Brandy L. Braun, Butte County Superior Court Case 

No. 164611.  

(2) Harold Funk vs. Town of Paradise, U.S. District Court, Eastern District of 
California, Case No. 2:09-cv-01000-MCE-KJM.   

(3) Richard Martin vs. Town of Paradise, U.S. District Court, Eastern District 
of California, Case No. 2:15-cv-00594-JAM-AC. 

(4) Denise Russell vs. County of Butte; Town of Paradise, U. S. District Court, 
Eastern District of California, Case No. 2:14-cv-00694-TLN-CMK. 

 
10b. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Town Council 

will hold a closed session to meet with Town Attorney Dwight Moore and 

13



8 
 

Town Manager Lauren Gill relating to significant exposure to litigation, one 
potential case, concerning allegation of Brown Act violation by M. 
Zuccolillo.  

 
Mayor Bolin reconvened the meeting at 9:45 p.m. 
 
Town Attorney Moore reported that the Town Council met with the Town Attorney 
and received information relating to pending litigation listed above and no action 
was taken; and, regarding one potential litigation item, determined no action was 
required. 

 
11.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Bolin adjourned the meeting at 9:47 p.m. 
 
Date approved: 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 Greg Bolin, Mayor 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date:  October 13, 2015 

AGENDA NO. 3(c) 
ORIGINATED BY: Anthony Lindsey, Building Official/Fire Marshal  
 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Town Ordinance No. 557    
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  Adopt a MOTION TO: 
 
 
1. Waive second reading of the entire Town Ordinance No. 557 and approve reading by title 
only (roll call vote); AND 
 
2.  Adopt Town Ordinance No. 557, "An Ordinance Adding Chapter 15.14 within the Paradise 
Municipal Code Related to Expedited Permitting Procedure for Small Residential Rooftop Solar 
Systems" 

 
BACKGROUND: On September 8, 2015, the Town Council introduced the above-noted Town 
ordinance for purposes of eventual adoption. The intent of the proposed ordinance is to comply 
with Section 65850.5(g)(1) of the California Government Code that requires every city, county, 
or city and county adopt an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting 
process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems. 
 
The Town currently expedites the review of such applications by reviewing and issuing 
applications for photovoltaic solar systems permits through its expedited photovoltaic solar 
system program.  The Town also expedites all photovoltaic solar inspection requests. The Town, 
then, already expedites the review of such applications.   
 
DISCUSSION: Town staff recommends that the Town Council waive the second reading of this 
entire ordinance; read it by title only; and formally adopt Town Ordinance No. 557 (copy 
attached). Once adopted, the provisions of this ordinance will be effective thirty days 
thereafter.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: A nominal cost for publication of the ordinance within the local newspaper 
and for codification will be borne by the Town of Paradise. 
 
Attachment 

 

22



TOWN OF PARADISE 
ORDINANCE NO. 557 

 
ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 15.14 TO THE PARADISE MUNICIPAL CODE 

RELATING TO EXPEDITED PERMITTING PROCEDURE FOR SMALL RESIDENTIAL 
ROOFTOP SOLAR SYSTEMS 

 
 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65850.5 provides that it is the policy of 
the state to promote and encourage the installation and use of solar energy systems by limiting 
obstacles to their use and by minimizing the permitting costs of such systems; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 15.14 is added to the Paradise Municipal Code to read in full as follows: 
  

Chapter 15.14 
 
 SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 
 
Sections: 
 
15.14.010 Purpose. 
15.14.020 Definitions. 
15.14.030 Review Process. 
 

       15.14.010  Purpose. 
 

A. California Government Code Section 65850.5 provides that every city, county, or city 
and county shall adopt an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting 
process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems. 
 

B. California Government Code Section 65850.5 provides that in developing an expedited 
permitting process, the city, county, or city and county shall develop a checklist of all 
requirements with which small rooftop solar energy systems shall comply to be eligible 
for expedited review.  The building official is hereby authorized and directed to develop 
such checklist.  
 

15.14.020  Definitions. 
 

A. “Small residential rooftop solar energy system” means all of the following: 
 

1. A solar energy system that is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating current 
nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts thermal. 

2. A solar energy system that conforms to all applicable state fire, structural, electrical, 
and other building codes as adopted or amended by the town and paragraph (iii) of 
subdivision (c) of Section 714 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may be 
amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time. 23



3. A solar energy system that is installed on a single or duplex family dwelling. 
4. A solar panel or module array that does not exceed the maximum legal building 

height as defined by the authority having jurisdiction. 
 

B. “Solar energy system” has the same meaning set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 801.5 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may be 
amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time. 

 
15.14.030  Review Process. 
 

A. The checklist shall be published on the Town’s internet web site.  An applicant may 
submit the permit application and associated documentation to the Town’s building 
division in person or mailed together with any required permit processing and 
inspection fees.   

 
B. Prior to submitting an application, the applicant shall: 

1. verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction through the use of standard 
engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the small 
residential rooftop solar energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, 
seismic, and dead and live loads associated with the installation and the 
maintenance thereof; and 

2. at the applicant’s cost, verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction using 
standard electrical inspection techniques that the existing electrical system including 
existing line, load, ground and bonding wiring as well as main panel and subpanel 
sizes are adequately sized, based on the existing electrical system’s current use, to 
carry all new photovoltaic electrical loads,  

 
C. For a small residential rooftop solar energy system eligible for expedited review, only 

one inspection shall be required, which shall be done in a timely manner.  If a small 
residential rooftop solar energy system fails inspection, a subsequent inspection is 
authorized; however the subsequent inspection need not conform to the requirements 
of this subsection. 

 
D. An application that satisfies the information requirements in the checklist, as 

determined by the building official, shall be deemed complete. Upon receipt of an 
incomplete application, the building official shall issue a written correction notice 
detailing all deficiencies in the application and any additional information required to be 
eligible for expedited permit issuance.  

 
E. Upon confirmation by the building official of the application and supporting 

documentation being complete and meeting the requirements of the checklist, the 
building official shall administratively approve the application and issue all required 
permits or authorizations. Such approval shall not include any necessary approval or 
permission by a local utility provider to connect the small residential rooftop energy 
system to the provider’s electricity grid. The applicant is responsible for obtaining such 
approval or permission from the local utility provider. 

 
SECTION 2. The Town Council finds and determines that adoption of this ordinance is 
exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 24



CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 (General Rule Exemption) because there is no possibility that 
such adoption and subsequent enactment will have a significant effect on the environment.  
 
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the date of its passage.  
Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days after its passage, this ordinance or a summary thereof 
shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated within the 
Town of Paradise along with the names of the members of the Town Council of Paradise voting 
for and against same. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise, County of Butte, State of 
California, on this 13th day of October, 2015 by the following vote: 
 
       AYES:      
 
      NOES:     
 
   ABSENT:    
 
 ABSTAIN:    
 
       
       __________________________________ 
                     Greg Bolin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney  
 

25



Residential Solar Photovoltaic (PV) System Plan 

Submittal Requirements 
1. Submit two (2) sets of plans (minimum 8.5”x11” & maximum 24”x36”) which are drawn to scale (or fully

dimensioned).  Please keep in mind all plans, notes and details shall be clear and legible.

2. Cover sheet with the following information: project address, owners name/address/phone number, name/address

and phone number of contractor and person preparing plans, clear scope of work, sheet index, legend of

symbols, abbreviations and notations used in the drawings.

3. Basic site plan showing the location of the structure, North arrow, equipment, disconnects, inverters and any

other related components of the PV system. (Cover sheet and site plan may be part of the same sheet if

complete and legible; common for small residential lots)

4. Array configuration indicating placement of equipment and modules on the roof including junction boxes and

other related electrical equipment.  Configuration shall also show required fire clearances per the 2013 CA Fire

and Residential Codes (see back of checklist for complete requirements).

5. Electrical single line diagram including:

 Amperage size and location of the main electrical panels and subpanels

 Grounding/bonding conductor sizes/types for structure (main ground, water bonding, gas bonding, etc)

 Equipment grounding conductor size, type and location for circuits and module/rack grounding

 Combiner/junction box locations

 AC/DC disconnect types, sizes and locations

 Conduit sizes/types from the array to the power source

 Inverter string sizing or micro inverter branch circuit details

 Conductor wiring types and sizes, system and solar panel

6. Required signage for panels, disconnects, conduits, junction boxes, etc.  Permanent labels with red background

and white lettering resistant to fading pursuant to CA Electrical Code Article 690.

7. Provide cut sheets for all PV equipment and mounting systems including but not limited to: PV modules, rack

mounting system with complete details, mounting brackets, grounding hardware, module fire rating and

inverters.

8. PV system mounting hardware shall meet minimum Town of Paradise Structural Design Criteria including

snow loading requirements depending on project location.  Minimum roof mount support spacing shall be as

follows unless separate design is submitted by CA licensed engineer:

 0-40 lb snow load: 4ft o.c. spacing

Ground Mount Solar Projects: 

1. Items 1-7 as shown above including a 3rd detailed site plan showing array size, setbacks to structures/property

lines, location of all existing structures on the site, location of new underground utilities, etc.

2. PV system mounting hardware and foundations shall meet minimum Town of Paradise Structural Design

Criteria including snow loading requirements depending on project location.  Foundations shall meet general

engineered practices and general engineered foundation/support tables and calculations may be used if the

calculations include the applicable snow loading.

See Back of Checklist for Amended Solar Requirements in the 2013 California Building Standard Codes 

Effective January 1, 2014 

TOWN OF PARADISE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
BUILDING DIVISION
5555 SKYWAY, PARADISE, CA  95969, (530 ) 872-6291 x123  F AX (530 ) 877-5059 
w ww.townofparadise.com

Onsite Sanitation Building Clearance is required for all ground mount solar applications.3.

26



Solar PV Requirements in the 2013 California Fire, Electrical & Residential Codes 

Wiring/Circuit Installations: 

1. Direct current (DC) conduit, enclosures, raceways, cable assemblies, junction boxes, combiner boxes and

disconnects shall be labeled per the following: 

 Labels shall be reflective, water resistant and can withstand the environment; lettering shall be a minimum

3/8” in height with white on red background.

 Labels shall state, “WARNING: PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER SOURCE”.

 Labels shall be placed at every service disconnect; also on every DC conduit, raceways, enclosures, etc at

10ft o.c. and within 1ft of turns, bends and penetrations.

2. Conduit, raceways and wiring systems shall be run as close as possible to ridges, hips, valleys, etc; they shall

also be installed in such a manner to limit trip hazards and maximize ventilation opportunities.  DC wiring in

enclosed spaces shall be installed in metallic conduit; conduit shall be run along the bottom of load bearing

members.

3. PV source and output circuits inside a building shall be routed along building structural members where the

members can be observed (accessible attics, etc). If circuits are embedded in areas (not accessible) that are not

covered by PV modules, those areas shall be clearly marked indicating their locations.

4. DC circuits ran inside a building 80 volts or greater shall be protected by a listed arc-fault circuit interrupter.

5. Where multiple inverters are installed and not grouped a clear location directory shall be provided at each AC &

DC disconnect location.

6. FMC ¾” or smaller, MC conduit 1” or smaller or exposed wiring installed across ceiling joists or floor joists

shall be protected by guard strips.

Access & Pathways: 

1. Residential structures shall be designed with a maximum PV array axis of 150ft x 150ft.

 Residential Hip Roof Layouts: Minimum 3ft clear walkway from eave to ridge on side of roof mounted

PV modules. 

 Residential with Single Ridge: Minimum of two (2) 3ft clear walkways from the eave to the ridge on

each roof slope. 

 Residential with Hips & Valleys: Modules installed no closer than 18” to the hip or valley when

modules are installed on each side of the hip/valley.

 All Residential Roofs: Modules shall not be installed within 3ft of the ridge for fire dept. ventilation.

2. Roof access shall be available that doesn’t require placement of ladders over windows, doors, etc and located at

strong points of the building construction that allow unobstructed access.

3. Commercial Access: A minimum 6ft wide clearance shall be provided around the parameter of the roof unless

the longest building axis does not exceed 250ft.

4. Commercial Roof Pathways: Structurally sound centerline pathways shall be provided a minimum of 4ft wide

and 4ft clear to skylights, hatches, standpipes, parapets and/or roof edges.

5. Commercial Smoke Ventilation Requirements:  Arrays shall be no greater than 150ftx150ft in size; a minimum

8ft clear space (see code for alt. clearance between arrays) shall be provided between arrays.

6. Ground Mount Arrays: A minimum 10ft clear “brush-free” area around the array shall be provided.

Fire Rating: 

1. Modules shall be tested, listed and identified with the fire classification based on the specific type of building

construction.  (See California Building Code (CBC) Table 1505.1 for specific classification requirements)

27



                                TOWN OF PARADISE 
COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY 

DATE:  October 13, 2015 
 

         AGENDA ITEM: 3(d) 
  
ORIGINATED BY:  Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Chief of Police     
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution 15-__, A Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Grant 

Funding from the Office of Traffic Safety (OTS)   AVOID the 8 Grant Funds 
for FY2015/2016 at an estimated amount of up to $60,000   

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt Resolution 15-__,  A Resolution Accepting the 
Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) AVOID the 8 Grant Funds for FY2014/2015 at an 
estimated amount of up to $60,000.   
 
BACKGROUND:  Since 2005, the Paradise Police Department has applied and 
received grant funds for local law enforcement agencies to use in enforcement 
operations, education, and equipment to deter drunk/impaired driving in Butte County.  
 
 
DISCUSSION:  The Paradise Police Department has once again applied and received 
grant funds from OTS for drunk/impaired driving enforcement and operations. Based on 
the attached OTS letter, The Town has been awarded up to $60,000. The funds are for 
Paradise Police Officers and allied agencies officers to work overtime. The grant also 
includes other associated costs. Exhibit A”, a grant award letter and grant agreement 
page 1 and 2 further describes the breakdown of how the grant funds shall be used.  
   

FINANCIAL IMPACT: This award aligns with the amounts included in the 2015/2016 
budget. Up to $26,521.00 may be used for Paradise Police Officer overtime; up to 
$2,000.00 may be used for travel expenses; up to $29,079.00 may be used for allied 
agencies overtime; and up to $2,400.00 may be used for other direct costs. 
 

28



TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. ___  

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT FUNDING 

FROM THE CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY (OTS) 

 

 

WHEREAS, Since 2005, the Paradise Police Department has applied and received 

grant funds for local law enforcement agencies to use in enforcement operations, education, and 

equipment to deter drunk/impaired driving in Butte County; and   

WHEREAS, the Paradise Police Department has been the administrator of the 

grant for operations involving all of Butte County’s law enforcement agencies; and 

   WHEREAS, the grant will continue to promote allied agencies to work together 

in Butte County to reduce alcohol related traffic offenses; and   

WHEREAS, The Paradise Police Department has once again applied for another 

year of grant funds and has received approval from OTS for funds for FY 15-16 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise as follows: 

Section 1. The Town Council does hereby authorize acceptance of Grant 

Agreement with the California Office of Traffic Safety in the amount of up to $60,000 for FY 

15/16 as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise this 

13
th

 day of October, 2015, by the following votes: 

            AYES:  

            NOES:    

        ABSENT:   

 

      ABSTAIN:                                                                ______________________________                                                                                                                                                                                                          

Greg Bolin, Mayor 

   

ATTEST:     DATE:_____________                                 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  

 

By                       _______________________________ 

    Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk                               Dwight Moore, Town Attorney 

29



30



31



32



 

1 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: October 13, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 3(e) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT:   Recruitment for Temporary Street Maintenance Workers 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. Approve a recruitment position for two temporary Street Maintenance Workers 
 

Background:  
 
The Town of Paradise Public Works Department Street Maintenance Division consists of five full 
time street maintenance workers overseen by the Public Works Manager. The Division also 
currently has one frozen/vacant street maintenance worker position. 
 
The primary duties of the Street Maintenance Division are the maintenance, repair and 
operation of all public infrastructure including roads, drainage, signs, markings, vegetation, 
weed abatement, trees, traffic signals, sidewalks, community park and Memorial Trailway.  
 
In the last 12 months, the Street Maintenance Division has been operating primarily with four 
street maintenance workers while receiving assistance from the Engineering Division 
Construction Inspector on an as needed basis. In the last several weeks, the Street 
Maintenance Division has been reduced to three workers. Both of these reductions are due to 
workplace injuries. With the Town’s expected capital projects and a predicted heavy rainfall 
season, the division is at a critical juncture for staffing and ability to perform daily tasks. 
 
Analysis:  
 
The Public Works Department Street Maintenance Division is in dire need of additional workers 
to perform daily tasks such as traffic control and drainage maintenance. Staff is proposing the 
recruitment of a temporary Public Works Street Maintenance Worker II on a limited basis. If 
approved, the Department is looking to recruit for the position immediately.  Based on the 
Town’s Personnel Rules, temporary employment cannot exceed six months or 1040 hours. 

 
Financial Impact:  
 
The Public Works Department is proposing two temporary Street Maintenance Workers for a 
maximum of 24 weeks. Depending on qualifications and experience of the candidate, the full 
cost of a temporary Street Maintenance Worker II with fewer benefits ranges from $716.40 to 
$913.60 per 40 hour week. The total cost to the Town for the temporary position, depending on 
term, could cost $21,926 per position. However, the majority of these costs are offset by the 
salary savings created by the two vacant full time positions. The actual budget impact should be 
minimal and will be reported when known.   

 

33



 
                           
      

TOWN OF PARADISE 
COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY 

DATE:  October 13, 2015 
 

 AGENDA ITEM: 3(f) 
  
ORIGINATED BY:  Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Chief of Police     
 

REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:   Adopt Resolution 15-____ Authorizing the Town Manager to enter into a     
                     Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Chico, City of Oroville,    

                   City of Gridley and the Town of Paradise for AB-109 funds.  
 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt Resolution 15- __, A Resolution Authorizing 
the Town Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Chico, City of Oroville, City of Gridley and Town of Paradise for AB-109 funds.   
 

BACKGROUND:  In 2011, Governor Brown signed Assembly Bill (AB) 109 to reduce 
overcrowding and reduce costs in California’s State prisons. In November 2012, 
California voters approved Proposition 30 which protected ongoing funding to counties for 
Realignment. Each county was directed to create a Community Corrections Partnership 
(CCP) to develop and recommend implementation of the realignment. Initial distributions 
of funds were disbursed to the County Sheriff’s Department and Butte County Probation 
Department. 
 

On January 17, 2012 the Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) provided 
funding to front line law enforcement intended to assist local police agencies in offsetting 
the impact of AB109. The initial funding for police departments was $24 million dollars. 
The funds were allocated to the county police chief level with one of the cities tasked to 
serve as the fiscal agent. The local police chiefs were designated as the governing body 
of this grant and therefore distribution of the funds and all decisions regarding the intent 
for the use of the funds are approved by this committee. This funding is guaranteed for 
three fiscal years.  
 

The FY 2012/2013 AB-109 Grant Funds for Butte County was $210,127, of which 
Paradise Police Department received $52,930 for equipment, overtime and for a police 
officer’s salary. 
 

The FY 2013/2014 AB-109 Grant Funds for Butte County was $240,771, of which 
Paradise Police Department received $59,000 for overtime and for a police officer’s 
salary. 
 

The FY 2014/15 AB-109 Grant Funds for Butte County was $350,212, of which Paradise 
Police Department received $85,250 for mutual aid responses, training and a police 
officer’s salary. 
 

On August 7, 2015, The BSCC sent out notices to the local fiscal agents, in this case, the 
City of Chico, and advised that the Budget Act of 2015, allocated funds for Butte County 
in the amount of $175,106; half of the allocation given in FY 2014/15. Of those funds, 

 

34



Paradise Police Department will receive $ 43,250 for mutual aid responses, training, and 
a police officer’s salary.  
 

Additionally, the letter made reference to Provision 2 of item 5227-102-0001 of the 
Budget Act of 2015 noting a requirement to obtain funding. The requirement states:  
 

“The funds appropriated in this item shall be made available for city law 
enforcement agencies who agree to provide data on the number of use-of-
force incidents that result in hospitalization or death.”  
 

The document explains that hospitalization data should include only admissions to a 
hospital for injuries sustained as a direct result of a use of force.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Since 2012, the chiefs from all four Butte County police departments 
have been meeting regarding the AB-109 grant funds for the County. The Committee 
researched and reviewed the guidelines and restrictions associated with the funds, 
which states the funds should be used: 
 

 Regionally 
 In collaboration with other police department to address crime impacts in 

their communities 
 In partnership or collaboration with county probation 
 Employing best and promising practices 
 Focusing on serious, violent crimes and habitually non-compliant 

offenders 
 Supported by crime and data analysis for greatest impact and to provide 

evaluative information to support demonstration of outcomes 
 

Additionally, the Committee was tasked to select one city as the fiscal agent for the 
funds. The City of Chico was designated as the fiscal agent. 
 

The committee met, discussed, and voted on how best to distribute the AB-109 funds. 
“Exhibit A”, an MOU regarding the FY 15/16 AB 109 Grant describes the breakdown of 
the disbursements per agency. 
 

The Paradise Police Department will receive funds for the following purpose: 
 

$2,500 Crisis Intervention Training (CIT): 
 

Crisis Intervention Training has been offered by Butte County College for the last few 
years. All Butte County Law Enforcement agencies have attempted to send as many 
officers and dispatchers to the course as possible; however, many, including the 
Paradise Police Department, have experienced staffing and budget cuts that affected 
the participation in this very valuable training. The Chief’s Committee met and agreed 
that this training is very beneficial to officers, CSOs, and dispatchers in dealing with 
persons that are experiencing a behavioral health issue/crisis and therefore committed 
funds per agency for this specific training. 
 

This expenditure of AB-109 funds is directly in line with the grant’s guidelines of working 
in partnership or collaboration with other police departments to address crime and focus 
on serious and violent offenders. 
 
 35



$5,000 Mutual Aid Response (overtime or regular time): 
 

The Paradise Police Department participates in many mutual aid responses within the 
County. These responses vary but may include assisting with a request for extra patrol 
during a special event that may include the potential for criminal activity, warrant, and 
gang operations, assisting in a critical incident such as an officer involved shooting 
response or other like incidents. Participation in these events/incidents is sometimes 
limited by staffing or budget. The Chief’s Committee met and discussed the immense 
value of having all of Butte County agencies participate more fully and therefore it was 
decided that each agency receive $5,000 for regular time or overtime costs in exchange 
for more participation. 
 

This expenditure of AB-109 funds is in line with the set guidelines of working in 
partnership or collaboration with other police departments to address crime and focus 
on serious and violent offenders. 
 

$35,750 for a police officer position:  
 

The first disbursement of AB-109 funds were approved at the August 13, 2013 Council 
meeting of which $40,250 was set aside for a future hire of a new police officer. On 
November 12, 2013, Council approved the second disbursement of which $ 54,000 was 
set aside for a future hire of a new police officer.  On January 2015, Council approved 
the third disbursement of which $77,750 was set aside for a future hire of a new police 
officer for a total of $172,000 to be used for a police officer position. 
 

On September 17, 2015, the Chief’s Committee met and agreed through an MOU to 
dedicate $35,750 of this disbursement to each agency for a police officer’s salary 
and/or to mitigate impacts of AB109.  
 

If accepted by Council, this disbursement of funds dedicated to hire a new police officer 
will increase the total to $207,000. This combined amount exceeds the salary of an 
officer for 2 ½ years, to include the hiring costs of background and equipment and step 
increases ($192,000 salary and approximately $4,000 background and equipment for a 
total of $196,000 for the 2 ½ years). If a police officer was hired using the AB-109 funds 
on or about July 2016, the funds would pay that officer’s salary and benefits through at 
least December 2018. 
 

At this time, it is expected that the State will extend the AB-109 funding; however, the 
funding amounts are unknown. If the State continues to provide the funding at 
approximately the same amount as this disbursement, the AB-109 funds will pay for an 
officer’s salary at least through July 2019. If the State chooses to discontinue the 
funding, and if the Town’s financial situation allows, the position can then be paid for 
through the general fund. If neither AB-109 funds nor the general fund can sustain the 
position, the officer may fill a vacancy created by 2 retirements expected in 2018.  
 

This expenditure of AB-109 funds is directly in line with the grant’s guidelines of 
addressing crime impacts by increasing the number of police officers on the street, thus 
having the ability for more pro-active police work.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: This represents a supplemental budget appropriation of $43,250 
for Fiscal Year 15/16. 

36



TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__  

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHICO, 

CITY OF OROVILLE, CITY OF GRIDLEY AND THE TOWN OF PARADISE 

FOR AB-109 FUNDS 

 

 

WHEREAS, the State of California has allocated grant funds intended to assist 

local police agencies in offsetting the impacts of Assembly Bill (AB)109 (Public Safety 

Realignment) and has allocated those funds for each county and dispersed them to the City of 

Chico as the selected fiscal agent for the funds; and 

  WHEREAS, the grant designates Police Chiefs as the committee with sole 

authority to allocate funds; and  

  WHEREAS, the Police Chiefs within Butte County have met and agreed on an 

appropriate distribution and use of those funds between and by their jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise will receive up to $43,250 for specific police 

department operations and training. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise as follows: 

Section 1. The Town Council hereby authorizes the Town Manager to 

execute the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Chico, the City of Oroville, the 

City of Gridley and the Town of Paradise relating to AB 109 Funds as set forth in the attached 

Exhibit A. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise this 

13th of October, 2015, by the following votes: 

            AYES:  

            NOES:    

        ABSENT:   

 

      ABSTAIN:                                                                ______________________________                                                                                                                                                              

Greg Bolin, Mayor 

   

ATTEST:     DATE:_____________                                 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  

 

By                       _______________________________ 

    Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk                               Dwight Moore, Town Attorney 

37



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CHICO, CALIFORNIA, CITY OF OROVILLE, CITY OF  

GRIDLEY, AND TOWN OF PARADISE, CALIFORNIA 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2015/16 AB109 GRANT 

 

WHEREAS, the State of California has allocated grant funds intended to assist local police 

agencies in offsetting the impacts of AB 109 and has allocated those funds by County and 

dispersed them to certain police departments who are intended to be the fiscal agent for such 

funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Chico has received the amount of $175,106 from the State of California, 

as the fiscal agent for the funds to be used by the City of Chico, City of Oroville, City of Gridley, 

and Town of Paradise; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Chiefs for those cities have met and agreed on an appropriate 

distribution and use of those funds between and by those jurisdictions, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Chiefs for those cities have agreed to provide the required data related 

to specific use of force incidents as outlined in the Board of State and Community Corrections 

(BCSS) August 7, 2015, notice of funding letter sent to the designated fiscal agent and which 

references Provision 2 of Item 5227-102-0001 of the Budget Act of 2015: 

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Chico, City of Oroville, City of Gridley and Town of Paradise 

agree as follows: 

 

The City of Chico shall disburse the funds as follows to be used for the purposes set forth 

below: 

 

City of Chico: 

Crisis Intervention Training (CIT):      $  2,500 

Mutual Aid          $  5,000 

Mitigate Impacts of AB109       $35,750 

Administrative Costs (for serving as fiscal agent)    $  2,106 

 

             

       Total:   $45,356 

 

 

City of Oroville: 

Crisis Intervention Training (CIT):      $  2,500 

Mutual Aid          $  5,000 

Mitigate Impacts of AB109       $35,750 

  

             

       Total:   $43,250 
38



 

 

 

 

City of Gridley: 

Crisis Intervention Training (CIT):      $  2,500 

Mutual Aid          $  5,000 

Mitigate Impacts of AB109       $35,750 

  

       Total:   $43,250 

 

 

Town of Paradise: 

Crisis Intervention Training (CIT):      $  2,500 

Mutual Aid          $  5,000 

Operations (Police Officer Salary)      $35,750 

 

       Total:   $43,250 

 

 

Each of these Parties hereto assumes all responsibility for using the funds distributed to it in 

compliance with all regulations and conditions which may apply to the use of the grant funds. 

The funds shall be used for enforcement activities that are related to the impacts of AB 109 or 

which focus on serious, violent crimes and habitually non-compliant offenders. The funds may 

be used in collaboration with other police departments or in collaboration with county probation. 

Each of the Parties hereto shall keep accurate records of how the funds are spent and shall 

retain those records for a minimum of five years. 

 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and all so executed shall be binding upon all 

Parties hereto, notwithstanding that the signatures of the Parties designated representatives do 

not appear on the same page. 

 

CITY OF CHICO      CITY OF OROVILLE 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

By:  Mark Orme      By:  Randy Murphy 

City Manager       City Manager 

 

 

Approved as to form:      Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

Vince Ewing, City Attorney     Scott E. Huber, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF GRIDLEY      TOWN OF PARADISE 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

By:  Dean Price      By:  Lauren M. Gill 

City Administrator      Town Manager 

 

 

Approved as to form:      Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

Tony Galyean, City Attorney     Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

40



 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: October 13, 2015 
Agenda Item: 3g 

 
Originated by: 
 

Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 

Reviewed by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 

Subject: 
 

Authorize destruction of certain records maintained in the Town 
Clerk’s Department in keeping with the principles of an effective 
and cost efficient Records Management Program 
 

 
Council Action Requested:  Adopt Resolution No. 15-__, A Resolution of the Town 
Council of the Town of Paradise Authorizing Destruction of Certain Town Records 
Maintained in the Town Clerk Department Pursuant to Government Code Section 
34090.  The records listed in Exhibit B have been retained for the required number of 
years and are eligible for destruction.   
 
Alternatives: Consider making a determination that certain records listed for 
destruction have value to the agency, and direct that the Town Clerk continue to 
maintain all, or some, of the records listed in Exhibit B.  
 
Background:  The Town Clerk Department has had an established records 
management program since the early 1980’s.  Based upon recommendations from the 
California Secretary of State, all records have been appraised, inventoried and 
scheduled with a retention/destruction code pursuant to Town of Paradise Resolution 
No. 04-27 (originally adopted in 1993 by Resolution No. 93-30).  This resolution 
provides the Town with legal authority to dispose of certain records that are no longer of 
value to the agency.   
 
Discussion:  Once records have fulfilled their administrative, fiscal, or legal function 
they should be disposed of as soon as possible in order to maintain an efficient, 
effective and economical management of information.  Resolution No. 04-27 provides 
the legal authority, with the Town Attorney’s consent,  to dispose of records that no 
longer serve the administrative, legal and/or fiscal purposes for which they were 
created. 
 
Conclusion:  Since the records are eligible for destruction and no longer have value to 
the Town, it is appropriate that the Council adopt the proposed resolution.   
 

Fiscal Impact:  None.   
 
 
 

41



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 

Consent to Destruction of Certain Records, Documents 

and Papers of the Town of Paradise  

 

 

 Pursuant to the Government Code Section 34090, I hereby consent to the 

destruction of those certain records, documents and papers of the Town of Paradise 

listed on Exhibit “B”. 

 

DATED:  October 5, 2015  
 
 
      ________________________________  

  DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney 
 

42



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 
AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN TOWN RECORDS 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 34090 

 

EXHIBIT “B”  
LIST OF FILES ELIGIBLE FOR DESTRUCTION 

 
 

INDEX NO. DESCRIPTION 2-yr retention 

 ADMINISTRATION  

150-50-64 LCC GENERAL File 2009 - 2012  

   

160-10-39 Town Council Agenda Packets 2009 & 2010 4 yr 

   

 FINANCIAL/FISCAL  

380-60-20 Proposals for Banking Services 2009 (Audit + 4)  

 Proposal for Auditing Services   

   

 HEALTH, SAFETY & WELFARE  

 Police Services  

480-35-01 Uniforms, Equipment, Vehicles 04/25/11 

480-70-01 Statistics/Reports  04/03/2012 

490-60-02 Traffic Control – Neal/Schmale/Skyway 06/09/1999 

   

 LEGAL/LEGISLATIVE  

520-10-07 General File #2 Proctor – Citations – Notices in Admirality 06/16/2008 

   

530-10-43 Election Administration 2010 E + 2 

530-10-44 Election Administration 2012 E + 2 

   

540-20-14 FPPC Political Reform Act 1974 – General   

540-20-30 FPPC Conflict of Interest Resolutions   

   

 BOX 2013-00002   

540-50-21 Public Hearing Notices 2009 – 2010  BOX 2013-00002  

540-50-22 Public Hearing Notices 2011 – 2012  BOX 2013-00002  

   

580-10-25 Proof of Posting Agendas 12/31/2011 

580-10-26 Proof of Posting Agendas 12/31/2012 

   

 LEGAL-Franchises  

535-20-02 Comcast – Correspondence  06/29/2006 

535-30-04 PG&E – Correspondence   

   

570-30-07 PUC   

   

 TOWN COUNCIL  

580-10-19 Council Initiatives   

580-10-20 Corrections to Minutes       02/08/2011 

   

580-40-07 Town Council Meetings – Video Taping VHS (Obsolete)  

580-40-36 Meeting Regulations  07/28/2009 

580-45-04 Minutes -  General (Duplicate Record) 03/25/2008 

   

43



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 
AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN TOWN RECORDS 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 34090 

 
INDEX NO. DESCRIPTION 2-yr retention 

 PERSONNEL  

610-10-06 Salary Pay Plans 2003 through 2005 – Duplicate Resolutions 12/13/2005 

610-10-07 Salary Pay Plans 2006 through 2007  

610-10-08 Salary Pay Plan 2008  

610-10-09 Classifications and Salaries – General File  04/28/2009 

610-10-12 Classifications and Salaries – General File 11/08/2005 

610-10-13 Classifications and Salaries – General File 11/13/2007 

610-10-14 Classifications and Salaries – General File 01/11/2010 

610-10-16 Salary Pay Plan 2009 10/17/1995 

   

610-25-01 Fair Labor Standards Act   

   

610-30-02 Prevailing Wage 07/24/2002 

   

630-05-03 Employee Christmas Parties Pre 2000 

630-05-01 Employee Services 02/17/1998 

630-05-02 Employee Newsletters 10/08/1996 

   

630-10-05 PERS – Mgt/Mid Mgt/Conf 03/11/2003 

630-10-01 ICMA Deferred Compensation Plan  Res No 06-16 duplicate 

630-10-03 Employee Services - Newsletters & Correspondence 12/31/2012 

630-20-14 Employee Services – Health Programs  10/02/2008 

630-20-15 Employee Services – Service Pin Information  03/31/1997 

630-20-18 Alice Smith & Bill Wells Awards 11/03/2003 

630-20-20 Employee Recognition 2006-2011  

630-20-21 Employee Recognitions Fire Dept 2009  

   

640-10-03 Meyers/Milias/Brown Act   

640-10-04 Firemen’s Association – Correspondence 02/14/2006 

640-10-05 Fire Mid-Management – Correspondence 03/28/2006 

640-10-15 Association of Retired Employees 01/25/2007 

640-40-01 Correspondence 11/12/2008 

640-20-02 Grievances – General Res no 98-30 duplicate 

   

 PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

710-05-03 CDD Administration – Conferences/Seminars 03/10/1997 

710-05-07 CDBG Newsletter 04/31/2002 

710-20-01 California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) – General  03/07/2008 

   

710-80-07 Downtown Design Review Board (CL +2)  (BOX 2013-00002) 12/31/2021 

   

730-20-01 Housing:  Mobile Home Rent Control - Correspondence   

730-20-02 HCD Mobile Service for Mobile Homes   

730-20-04 Housing Administration – General   

   

740-10-10 Administration – Fee Waivers for Youth Facilities 10/13/2004 

740-10-12 DIF Appeals  02/28/2006 

740-30-01 Building Inspections – Correspondence 11/18/2008 

740-30-11 Building Inspections – UBC 02/08/2011 

740-30-12 ISO-Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule BCEGS 04/14/2003 

44



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 
AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN TOWN RECORDS 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 34090 

 
INDEX NO. DESCRIPTION 2-yr retention 

740-50-01 Sign Committee 05/23/2007 

750-50-02 Sign Permits General File #1 06/26/2006 

740-60-04 Trees General File #1 02/07/2012 

740-60-05 Tree Permit Review Committee File #1 06/06/2008 

740-60-07 Tree Permits Issued 01/20/2010 

740-60-08 Tree Permit Review Committee File #2 02/21/2008 

740-60-09 Tree Permits Appealed 09/22/2007 

740-60-10 Tree Advisory Committee – General File – Ord No 538 Duplicate Info 

740-60-11 Tree Advisory Committee 2008 Appointments  

740-60-12 Tree Advisory Committee 2010 Appointments  

740-60-20 Landmark Tree Designations Res 11-40 Duplicate 

   

750-10-12 Land Use Control Administration – General File #2  12/31/2004 

750-30-01 Grading – General File   

750-35-01 Land Use Control – Growth mgt & Control  05/02/1991 

750-40-33 Parcels Maps- General 2009-2012 02/09/2012 

750-60-03 Site Plans -  General – Ord No 444 Duplicate Info 

750-65-28 Use Permits – Oak Knoll  Duplicate Info 

750-65-29 Use Permits – Skate Park 05/10/2007 

   

 SUBDIVISIONS; PROPOSED/APPROVED – Duplicate information in CDD  

750-70-01 Subdivisions Regulations – Ord No 489 Duplicate 

750-75-03 Subdivisions – General Correspondence  Duplicate 

750-75-36 Blackberry Knoll   

750-75-60 Nielsen Estates SD-07-5  

750-75-40 Falling Rock SD-99-001  

750-75-41 Redbud Estates SD-03-03  

750-75-42 Windsong Estates SD-03-02  

750-75-43 Sierra Preservation Partners – Edgewood  09/28/2004 

750-75-44 Blackberry Knolls 04/06/2005 

750-75-45  Valley Vista SD-05-03  

750-75-46 Clear Creek Estates SD-05-04  

750-75-47 Acorn Ridge Estates Unit 6 PM-06-5  

750-75-48 Lewis Ranch Estates SD-07-02  

750-75-49 Skyway Meadows SD-04-01  

750-75-57 Mountain Terrace SD-07-1  

750-75-58 Skyway Land Project – SD-08-02 Condominium  

750-75-59 Merritt Ridge 02/24/2010 

   

750-80-03 Variances 02/27/2007 

750-85-03 Land use & Zoning – General 1995-2005  

750-85-04 Development Agreement Applications Res 02-02 Duplicate 

   

 LAND USE AMENDMENTS & REZONES – Duplicate Info Ord No 

750-85-05 Barkley GR 06-01; GA 07-03 462 

 Brandi & Wyman GR 04-5 441 

 Cummings/Sprague GR 05-07 450 

 Deromedi GR 05-5 447 

 Feather River Hospital Rezone 506 

 Fraternal Order of Eagles GR 07-01 470 

45



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 
AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN TOWN RECORDS 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 34090 

 
INDEX NO. DESCRIPTION 2-yr retention 

 Galli Rezone GR 05-5 447 

 Ghio RZ 07-02 478 

 Grand Sierra Lodge PL 12-00075 526 

 Poliquin Rezone RZ 07-4 492 

 Rinehart Rezone 506 

 Risley Rezone RZ 06-04 498 

 Sonntag Rezone GR 08-6 491 

 Thomson Rezone RZ 05-6 456 

 Town of Paradise Rezone GR 04-2 465 

 Town of Paradise Rezone Text Amendments  476 

 Town of Paradise Rezone GR 08-7 491 

 Town of Paradise Text Amendments  495 

 Town of Paradise Text Amendments 503 

 Town of Paradise Text Amendments 505 

 Town of Paradise Text Amendments 534 

 Town of Paradise Text Amendments 543 

 Town Paradise Prezone 511 

 Turman Rezone GR 05-6 448 

 Vance Rezone RZ 06-2 463 

 Worthington Rezone 504 

 Wyman Rezone GR 05-1 441 

   

 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS  

750-90-02 Pine Haven Apartments   

   

 PLANNING  

760-05-01 General File #1  

760-05-02 Planning Process Proposed Reforms 1997  

760-05-05 General File #2  

   

 ANNEXATIONS  

760-10-01 General File #1 through 2001  

760-10-05 General File #2 through 2011  

   

 RECREATION & CULTURAL  

1020-10-01 Symphony 01/23/1986 

1020-10-02 Performing Arts Center 03/07/2011 

1020-20-01 Butte County Art Commission 01/17/1984 

1020-20-02 Arts Council 05/17/1983 

   

1040-20-01 Historic Preservation – Tree City & Res 04-57   

1040-60-01 Arbor Day Publications  1999 

   

1050-10-04 Paradise Recreation & Parks District 2001 through 2006  

1050-10-05 CA Department of Parks & Recreation  08/22/2005 

1050-10-06 Paradise Recreation & Parks District 2007 -2011  

1050-20-01 Gateway Park Project at Neal/Skyway 11/25/2002 

1050-30-01 Paradise Community Park General File #1 03/24/2009 

1050-30-02 Annual Christmas Tree Lighting 10/09/2012 

   

46



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 
AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN TOWN RECORDS 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 34090 

 
INDEX NO. DESCRIPTION 2-yr retention 

1060-20-04 Gold Nugget Days – Correspondence 05/17/2010 

1060-20-05 Johnny Appleseed Days 09/18/1990 

1060-20-08 Special Events – General File #1 02/27/2001 

1060-20-01 Theatre on the Ridge 03/21/1980 

1060-20-12 Farmers Markets & Street Fair Insurance Certificate 06/25/2007 

1060-20-13 Special Events General File #2 05/12/2009 

1060-30-03 Tourism – Lake Oroville 11/13/2006 

1060-40-01 Proposition 40 – Grant period 07/01/2000 through 06/30/2008  

1060-40-02 Resolution relating to Prop 40 – Pass Through to PRPD  

   

1070-10-02 Sister City Pairing Project 2006  

   

1080-10-01 Youth Activities 09/11/2000 

1080-10-02 Boys and Girls Club 06/23/2009 

1080-20-01 Paradise Youth Council General File 2004- 2006  

1080-20-02 Paradise Youth Council General File 2007- 2008  

1080-20-03 Paradise Youth Council General File 2009- 2010  

1080-20-20 Paradise Youth Council By-laws & Resolutions  

1080-20-30 PYC Quarterly Reports  

1080-20-40 PYC Handbook  

1080-20-45 PYC Rosters   

1080-20-50 PYC Agendas 2005-2006  

1080-20-51 PYC Agendas 2007-2008  

1080-20-60 PYC Recaps of Meetings 2005- 2006  

1080-20-61 PYC Recaps of Meetings 2007- 2008  

   

 SPECIAL DISTRICTS  

1110-30-01 Streets – General 03/02/1993 

1120-10-01 Cemetery District 06/28/2001 

1120-10-02 Cemetery District General File #2 10/13/2009 

1150-05-01 Butte County Superintendent of Schools Newsletter 06/02/2008 

1150-10-01 Butte County Office of Education 12/26/2007 

1150-15-01 Butte Community College Correspondence 12/21/2001 

1150-20-01 Paradishe High Scool 06/09/2009 

1150-20-04 St. Thomas More 10/24/2000 

1150-20-05 PUSD General File #2 02/09/2010 

1150-30-01 CSU Chico 09/21/1983 

   

1160-10-02 PID Administration File #2 02/23/2010 

1160-10-06 Water Conservation 02/01/2007 

1160-10-0 PID “POW” Protect Our Watershed 11/12/1998 

1160-10-10 PID Water Main Replacement Skyway/Wagstaff Res No 08-03 04/22/2008 

1160-40-03 CRWQCB – CA Regional Water Quality Control Board 12/22/2009 

1160-50-01 Lime Saddle Community Services District 09/17/1998 

1160-60-01 Del Oro Water, Company 12/10/2002 

   

 PARADISE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

1310-10-06 Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statements 02/25/2003 

1330-10-02 5-Year Implementation Plans Obsolete 

 

47



 

 

 

1 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: October 13, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 3(h) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT:   Skyway Guardrail Emergency Repairs 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. Adopt Resolution No. 15-__, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise 
accepting the subject project. 

 
Background:  
 
On August 15, 2015, a vehicle collided with a Town of Paradise guardrail located on the north 
side of Skyway, about 0.2 miles south of Pine Haven Drive. This collision resulted in substantial 
damage to the guardrail.  
 
The purpose of the guardrail is to protect life, health and/or property in the event of a roadway 
departure collision. Following the collision on August 15, 2015, the damaged portion of the 
guard rail and end-treatment has been rendered unsalvageable and requires immediate 
replacement.  
 
The subject guard rail replacement was declared an emergency by Town Council on September 
8, 2015. This mitigation would ensure in the event of a second collision in the same location that 
damages and injuries are minimized to the extent practicable.  
 
Council awarded Contract 15-15 to Santos Excavating, Inc. in the amount of their bid 
$24,842.00. This contract called the replacement of 60 feet of metal beam guardrail, including 
the guardrail end treatment and required temporary traffic control.  
 
Analysis:  
 
Following contract award, Santos Excavating immediately ordered necessary materials and 
started work on September 14. All work was completed by September 15. The replaced guard 
rail was inspected and approved by the manufacturer on September 21.  
 
Staff recommends Council adopt a resolution accepting the project work as complete, closing 
the emergency remediation process. 
 
Financial Impact:  
 
The Town of Paradise has received notification from the insurance carrier of the motorist who 
caused the guard rail damage that all project costs will be reimbursed in the amount of 
$24,842.00 to the Town of Paradise. This recovery was expedited through the Town’s insurance 
carrier, York Risk Services Group, subrogating on the Town’s behalf.  

 

48



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

PARADISE ACCEPTING THE WORK PERFORMED UNDER THE 
SKYWAY GUARDRAIL EMERGENCY REPAIRS  

(CONTRACT NO. 15-15). 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 8, 2015, the Town Council of the Town of Paradise 
formally declared an emergency necessitating repairs to a guardrail located 0.2 miles 
south of Pine Haven Drive on Skyway; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise has heretofore contracted with Santos 
Excavating for certain work performed under that certain project known as the Skyway 
Guardrail Emergency Repairs, being Contract No. 15-15; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said work of improvements, as called for by the contract between 
the Town of Paradise and Santos Excavating, referable to said project was substantially 
completed on September 15, 2015 to the satisfaction of the Town; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Town Council 
of the Town of Paradise that it hereby accepts the work performed on those certain 
improvements, the subject of a contract between the Town of Paradise and Santos 
Excavating, known and referred to as the Skyway Guardrail Emergency Repairs. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Paradise Town Council of the Town of 
Paradise, County of Butte, State of California on this 13th day of October 2015, by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 

ABSENT: 
   

ATTEST: 
 
      By________________________________ 
              Greg Bolin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
 

49



 

 

 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: October 13, 2015 

Agenda No. 3(i) 
 

ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT:   Paradise Police Department Emergency Siding Repairs 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. No action requested, report for information update only. 
 
Background:  
 
The Paradise Police Department, located at 5595 Black Olive Drive has been needing repairs to 
the exterior siding for many years. Indigenous woodpeckers have progressively damaged and 
penetrated the siding causing potential for dry rot, mold, leaks and further damage. In previous 
years, due to budget shortfalls, repairs and mitigation had been deferred. 
 
In the 2015/2016 Operating Budget, the Measure C Committee recommended and Council 
approved an appropriation of $21,000 for repairs to the Police Department exterior siding. 
 
Following approval of fund allocation, the construction of the Police Department Siding Repairs 
was scheduled for Spring 2016. However, a recent inspection of the current conditions revealed 
the south and west exterior building walls may not last through another wet season, let alone a 
predicted heavy rainfall year.  
 
On September 8, 2015, Town Council declared an emergency to rehabilitate the southern and 
western exterior portions of the Paradise Police Department. This declaration is critical to avoid 
a catastrophic loss or further exacerbation of the current conditions. Using this action, staff 
could forgo the formal competitive bidding process which can take an additional 30 days. With 
this declaration, Council authorized the Town Manager to execute agreements necessary to 
complete the rehabilitation efforts.  
 
Analysis:  
 
Following the emergency declaration on September 8, staff coordinated with multiple 
contractors. Specifically, the Town received bids from Barron Plastering, Modern Building, 
ProFrame Construction, and Ginno Construction. The quotation provided by Ginno Construction 
was determined to be by far the most cost effective and appropriate solution for the Paradise 
Police Department.  
 
Contract No. 15-17, Paradise Police Department Siding Project was fully executed on 
September 28, 2015 between the Town of Paradise and Ginno Construction. The agreement is 
included as Exhibit A of this staff report. The not to exceed amount for the scope of services is 
$37,847.00. 
 
Schedule of work was a critical concern for this project. Ginno Construction and staff agreed 
upon a schedule which would address the most immediate building hazards by October 10 with 
final completion by December 1.  

 

50



 

 

 

 

On September 29 and 30, Ginno construction mobilized and remediated the most urgent 
portions of the Paradise Police Department siding. This work included removal of degraded 
siding and evaluation of underlying building conditions. Fortunately, it was discovered that the 
building is in good shape with no major issues such as dry rot or mold under the siding. Plywood 
was reinstalled to maintain the building shear.  
 
Crews are expected back in mid-November to complete the remaining scope of work which 
includes additional siding removal and replacement, installation of a weather vapor barrier, 
complete siding overlay with HardieBacker Cement Board, and final painting.  
 
Financial Impact:  
 
Contract costs for Ginno Construction are $37,847.00. Staff recommends an allocation of 
$6,000 for construction contingency funds for the remainder of the project for a total cost of 
$43,847.00. Measure C funds are currently budgeted in the amount of $21,000. Staff will be 
requesting the Measure C Oversight Committee consider fully funding the project at the next 
Committee Meeting on October 27. 

51



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

52



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

53



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

54



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

55



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

56



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

57



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

58



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

59



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

60



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

61



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

62



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

63



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

64



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

65



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

66



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

67



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

68



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

69



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

70



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

71



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

72



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

73



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

74



Exhibit A - Contract No. 15-17

75



1 

 

    TOWN OF PARADISE 
DRAFT Council Agenda Summary 

October 13, 2015 
 

Agenda No. 7(a) 
ORIGINATED BY: Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager  
                                                 
SUBJECT:                 Vacancy on the Measure C Oversight Committee  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:   Consider appointing one of the three alternates to fill the 
vacancy on the Measure C Oversight Committee created by the resignation of Kelly Wells.  
 
Discussion:  Due to the resignation of Kelly Wells from the Measure C Oversight Committee, 
the Town Council is being asked to select one of the three alternates to be appointed to serve 
as a permanent standing member of the committee.   
 
According to Town Council Resolution No. 15-04, the adopted by-laws for the Measure C 
Oversight Committee, vacancies are to be filled as follows: 
 

Section 8. Vacancies. 
 
When a seat of the Measure C-Citizen Oversight Committee becomes vacant, Town staff will 
inform the Town Council and schedule appointment to the vacancy at a regular or special 
meeting.  Such appointments are to take place within 60 days of the creation of the vacancy. 
 
The three appointed alternates are: 
 

 Linda Dye 

 Stacy Poliquin 

 Sharon Simonton 
 
Linda Dye and Sharon Simonton have attended all of the committee meetings to date.   
 
Fiscal Impact Analysis:  None 

76



1 

 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: October 13, 2015 
Agenda Item: 7(b) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager  
Gina S. Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer 

  
Subject: 
 

2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital 
Budget Status Update 

 
Council Action Requested: 
 
Review the report presented and approve the following budget adjustments; or,  

Alternatives: 
 
Refer the matter back to staff for further development and consideration. 

Background: 
 
The 2014/15 general ledger recently closed and final transactions were posted in 
September 2015. General fund transactions are recorded on a modified accrual basis, if 
a revenue or expenditure was measurable or committed as of June 30, 2015, it is 
recorded for that fiscal year even if the cash transaction doesn’t occur until the next 
fiscal year. Independent auditors are now in the process of auditing the Town’s 2014/15 
transactions. In 2014/15 the Town received some one-time monies that have helped 
rebuild reserves, but that cannot be counted on to sustain ongoing operating expenses. 
 
Led by Town Council, Town management and staff have sacrificed and worked 
tirelessly to right the Town’s financial ship. After six years of depleted reserves, delayed 
asset replacement and deferred maintenance, the community responded by passing a 
six year 0.50% transaction and use tax (Measure C) which took effect April 1, 2015. A 
conservative $850,000 for the first year was included in the 2015/16 budget. The 
appropriate use of those monies was vetted through the Community Oversight 
Committee and approved by the Town Council and includes among others, replacement 
of three police cars, purchase of a new fire engine, and investment toward a street 
revitalization project. The 2015/16 operating and capital budget was adopted June 29, 
2015.     
 
Each month staff has analyzed financial transactions recorded to date and additional 
information received to identify the potential impact to the 2015/16 budget.  At least 
quarterly, but more often if needed, a report will be brought forward to Town Council 
updating them on the status of the budget and recommending appropriate budget 
adjustments.  
 
 
 

77



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

2 
 

Discussion: 

 
Fund 1010 – General Fund 
 
Staff ran and analyzed a General Fund Budget Performance Report to date for the 
2014/15 fiscal year and 2015/16 budget in order to review trends or significant swings in 
revenues and expenses. A copy of this report is attached for review. The following 
information was derived from this analysis and is summarized below: 
 
Revenues 
 

 2014/15 
Adopted 

Budget 

2014/15 
Estimated 

Actual 

2014/15 Final 
(Pre-audited) 

2015/16 
Adopted 

Budget 

Measure C $0 $200,000 $291,666 $850,000 

Non Department  9,788,221 10,144,986 10,229,215 10,292,784 

Finance 2,100 11,729 13,454 20,100 

Police 79,780 74,629 125,505 73,221 

Fire 29,657 85,042 182,925 83,465 

Planning 50,340 47,634 50,325 56,479 

Waste Management 46,926 50,620 60,640 50,373 

Engineering 37,000 41,177 42,263 39,500 

Community Park 2,500 2,580 2,670 2,500 

Totals $10,036,524 $10,658,397 $10,998,663 $11,468,422 

 
 Measure C: The 0.50% transaction and use tax approved by the voters in 

November 2014, took effect April 1, 2015. The Town conservatively estimated 
$200,000 in revenues for the first quarter of its implementation. Staff is happy to 
report that final reporting was received in September 2015 and the Town realized 
$291,666 for the April – June 2015 quarter. Analysis of several years of sales tax 
data shows, that from highest to lowest, following is the order of quarterly sales 
tax receipts: 

 
 October – December 
 January - March 
 April - June 
 July - September 
 

With this understanding and applying the equivalent amount to each quarter, the 
Town should receive over $1.1 million for 2015/16. However, with so little history 
available on actual Measure C receipts and to remain conservative, staff 
recommends reducing this estimate by 10% to $998,429. Thus, staff 
recommends a budget adjustment of $148,429 for 2015/16.  
 
 

78



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

3 
 

 Property Taxes: At the end of July 2015, the final property tax receipts came in 
for the 2014/15 fiscal year. Overall property taxes are about $16,085 more than 
budgeted. A total of $4.51 million was received which is 3.94% more than 
2013/14. As approximately 25% of Town properties were devalued under 
Proposition 8 rules, the Town has a few more years to receive growth higher than 
2% on secured property taxes. In addition, the housing market has improved and 
supplemental property taxes are increasing. The only area of property tax 
decrease is the unsecured rolls which show a 2.4% decrease. As a result of 
these final receipts and a study of these trends, staff recommends the following 
adjustments to the 2015/16 budget: 

 Increase secured property taxes $9,176 
 Decrease unsecured property taxes $9,841 
 Increase supplemental property taxes $7,121 

    
 Motor Vehicle in Lieu (MVIL): 2014/15 MVIL finalized with $235,697 additional 

monies than originally expected for a total of $2.29 million. In 2014/15 the State 
audited the County calculations back to 2008/09 and found some formula 
calculation errors with these additional monies owed to the Town.  Most of this 
then is one-time monies that aren’t expected to continue. What is expected to 
continue, as well as the anticipated annual growth has already been factored into 
the 2015/16 budget for a total of $2.20 million; therefore, a budget adjustment is 
not recommended.  

 
 Sales Tax: With the final sales tax receipts for 2014/15 posted, sales tax receipts 

increased 2.7% for the fiscal year; a total of $1.8 million received. However, sales 
tax receipts on an adjusted basis using HDL’s data shows 0% growth for the 
year. A 4th quarter to 4th quarter comparison reflects a 4% decrease in sales tax 
receipts mainly due to reduced gasoline prices. In light of the latest receipts, staff 
will carefully monitor receipts for the first quarter of 2015/16 but currently makes 
no recommendation for an adjustment.   
 

 Franchise Fees: 2014/15 franchise fees grew 2.3% compared to the prior year 
and about $13,784 more than originally budgeted for a total of $855,689. Based 
on final quarter receipts, staff recommends increasing the 2015/16 budget by 
$4,577, to $870,256, a 1.7% estimated growth.  
 

 Transient Occupancy Taxes (TOT): With the final quarter receipts posted for 
2014/15, TOT shows growth of 7.2% and a total of $198,618 collected. However, 
one hotel has one quarter of additional interest charges for failure to file the 
quarterly return timely which skews the overall percentage growth. After studying 
the final collections and trends, staff has no recommended budget adjustment for 
2015/16. 
 

 State Mandated Claims Reimbursements: With the improved State economy, the 
State released almost $87,000 worth of outstanding mandated claim 
reimbursements at the very end of June 2015. $41,863 toward administrative 
service claims and $45,123 toward police claims. Unfortunately, none toward 

79



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

4 
 

animal control service claims. The Town is still owed $218,810 according to the 
most recent report acquired from the State Controller’s Office. In addition, in 
August and September 2015, the State released $20,754 in interest payments on 
these outstanding claims. Staff hasn’t been notified of any other pending 
releases and already budgeted for some of the monies received, so to remain 
conservative, staff recommends increasing the 2015/16 budget only by 
amounts exceeding the amounts budgeted or $5,707.    
 

 CalPERS Medicare Retiree Drug Subsidy: Since 2007/08 the Town has received 
about a $24,000 a year refund from CalPERS from a retiree drug subsidy. The 
refund is usually released at the very end of the fiscal year, so when it was not 
received for 2014/15, staff contacted CalPERS and found out that the savings is 
now built into the annual premium. As the Town will no longer receive the refund, 
staff recommends decreasing the 2015/16 budget by $24,000.  
 

 Miscellaneous General Revenue: The Town received two unusual miscellaneous 
revenues in 2014/15. First the Town received $12,646 from Office Depot for the 
settlement of a class action lawsuit. Also, a $21,956 reimbursement was received 
for fees related to the Carousel Motel receivership for which the related additional 
expenditures are accounted for on the expenditure side.  
 

 Fire Equipment Rental: The 2014/15 fire season was especially demanding again 
for the State of California. When possible the Town lent resources to the State 
which resulted in rental income. A little over $174,000 in rental income was 
received in 2014/15. This was significantly more than the annual average; a 
recent history of which is shown below: 
 

 2014/15  $174,163 
 2013/14    $24,601 
 2012/13    $94,085 
 2011/12      $5,609 
 2010/11             $0 

 
$75,000 has been budgeted for 2015/16 of which, $13,552 has been received to 
date. 
 

To summarize, the Town received $962,139 more in 2014/15 income than it originally 
budgeted. However, $291,666 is from the passage of Measure C and $456,299 is from 
various one time sources. Thus only 22% of these receipts were from the additional 
growth of normal operating revenue sources. These additional receipts were very 
helpful in rebuilding some spendable reserves, but not for funding and sustaining long 
term operations. 
 
 
 
 
 

80



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

5 
 

Expenses: 
 

 2014/15 
Adopted 

Budget 

2014/15 
Estimated 

Actual 

2014/15 Final 
(Pre-audited) 

2015/16 
Adopted 

Budget 

Measure C $0 $10,392 $8,392 $831,251 

Non Department 938,434 928,753 929,836 967,726 

Administration 1,701,335 1,726,950 1,755,969 1,545,301 

Police 3,743,663 3,628,740 3,586,350 4,084,261 

Fire 3,449,039 3,472,225 3,463,198 3,639,083 

Community Develop. 168,565 151,565 164,317 159,329 

Public Works 35,488 44,262 38,174 220,479 

Totals $10,036,524 $9,962,887 $9,946,236 $11,447,430 
 

Measure C: 
 

Real, validated numbers are solidifying related to Measure C budgeted expenses for 
2015/16 as many of the bid processes and financing have been completed. A Measure 
C Citizen’s Oversight Committee quarterly meeting has been scheduled for October 27, 
2015, where staff will update the committee and seek recommendations for possible 
adjustments. In the meantime, following is an update for Town Council’s benefit. 
 

 Administrative Fees: The State Board of Equalization has been netting out their 
administrative fees from the receipt remittance. The estimate revenues discussed 
above includes the administrative fee; therefore, staff will recommend removing 
the separate line item budget of $8,500 for fees. 

   
 Police Department: 

 Sergeant Detective – The budget assumed this position would be filled as 
of September 1st, but the process has taken longer than expected and is 
now scheduled to be filled October 19th. As a result, this position will cost 
$97,814 instead of $128,778 during 2015/16.  

 

 Three Police Cars – The bids for the new police vehicles and equipment 
came in at $125,597 as compared to the expected $150,000. This means 
that the lease purchase payments are also less. Assuming the Town uses 
$100,000 a year for six years and purchases another three cars a year for 
four more years, the Town may end up with left over funding to either 
purchase another car or some other equipment at the end of the six years. 

 

 Officer and Car Body Cameras & Hardware – The Town is purchasing 35 
video cameras, 25 car kits, 2 download and charging stations and 
appropriate hardware to support the equipment. Most will be purchased 
through lease purchase and some through outright purchase. The total 
cost was expected at $40,000; the actual cost will be $36,306. The 
budgeted expenditure for 2015/16 was $16,584; the actual expenditure 
will be $14,034. 

81



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

6 
 

 LiveScan Machine - $12,000 has been budgeted for replacement. Staff is 
still researching options. It appears at this time that there is a potential for 
savings. 

 

 Building Siding – An emergency was declared by Town Council in 
September 2015 in order to expedite the repairs needed to prepare the 
building for a wet winter. Bids have come in higher than anticipated and 
the most economical option (with contingencies) will exceed the approved 
$21,000 budget by about $24,000. 

 

 Officer Training – Of the $15,000 budgeted for officer training, $9,252.64 
has already been encumbered to date. The department is eager to refresh 
their skills in a variety of disciplines to prepare them for situations they can 
encounter while protecting the community.  

 

 K-9 Program – To date, $2,546 of the $10,000 budgeted on program 
expenses has been spent. The department has recently acquired a new 
dog and ongoing training and maintenance is needed, so all of these 
funds will be used. 

 
 Animal Control: 

 Animal Control Officer – The Town anticipated having a 36 hour Animal 
Control Officer in place at the beginning of the fiscal year and budgeted 
$35,000 of Measure C in support of these added hours. There is a 
candidate in the final stages of the hiring process and is expected to start 
mid October 2015. As such, the Town will have some savings and use 
about $24,792 instead. 

 

 New Officer Training – Once the new officer has started, it is still expected 
that $3,000 will be used for training. 

 

 Pressure Washer/Sanitation Unit - Further research of units that will last 
and appropriately clean the shelter will cost about $5,000 instead of the 
$3,000 budgeted. This includes setup and training. 

 
 Fire Department: 

 CAL FIRE Contract Maintenance - $3,066,490 has been budgeted for the 
CAL FIRE personnel contract. Of this, $150,000 will be paid from Measure 
C funds and the rest from normal general fund revenues. This is still less 
than the contracted amount and will require that CAL FIRE come up with 
$96,884 in savings. $150,000 is 4.89% of total budgeted for personnel, so 
that percentage will be used in allocating the costs when invoices are 
received from CAL FIRE. The first invoice for the fiscal year is not 
expected until the end of October 2015. 
 

 

82



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

7 
 

 Exhaust Evacuation System – The bid process is complete and the 
exhaust system is being installed. The final cost is $20,511 slightly more 
than the $20,500 budgeted. 

 

 4 Self Contained Breathing Apparatus - $25,000 is still planned to be used 
on 4 SCBA’s. 

 

 Type 1 Fire Engine – In August 2015, the Town Council approved the 
purchase of a Pierce Enforcer Pumper Fire Engine. The engine is being 
constructed and will be delivered to the Town in April or May 2016. The 
final cost is $487,550 as compared to the expected cost of $400,000. The 
annual lease purchase payment for six years is $86,632 as compared to 
the $75,000 budgeted for 2015/16. 

 
 Public Works: 

 Pearson Road Improvements – It is expected that $200,000 will be used 
to leverage grant funds for road and drainage improvements between 
Pentz and Clark sometime this fiscal year. 

 
Measure C Updated 

 
 2015/16 Adopted 

Budget 
2015/16 

Estimated Actual 
Difference 

Police Department    
Sergeant Detective $128,778 $97,814 ($30,964) 
Police Cars 100,000 100,000 0 
Body Cameras 16,584 14,034 (2,550) 
LiveScan Machine 12,000 12,000 0 
Station Siding 21,000 45,000 24,000 
Officer Training 15,000 15,000 0 
K-9 Program 10,000 10,000 0 

 $303,362 $293,848 ($9,514) 
Animal Control    
Increased Officer Hours $35,000 $24,792 ($10,208) 
Officer Training 3,000 3,000 0 
Pressure Washer 3,000 5,000 2,000 

 $41,000 $32,792 ($8,208) 
Fire Department    
CAL FIRE Contract $150,000 $150,000 0 
Exhaust System 20,500 20,511 11 
4 SCBAs 25,000 25,000 0 
Fire Engine 75,000 86,632 11,632 

 $270,500 $282,143 $11,643 
Public Works    
Road Improvements $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 

    

83



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

8 
 

Subtotal $814,862 $808,783 ($6,079) 
    
BOE Fees $8,500 0 ($8,500) 
Unassigned Reserve $26,638 $189,646 $163,008 

Totals $850,000 $998,429 $148,429 
 
Administration: 
 

 Legal: In 2014/15 the Town spent an additional $19,828 in legal expenses in 
order to facilitate a receivership of the Carousel Motel. However, as indicated 
above, these expenses were fully reimbursed. 

 
 Fleet Management: As should be expected of an aged fleet, repairs of fire 

engines, police cars and public works vehicles added up for the 2014/15 fiscal 
year. Also, an unexpected retirement caused a three month vacancy which was 
cured in August 2015. Public Works, Police and Fire staff went above and 
beyond by working together to keep the fleet operating during the mechanic 
vacancy. An additional $9,500 worth of repairs had to be outsourced in order to 
keep the fleet moving. Overall, with the salary savings, accrual payouts and 
additional outside repairs, the division ended up spending about $10,293 more 
than expected. 
 

Police Department 
 

 Police Operations: The Police Department continues to struggle with filling open 
and budgeted positions within police operations. For a short time, at the end of 
last fiscal year, all positions were filled; however, the division is back up to three 
vacancies. A replacement is needed from a retirement, the AB 109 position is 
vacant, and a vacancy was created to promote an officer to the Measure C 
funded Detective Sergeant position. Currently, there is a trainee in background, 
but few other qualified applications have been received. Competition for trainees 
across the State is so high, that the local police academy is expecting their next 
class of trainees to be fully sponsored by local agencies. The Town is hoping to 
sponsor at least three trainees in the next academy. The cost of a full 
sponsorship is about $15,000. Staff will approach the Measure C Oversight 
Committee about possible funding, but there is also salary savings that can be 
considered. Overall, police operations ended the 2014/15 fiscal year $24,423 
less than expected and that is after spending $16,198 more in overtime. Staff will 
prepare a complete personnel budget overview for the 2015/16 budget for the 
mid-year review. 

   
 Public Safety Communications:  As of the end of the 2014/15 fiscal year, all the 

division’s budgeted positions were and remain filled. Strong management of the 
overtime budget and division’s operating expenses resulted in overall division 
budget savings of $16,303.  
 
 

84



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

9 
 

 
Fire Department 
 
Overall, the fire department achieved unexpected savings of $14,941 in 2014/15. 
$2,151 on the fire administrative budget, $7,306 on retiree premium costs and $5,684 
less in equipment purchased. On the personnel contract, CAL FIRE met the Town’s 
budgeted request to shave $200,000 off of personnel costs for 2014/15. As a reminder, 
$150,000 of the personnel contact will be funded by Measure C in 2015/16. 
 
Community Development – Planning 
 
Somehow, during the budget process for 2015/16, staff budgeted personnel costs 
related to Planning, but neglected to budget operating expenses for 2014/15 and 
2015/16. As a result, compared to estimated actual at the time of budget, it looks like 
the division exceeded the 2014/15 budget by $12,486. Compared to the original 
adopted budget; however, the division actually spent less than budget. Staff 
recommends adding $9,211 to the 2015/16 budget to cover the cost of Planning 
operating expenses including $6,531 for Accela software maintenance.    
 
Public Works – Engineering 
 
The public works engineering budgeted concluded 2014/15, $5,528 less than expected. 
It was expected that additional expenditures for staff time related to encroachment 
permits would be recorded, but less was actually required. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Overall in 2014/15 the Town accumulated $90,288 in expenditure savings which further 
added to the Town’s ending fund balance and reserves. The recommended revenue 
and expenditure budget adjustments for 2015/16 results in a decrease in revenues of 
$7,260 and an increase in expenditures of $9,211. As few actual transactions have 
been recorded for the 2015/16 fiscal year and since staff is confident that there will be at 
least some salary savings during the fiscal year, Staff does not yet recommend cutting 
the $14,228 in deficit spending these adjustments create. The Town remains 
conservative in its budget approach, so it is likely that that the deficit will be cured 
through the natural progression of the budget. If the deficit still exists at mid-year, staff 
will identify the appropriate adjustments. 
 
Following shows the progress the Town is making in rebuilding its General Fund 
Reserves: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

10 
 

 
2013/14 Audited 

2014/15 
Estimated Actual 

2015/16 Proposed 
Budget 

Revenues $10,055,695 $10,706,997 $10,611,162 

Measure C Revenues  291,666 998,429 

Expenses (9,484,697) (9,937,844) (10,625,390) 

Measure C Expenses  (8,392) (808,783) 

Net Income $570,998 $1,052,427 $175,418 

Ending Fund Balance $1,886,001 $2,938,428 $3,113,846 

    

Designated Reserves    

Nonspendable (RDA/Other)  2,015,945 2,008,233 1,983,233 

Assigned to Measure C 0 283,274 472,920 

Unassigned (129,944) 646,921 657,693 

   
 
 
Fund 2030 – Building Safety and Wastewater Services 
 

 2014/15 
Adopted 

Budget 

2014/15 
Estimated 

Actual 

2014/15 Final 
(Pre-audited) 

2015/16 
Adopted 

Budget 

Revenues $739,528 $896,374 $935,539 $787,722 

Expenses 756,696 740,274 738,488 824,484 

Net Income ($17,168) $156,100 $197,051 ($36,762) 

     

Ending Fund 
Balance 

$176,907 $350,175 $391,126 $354,364 

 
Revenues: 
 
By the close of the 2014/15 fiscal year, an additional $39,165 in revenues was earned 
over which was estimated. Building permits were up an additional $11,733 with a total of 
$243,733 earned. The Town hasn’t seen this level of building permits since 2007/08. 
The division was also able to collect an additional $5,000 in building related code 
enforcement violations for a total of $40,564. $7,787 more in onsite repair permits was 
issued. Overall development revenues continue to rebound and show that there is 
building growth in the community.  The 2015/16 revenues were budgeted very 
conservatively. In light of the final numbers and healthy permit and plan check numbers 
already being reported for 2015/16, staff recommends increasing building permits 
by $17,000 and plan check fees by $8,000. 
 
Expenses: 
 
Another $1,786 in expenditure savings was scraped together at the end of the 2014/15 
fiscal year. The 2015/16 budget includes some expenditures that had been cut from the 

86



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

11 
 

last several budgets like staff training, an additional four hours of staff time, computer 
replacement and a $5,000 contribution to the retiree health trust. No budget adjustment 
for 2015/16 is currently recommended. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The fund will end the fiscal year with a good healthy reserve which is important to 
maintain for equipment replacement purposes and to prepare for the inevitable next 
economic downturn. The division is currently managing the increased workload demand 
by more fully utilizing technology to improve efficiency. 
 
Fund 2070 – Animal Control Services 
 

 2014/15 
Adopted 

Budget 

2014/15 
Estimated 

Actual 

2014/15 Final 
(Pre-audited) 

2015/16 
Adopted 

Budget 

Revenues $197,882 $195,212 $198,000 $205,275 

Expenses 197,882 191,088 192,907 210,903 

Net Income $0 $4,124 $5,093 ($5,628) 

     

Ending Fund 
Balance 

$1,504 $5,628 $6,597 $969 

 
 Revenues: 
 
Revenues for 2014/15 concluded principally as expected with some growth in code 
enforcement citation receipts related to unlicensed, unleashed and dangerous dogs. 
Dog license receipts were up $1,000 compared to the prior year. PASH provided nearly 
$10,000 for funding various shelter expenses for the care and comfort of the animals. 
 
Expenses: 
 
Expenses for 2014/15 also concluded about as expected. The second animal control 
officer position was vacant most of the year creating salary savings, but the other 
budgeted expenses were spent as expected. As discussed above, the 36 animal control 
officer position will finally be filled this month. A full personnel cost analysis will be 
included with the mid-year report. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
With the salary savings and modest revenue growth, the fund did not require a transfer 
from the animal control donation fund to balance in 2014/15.  As of June 30, 2015 there 
is $60,580 remaining in the donation fund. It is expected with the hire of another animal 
control officer, the division can be more proactive in licensing dogs which will increase 
revenues to sustain the services provided to the community. In the meantime, $15,817 
is currently the budgeted transfer from the donation fund for the 2015/16 fiscal year. 

87



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

12 
 

 
Fund 2120 – State Gas Tax (Street Maintenance) 
 

 2014/15 
Adopted 

Budget 

2014/15 
Estimated 

Actual 

2014/15 Final 
(Pre-audited) 

2015/16 
Adopted 

Budget 

Revenues $1,128,818 $1,168,056 $1,163,803 $1,024,198 

Expenses 1,248,666 1,132,441 1,145,169 1,218,191 

Net Income ($119,848) $35,615 $18,634 ($193,993) 

     

Ending Fund 
Balance 

$383,784 $539,247 $522,266 $328,273 

 
Revenues: 
 
The fund ended up receiving about $4,253 less in revenues than expected. It received 
more from CIP projects to reimburse the wages of the Public Works Director and staff, 
but a little less in gas tax receipts. The gas tax revenue projection for 2015/16 and used 
in the Town’s budget, shows a 23.8% reduction in revenues due to lower gas prices and 
other factors. At this time, no revised numbers have been released. Deteriorating roads 
and lack of funding is not unique to Paradise. In September 2015, the Governor 
announced a proposal to provide additional funding for road maintenance. Latest 
estimates show that if this proposal is funded it could bring an additional $400,000 in 
revenue per year for ten years to the Town. Staff will be anxiously monitoring this 
proposal. 
 
Expenses: 
 
Expenses came in about $12,728 more than estimated at 2014/15 year end, but still 
less than budgeted. As pointed out in the General Fund analysis, it was expected that 
about $5,000 more would come in from encroachment permits to offset the wages of the 
Construction Inspector. Also, more progress was made on some CIP projects which 
used $6,391 more in gas tax funds as the match. 
 
No expenditure adjustment is currently recommended for the 2015/16 budget. Some 
additional monies were purposely budgeted to step up the street maintenance efforts of 
the division particularly in repair and maintenance supplies and services. Also, gas tax 
monies are being used to leverage and move forward with some of the remarkable 
granted CIP projects which will better Town roads and improve traffic safety. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The fund is currently maintaining appropriate reserves; however, staff is monitoring the 
trend of decreasing revenues. These reserves are needed to maintain existing staffing 
and service levels. They are also a critical funding source for leveraging grants.   

 

88



2014/15 Estimated Actual and 2015/16 Operating and Capital Budget Status Update   

October 13, 2015 

 

13 
 

Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, the Town is making progress towards its financial stability. All funds are 
being carefully monitored and only sustainable expenses are being put back into 
budgets. Further, the Town is being good stewards of Measure C monies and is 
investing those funds as expected by the community in items that sustain and enhance 
the services provided to the community. 
 
 
 

89



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

REVENUE
Department   00 - Non Department Activity

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity
3110.311 Property Tax Current Secured 4,260,523.00 .00 4,260,523.00 .00 .00 .00 4,260,523.00 0 4,165,560.36
3110.312 Property Tax Current Unsecured 230,784.00 .00 230,784.00 .00 .00 .00 230,784.00 0 217,677.76
3110.315 Property Tax Prior Secured/Unsecured 7,344.00 .00 7,344.00 .00 .00 .00 7,344.00 0 5,534.33
3110.320 Property Tax General Supplemental 47,891.00 .00 47,891.00 .00 .00 .00 47,891.00 0 50,010.80
3130.325 General Sales and Use Tax Sales and Use Tax 1,822,260.00 .00 1,822,260.00 .00 .00 .00 1,822,260.00 0 1,805,853.30
3167.330 Real Property Transfer Tax Real Property Transfer Tax 63,246.00 .00 63,246.00 .00 .00 15,885.80 47,360.20 25 63,701.61
3182.335 Franchise Taxes Franchise Taxes 865,679.00 .00 865,679.00 .00 .00 .00 865,679.00 0 855,689.39
3185.340 Transient Occupancy Tax Transient Occupancy Tax 200,430.00 .00 200,430.00 .00 .00 .00 200,430.00 0 197,509.23
3210.110 Business Licenses and Permits Business Regulation 3,800.00 .00 3,800.00 .00 .00 705.40 3,094.60 19 5,022.15
3210.120 Business Licenses and Permits Bingo Regulation 132.00 .00 132.00 .00 .00 .00 132.00 0 132.00
3215.100 DOJ/FBI Fees Fingerprinting/Processing .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 790.00 (790.00) +++ .00
3345.100 State Revenues - Other Refunds & Reimbursements 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 6,707.00 (5,707.00) 671 44,670.00
3345.200 State Revenues - Other Miscellaneous 24,000.00 .00 24,000.00 .00 .00 .00 24,000.00 0 .00
3351.001 Property Tax Homeowners Apportionment 69,455.00 .00 69,455.00 .00 .00 .00 69,455.00 0 67,508.14
3356.001 State Motor Vehicle In Lieu  Motor Vehicle In Lieu Tax 2,198,994.00 .00 2,198,994.00 .00 .00 .00 2,198,994.00 0 2,283,615.18
3356.003 State Motor Vehicle In Lieu  Section 11001.5 Prior Year .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 10,952.07
3410.101 Administrative Services General Administrative Fees 45.00 .00 45.00 .00 .00 34.81 10.19 77 60.01
3410.104 Administrative Services Returned Check Processing 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 (21.14) 221.14 -11 153.42
3410.106 Administrative Services Building Rental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 511.56
3410.107 Administrative Services Electronic Audio Reproduction 10.00 .00 10.00 .00 .00 .00 10.00 0 14.86
3410.112 Administrative Services Printed Material 

Production/Sale
550.00 .00 550.00 .00 .00 268.75 281.25 49 591.00

3410.113 Administrative Services Document Coyping 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 .00 57.00 243.00 19 504.25
3410.114 Administrative Services Document Certification 170.00 .00 170.00 .00 .00 80.00 90.00 47 270.00
3410.150 Administrative Services Late Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 12.00 (12.00) +++ 78.11
3610.100 Interest Revenue Investments 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 1.26 4,998.74 0 3,642.31
3610.150 Interest Revenue Interfund Loans .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 5,941.96
3630.200 Rents and Royalties Billboard Rents and Leases 440.00 .00 440.00 .00 .00 .00 440.00 0 440.00
3901.100 Refunds & Reimbursements Miscellaneous 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 9.06 4,990.94 0 135.51
3902.100 Miscellaneous Revenue General 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 528.24 (28.24) 106 35,468.31
3902.110 Miscellaneous Revenue Cash Over and Short .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 5.00
3910.030 Transfers In From Development Services Fund 160,436.00 .00 160,436.00 .00 .00 .00 160,436.00 0 137,713.00
3910.070 Transfers In From Animal Control 38,933.00 .00 38,933.00 .00 .00 .00 38,933.00 0 29,199.00
3910.120 Transfers In From State Gas Tax Fund 167,031.00 .00 167,031.00 .00 .00 .00 167,031.00 0 166,681.00
3910.140 Transfers In From Traffic Safety Fund 30,000.00 .00 30,000.00 .00 .00 5,000.00 25,000.00 17 30,000.00
3910.160 Transfers In From BHS Development Svcs Fund 34,780.00 .00 34,780.00 .00 .00 .00 34,780.00 0 31,397.00
3910.215 Transfers In From Aband Vehicle Abate Fund 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 .00 5,000.00 0 3,269.32

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 1 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

90



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

REVENUE
Department   00 - Non Department Activity

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity
3910.650 Transfers In From Successor Agency to RDA NH 13,212.00 .00 13,212.00 .00 .00 1,670.00 11,542.00 13 5,827.82
3910.710 Transfers In Equipment Replacement Fund 4,405.00 .00 4,405.00 .00 .00 3,657.64 747.36 83 .00
3910.900 Transfers In From Transit Fund 4,428.00 .00 4,428.00 .00 .00 .00 4,428.00 0 4,708.00
3910.970 Transfers In From Self Insurance Trust Fund 26,806.00 .00 26,806.00 .00 .00 26,805.75 .25 100 .00

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity Totals $10,292,784.00 $0.00 $10,292,784.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,191.57 $10,230,592.43 1% $10,230,047.76
Department   00 - Non Department Activity Totals $10,292,784.00 $0.00 $10,292,784.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,191.57 $10,230,592.43 1% $10,230,047.76

Department   25 - Finance 
Program   4420 - Measure C TUT

3130.326 General Sales and Use Tax Transactions and Use Tax 
(TUT)

850,000.00 .00 850,000.00 .00 .00 56,100.00 793,900.00 7 291,665.76

Program   4420 - Measure C TUT Totals $850,000.00 $0.00 $850,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,100.00 $793,900.00 7% $291,665.76
Program   5005 - Rental Properties

3630.100 Rents and Royalties Commercial Prop Rents & Leases  18,000.00 .00 18,000.00 .00 .00 3,000.00 15,000.00 17 11,129.07
3901.100 Refunds & Reimbursements Miscellaneous 2,100.00 .00 2,100.00 .00 .00 839.60 1,260.40 40 2,324.98

Program   5005 - Rental Properties Totals $20,100.00 $0.00 $20,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,839.60 $16,260.40 19% $13,454.05
Department   25 - Finance Totals $870,100.00 $0.00 $870,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $59,939.60 $810,160.40 7% $305,119.81

Department   30 - Police
Program   0000 - Non Program Activity

3320.100 Federal Revenue - Other Refunds and Reimbursements 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 .00 3,000.00 0 4,280.94
3345.004 State Revenues - Other POST Reimbursements 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 1,641.25 8,358.75 16 2,164.97
3345.100 State Revenues - Other Refunds & Reimbursements 16,000.00 .00 16,000.00 .00 .00 14,047.00 1,953.00 88 68,830.00
3380.100 Local Government Revenue Fines and Forfeitures 20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 .00 .00 1,716.78 18,283.22 9 21,167.80
3380.106 Local Government Revenue Administrative Citations 

Police
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 100.00

3410.150 Administrative Services Late Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 394.32 (394.32) +++ .00
3421.100 Police Vehicle Repossession 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 63.00 137.00 32 252.00
3421.103 Police Weapons Storage Fee 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 .00 150.00 0 .00
3421.105 Police Cite Sign Off / VIN Verification 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 183.15 816.85 18 1,019.94
3421.110 Police DUI Accident & Arrest Processing 2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 .00 .00 .00 2,300.00 0 4,157.09
3421.111 Police Vehicle Impound Fee 1,200.00 .00 1,200.00 .00 .00 112.00 1,088.00 9 1,008.00
3421.115 Police Police Report (Copy) 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00 .00 1,742.34 5,257.66 25 7,622.09
3421.120 Police Fingerprint Processing 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00 .00 1,444.00 4,556.00 24 5,724.00
3421.122 Police Visa/Clearance Letter 64.00 .00 64.00 .00 .00 16.07 47.93 25 112.49
3421.128 Police Statutory Registration 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 90.00 410.00 18 480.00
3421.130 Police Reproduce/Sale of Tapes & Photos 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 48.21 101.79 32 199.47
3421.140 Police Alarm System Registration 1,800.00 .00 1,800.00 .00 .00 370.77 1,429.23 21 2,736.65
3421.141 Police False Alarm Response 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 915.86 584.14 61 2,829.10
3421.180 Police Special Services 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 275.00 725.00 28 1,375.00

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 2 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

91



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

REVENUE
Department   30 - Police

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity
3421.185 Police Bicycle License 7.00 .00 7.00 .00 .00 .00 7.00 0 11.25
3421.187 Police Subpoena Duces Tecum 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 15.00 85.00 15 670.00
3901.100 Refunds & Reimbursements Miscellaneous 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 162.78
3901.140 Refunds & Reimbursements Negligence Cost Recovery 

Fees
200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 .00 200.00 0 581.70

3902.100 Miscellaneous Revenue General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .01 49.99 0 19.57
Program   0000 - Non Program Activity Totals $73,221.00 $0.00 $73,221.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,074.76 $50,146.24 32% $125,504.84

Department   30 - Police Totals $73,221.00 $0.00 $73,221.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,074.76 $50,146.24 32% $125,504.84
Department   35 - Fire

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity
3345.100 State Revenues - Other Refunds & Reimbursements 75,000.00 .00 75,000.00 .00 .00 13,552.00 61,448.00 18 174,163.05
3380.103 Local Government Revenue Fines and Citations Fire .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 210.00 (210.00) +++ .00
3410.150 Administrative Services Late Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 8.44 (8.44) +++ .00
3422.303 Fire Out Of Hours Burning Response 250.00 .00 250.00 .00 .00 373.12 (123.12) 149 176.00
3422.304 Fire Fuel Reduction Burn Permit 600.00 .00 600.00 .00 .00 .00 600.00 0 874.00
3422.310 Fire Report Copying 40.00 .00 40.00 .00 .00 .00 40.00 0 .00
3422.315 Fire Residential Burning Regulation 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00 .00 .00 7,000.00 0 5,725.92
3422.330 Fire Campfire/Special Activity Permit .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 22.00
3422.335 Fire Land Clearing Fire Regulation 75.00 .00 75.00 .00 .00 .00 75.00 0 .00
3422.344 Fire Negligent/Reckless Cost Recovery .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 372.29
3650.100 Donations Private Sources .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 1,500.00
3901.100 Refunds & Reimbursements Miscellaneous 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 84.77 415.23 17 91.68
3902.100 Miscellaneous Revenue General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ .36

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity Totals $83,465.00 $0.00 $83,465.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,228.33 $69,236.67 17% $182,925.30
Department   35 - Fire Totals $83,465.00 $0.00 $83,465.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,228.33 $69,236.67 17% $182,925.30

Department   40 - Community Development
Program   4720 - CDD Planning 

3380.101 Local Government Revenue Fines and Citations Comm 
Develop

22,000.00 .00 22,000.00 .00 .00 2,100.00 19,900.00 10 12,767.47

3400.101 CDD Planning Appeals Review .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ (79.90)
3400.104 CDD Planning Tentative Parcel  Map 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00 .00 1,754.50 1,745.50 50 1,754.50
3400.108 CDD Planning Road Name Review .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 168.90
3400.109 CDD Planning Street Address Change Review 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 .01 199.99 0 337.80
3400.110 CDD Planning Street Name Change Review .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 408.15
3400.111 CDD Planning Landscape Plan 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 240.60
3400.123 CDD Planning Tree Pres/Protect Plan Review 80.00 .00 80.00 .00 .00 .00 80.00 0 .00
3400.130 CDD Planning General Plan Amend and Rezoning 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 .00
3400.138 CDD Planning Development Agreement .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 1,181.94

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 3 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

92



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

REVENUE
Department   40 - Community Development

Program   4720 - CDD Planning 
3400.139 CDD Planning Research on Request 400.00 .00 400.00 .00 .00 160.40 239.60 40 561.40
3400.150 CDD Planning Code Compliance Enforcement Fee .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 531.67
3400.170 CDD Planning Use Permit Class A 600.00 .00 600.00 .00 .00 .00 600.00 0 1,196.27
3400.171 CDD Planning Use Permit Class B 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 .00
3400.173 CDD Planning Temporary Use Permit 450.00 .00 450.00 .00 .00 477.73 (27.73) 106 79.63
3400.174 CDD Planning Administrative Permit 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00 .00 479.40 2,020.60 19 1,917.60
3400.176 CDD Planning Home Occupation Permit 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 1,088.85
3400.177 CDD Planning Site Plan/Use Permit Mod Class A 319.00 .00 319.00 .00 .00 .00 319.00 0 638.00
3400.178 CDD Planning Site Plan/Use Permit Mod Class B .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,118.92 (1,118.92) +++ .00
3400.184 CDD Planning Site Plan Review Class A 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 1,721.41
3400.185 CDD Planning Site Plan Review Class B 430.00 .00 430.00 .00 .00 .00 430.00 0 .00
3400.190 CDD Planning Admin Variance-Noise Ordinance .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 533.16
3400.200 CDD Planning Tree Felling Permit 20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 .00 .00 4,919.28 15,080.72 25 22,752.19
3400.307 CDD Planning Design Review Application 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 153.06 1,346.94 10 2,525.53

Program   4720 - CDD Planning Totals $56,479.00 $0.00 $56,479.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,163.30 $45,315.70 20% $50,325.17
Program   4780 - CDD - Waste Management

3182.335 Franchise Taxes Franchise Taxes 38,373.00 .00 38,373.00 .00 .00 .00 38,373.00 0 37,789.01
3340.400 State Funding - Grants Waste Mgmt .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,286.95
3345.200 State Revenues - Other Miscellaneous .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 6,948.00
3380.104 Local Government Revenue Fines and Citations Waste 

Mgmt
12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 .00 .00 200.00 11,800.00 2 13,615.96

Program   4780 - CDD - Waste Management Totals $50,373.00 $0.00 $50,373.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $50,173.00 0% $60,639.92
Department   40 - Community Development Totals $106,852.00 $0.00 $106,852.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,363.30 $95,488.70 11% $110,965.09

Department   45 - Public Works
Program   4740 - Public Works - Engineering

3402.201 PW Engineering Final Parcel Map 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 .00
3402.220 PW Engineering Land Divisn/Pvt Develop Projects 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 5,537.75 4,462.25 55 8,714.28
3402.223 PW Engineering Engineering Site Plan 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 .00 .00 300.00 0 .00
3402.224 PW Engineering Grading Check/Inspection 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 1,185.92 (185.92) 119 1,185.92
3402.226 PW Engineering Cert of Correction with Hearing .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 527.58 (527.58) +++ 527.58
3402.227 PW Engineering Lot Merger Review 700.00 .00 700.00 .00 .00 .00 700.00 0 1,055.13
3402.228 PW Engineering Lot Line Adjustment 1,600.00 .00 1,600.00 .00 .00 615.51 984.49 38 3,327.55
3402.229 PW Engineering Cert of Compliance Review w/Hear .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 527.58
3402.230 PW Engineering Engineer Drain Plan/Calc Review 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 439.65 4,560.35 9 827.17
3402.232 PW Engineering Erosion Control Plan Review 800.00 .00 800.00 .00 .00 175.86 624.14 22 674.28
3402.250 PW Engineering Oversized Vehicle Regulation 600.00 .00 600.00 .00 .00 202.00 398.00 34 1,004.00
3402.270 PW Engineering Encroachment Permit Fees 19,000.00 .00 19,000.00 .00 .00 2,037.30 16,962.70 11 24,419.65

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 4 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

93



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

REVENUE
Department   45 - Public Works

Program   4740 - Public Works - Engineering Totals $39,500.00 $0.00 $39,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,721.57 $28,778.43 27% $42,263.14
Program   4745 - Paradise Community Park

3470.251 Parks & Recreation Space Rental 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00 .00 660.00 1,840.00 26 2,590.00
3470.258 Parks & Recreation Miscellaneous .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 80.00

Program   4745 - Paradise Community Park Totals $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $660.00 $1,840.00 26% $2,670.00
Department   45 - Public Works Totals $42,000.00 $0.00 $42,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,381.57 $30,618.43 27% $44,933.14

REVENUE TOTALS $11,468,422.00 $0.00 $11,468,422.00 $0.00 $0.00 $182,179.13 $11,286,242.87 2% $10,999,495.94
EXPENSE

Department   00 - Non Department Activity
Program   0000 - Non Program Activity

5225 Bank Fees and Charges 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 .00 .00 1,471.52 3,028.48 33 7,214.36
5280.100 Bad Debt Write Off Expense .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,032.14
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 570,929.00 .00 570,929.00 .00 .00 .00 570,929.00 0 580,547.00
5502 Debt Service Payment - Interest 354,071.00 .00 354,071.00 .00 .00 .00 354,071.00 0 309,453.00
5502.150 Debt Service Payment - Interest Interfund Loans 376.00 .00 376.00 .00 .00 .00 376.00 0 970.90
5502.201 Debt Service Payment - Interest Tax Anticipation 

Notes
22,500.00 .00 22,500.00 .00 .00 .00 22,500.00 0 21,768.75

5510.201 Bond Payments - Issuance Costs Tax Anticipation 
Notes

7,850.00 .00 7,850.00 .00 .00 7,500.00 350.00 96 7,850.00

5910.611 Transfers Out GASB 45 Retiree Medical Trust 7,500.00 .00 7,500.00 .00 .00 .00 7,500.00 0 .00
5910.923 Transfers Out To TOP Housing Loan Fund .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,783.00 (1,783.00) +++ .00

Program   0000 - Non Program Activity Totals $967,726.00 $0.00 $967,726.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,754.52 $956,971.48 1% $929,836.15
Department   00 - Non Department Activity Totals $967,726.00 $0.00 $967,726.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,754.52 $956,971.48 1% $929,836.15

Department   10 - Legislative
Program   4000 - Town Council

5101 Salaries - Permanent 18,000.00 .00 18,000.00 .00 .00 4,410.00 13,590.00 24 17,640.00
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 5,400.00 .00 5,400.00 .00 .00 1,350.00 4,050.00 25 5,400.00
5111 Medicare 339.00 .00 339.00 .00 .00 84.85 254.15 25 339.30
5112.102 Retirement Contribution Social Security 1,451.00 .00 1,451.00 .00 .00 362.70 1,088.30 25 1,450.80
5113 Worker's Compensation 140.00 .00 140.00 .00 .00 35.04 104.96 25 165.66
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .00 50.00 0 7.52
5219.100 Printing General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .00 50.00 0 .00
5220.100 Employee Development General 12,365.00 .00 12,365.00 .00 .00 2,000.00 10,365.00 16 10,334.00
5223.105 Meals and Refreshments Emergencies and Meetings .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 48.57
5304 Furniture & Equipment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 932.01

Program   4000 - Town Council Totals $37,795.00 $0.00 $37,795.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,242.59 $29,552.41 22% $36,317.86
Department   10 - Legislative Totals $37,795.00 $0.00 $37,795.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,242.59 $29,552.41 22% $36,317.86

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 5 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

94



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   15 - Town Clerk

Program   4100 - Town Clerk
5101 Salaries - Permanent 173,898.00 .00 173,898.00 .00 .00 37,492.37 136,405.63 22 169,926.09
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 8,916.00 .00 8,916.00 .00 .00 .00 8,916.00 0 8,621.54
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 89.10
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 2,382.00 .00 2,382.00 .00 .00 594.00 1,788.00 25 2,386.75
5111 Medicare 2,685.00 .00 2,685.00 .00 .00 536.26 2,148.74 20 2,571.19
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 31,349.00 .00 31,349.00 .00 .00 20,002.20 11,346.80 64 21,078.44
5113 Worker's Compensation 1,353.00 .00 1,353.00 .00 .00 338.83 1,014.17 25 1,559.09
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 18,319.00 .00 18,319.00 .00 .00 3,890.28 14,428.72 21 15,585.99
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 540.66 (540.66) +++ 2,105.94
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 61.62 (61.62) +++ 266.50
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 287.58 (287.58) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 1,711.00 .00 1,711.00 .00 .00 141.66 1,569.34 8 568.16
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 276.00 (276.00) +++ 834.26

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 20,009.00 .00 20,009.00 .00 .00 2,886.12 17,122.88 14 19,663.66
5201.100 Office Supplies General 175.00 .00 175.00 .00 .00 .00 175.00 0 113.75
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 348.00 .00 348.00 .00 352.22 .00 (4.22) 101 44.56
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 140.00 .00 140.00 .00 .00 79.63 60.37 57 133.02
5210.100 Postage General 175.00 .00 175.00 .00 .00 20.94 154.06 12 151.40
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 8,597.00 .00 8,597.00 .00 .00 2,196.00 6,401.00 26 10,108.15
5218.100 Advertising General 3,410.00 .00 3,410.00 .00 .00 .00 3,410.00 0 3,821.47
5221 Election-County Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 27,416.54
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 187.00 34.00 221.00 .00 .00 .00 221.00 0 .00

Program   4100 - Town Clerk Totals $273,654.00 $34.00 $273,688.00 $0.00 $352.22 $69,344.15 $203,991.63 25% $287,045.60
Department   15 - Town Clerk Totals $273,654.00 $34.00 $273,688.00 $0.00 $352.22 $69,344.15 $203,991.63 25% $287,045.60

Department   20 - Administrative Services
Program   4200 - Town Manager

5101 Salaries - Permanent 101,670.00 .00 101,670.00 .00 .00 20,741.77 80,928.23 20 92,336.09
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 5,053.00 .00 5,053.00 .00 .00 .00 5,053.00 0 4,482.82
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 1,570.00 .00 1,570.00 .00 .00 389.00 1,181.00 25 1,544.75
5111 Medicare 204.00 .00 204.00 .00 .00 36.28 167.72 18 173.26
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 19,001.00 .00 19,001.00 .00 .00 24,458.48 (5,457.48) 129 10,593.61
5113 Worker's Compensation 790.00 .00 790.00 .00 .00 197.84 592.16 25 886.94
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 9,221.00 .00 9,221.00 .00 .00 2,027.43 7,193.57 22 8,086.79
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 251.95 (251.95) +++ 978.86
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 9.40 (9.40) +++ 37.74
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 153.66 (153.66) +++ .00

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 6 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

95



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   20 - Administrative Services

Program   4200 - Town Manager
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 782.00 .00 782.00 .00 .00 75.40 706.60 10 300.03
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 170.99 (170.99) +++ 568.17

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 41,572.00 .00 41,572.00 .00 .00 6,896.28 34,675.72 17 40,277.77
5201.100 Office Supplies General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .00 50.00 0 .00
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .00 50.00 0 .00
5210.100 Postage General 20.00 .00 20.00 .00 .00 .00 20.00 0 17.32
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 8,370.00 .00 8,370.00 .00 .00 3,500.00 4,870.00 42 3,390.73
5260 Miscellaneous .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 4.50
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 187.00 34.00 221.00 .00 .00 .00 221.00 0 .00

Program   4200 - Town Manager Totals $188,540.00 $34.00 $188,574.00 $0.00 $0.00 $58,908.48 $129,665.52 31% $163,679.38
Program   4201 - Central Services

5101 Salaries - Permanent 34,847.00 .00 34,847.00 .00 .00 16,775.00 18,072.00 48 122,460.30
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 3,763.76
5111 Medicare 505.00 .00 505.00 .00 .00 237.28 267.72 47 1,844.92
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 2,178.00 .00 2,178.00 .00 .00 1,396.03 781.97 64 13,153.57
5113 Worker's Compensation 271.00 .00 271.00 .00 .00 67.87 203.13 25 1,109.56
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 10,607.00 .00 10,607.00 .00 .00 2,992.77 7,614.23 28 15,978.60
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 244.23 (244.23) +++ 1,291.65
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 27.93 (27.93) +++ 132.48
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 142.77 (142.77) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 504.00 .00 504.00 .00 .00 79.80 424.20 16 433.20
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 121.31 (121.31) +++ 620.54

5199.199 Other Fund Support IT-Serv from Tech Fee .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ (58,000.00)
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00 .00 639.31 1,360.69 32 11,837.09
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 1,630.00 .00 1,630.00 .00 .00 36.26 1,593.74 2 2,762.32
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 149.71
5209.105 Auto Fuel Expense Employee Personal Vehicle Use .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 112.00
5210.100 Postage General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 210.50
5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 720.00 .00 720.00 .00 .00 115.42 604.58 16 700.02
5211.137 Utilities Electric and Gas 22,500.00 .00 22,500.00 .00 .00 4,944.86 17,555.14 22 23,292.40
5212.100 Insurance General 172,540.00 .00 172,540.00 .00 .00 171,786.00 754.00 100 198,446.00
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 36,151.00 .00 36,151.00 .00 .00 9,955.81 26,195.19 28 52,444.21
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 12,664.00 .00 12,664.00 .00 .00 3,855.07 8,808.93 30 66,497.82
5215.100 Rents and Leases Miscellaneous 1,784.00 .00 1,784.00 .00 .00 890.20 893.80 50 1,785.23
5215.106 Rents and Leases Copiers .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,283.55 (1,283.55) +++ 5,134.20
5216.100 Communications General Services .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 9,611.34 (9,611.34) +++ 31,641.98

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 7 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

96



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   20 - Administrative Services

Program   4201 - Central Services
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 167.68 (167.68) +++ 70.54
5219.100 Printing General 1,010.00 .00 1,010.00 .00 .00 .00 1,010.00 0 1,357.19
5220.100 Employee Development General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 78.26
5225 Bank Fees and Charges .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 65.00
5260 Miscellaneous 26,362.00 .00 26,362.00 .00 .00 25,788.77 573.23 98 25,161.52
5303 Improvements 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0 1,229.55
5304 Furniture & Equipment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 942.08
5500 Bond Payments - Fiscal Agent 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00 .00 1,831.26 668.74 73 2,793.73
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 8,910.94

Program   4201 - Central Services Totals $338,773.00 $0.00 $338,773.00 $0.00 $0.00 $252,990.52 $85,782.48 75% $538,410.87
Program   4202 - Information Technology

5101 Salaries - Permanent 88,962.00 .00 88,962.00 .00 .00 10,264.80 78,697.20 12 .00
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 3,764.00 .00 3,764.00 .00 .00 .00 3,764.00 0 .00
5111 Medicare 1,345.00 .00 1,345.00 .00 .00 160.66 1,184.34 12 .00
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 15,012.00 .00 15,012.00 .00 .00 873.75 14,138.25 6 .00
5113 Worker's Compensation 692.00 .00 692.00 .00 .00 173.30 518.70 25 .00
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 5,205.00 .00 5,205.00 .00 .00 650.61 4,554.39 12 .00
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 70.92 (70.92) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 829.00 .00 829.00 .00 .00 28.50 800.50 3 .00
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 81.93 (81.93) +++ .00

5199.199 Other Fund Support IT-Serv from Tech Fee (80,000.00) .00 (80,000.00) .00 .00 (13,350.00) (66,650.00) 17 .00
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 4,290.00 .00 4,290.00 .00 752.82 1,993.60 1,543.58 64 .00
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 .00 150.00 0 .00
5210.100 Postage General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 180.99 (180.99) +++ .00
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 11,500.00 .00 11,500.00 .00 .00 70.00 11,430.00 1 .00
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 59,360.00 .00 59,360.00 .00 .00 50,101.98 9,258.02 84 .00
5215.106 Rents and Leases Copiers 5,201.00 .00 5,201.00 .00 .00 .00 5,201.00 0 .00
5216.100 Communications General Services 41,091.00 .00 41,091.00 .00 .00 1,734.62 39,356.38 4 .00
5218.100 Advertising General 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 167.68 (67.68) 168 .00
5220.100 Employee Development General 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00 2,000.00 0 .00
5225 Bank Fees and Charges 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 .00 200.00 0 .00
5304 Furniture & Equipment 2,250.00 .00 2,250.00 .00 .00 1,641.58 608.42 73 .00
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 37,953.00 (1,074.00) 36,879.00 .00 .00 9,157.76 27,721.24 25 .00

Program   4202 - Information Technology Totals $199,904.00 ($1,074.00) $198,830.00 $0.00 $752.82 $64,002.68 $134,074.50 33% $0.00
Program   4203 - HR and Risk Management

5101 Salaries - Permanent 54,249.00 .00 54,249.00 .00 .00 11,612.70 42,636.30 21 51,827.73

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 8 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

97



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   20 - Administrative Services

Program   4203 - HR and Risk Management
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 2,592.00 .00 2,592.00 .00 .00 .00 2,592.00 0 2,468.40
5111 Medicare 824.00 .00 824.00 .00 .00 142.23 681.77 17 688.93
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 9,155.00 .00 9,155.00 .00 .00 1,070.86 8,084.14 12 6,425.20
5113 Worker's Compensation 422.00 .00 422.00 .00 .00 105.68 316.32 25 475.40
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 15,660.00 .00 15,660.00 .00 .00 3,383.10 12,276.90 22 13,532.40
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 474.12 (474.12) +++ 1,841.18
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 42.66 (42.66) +++ 170.64
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 78.93 (78.93) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 693.00 .00 693.00 .00 .00 57.00 636.00 8 228.00
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 96.74 (96.74) +++ 306.21

5119.120 Retiree Costs PERS 1959 Survivor Benefits 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00 .00 .00 2,500.00 0 2,520.00
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 345.00 .00 345.00 .00 .00 .00 345.00 0 255.42
5210.100 Postage General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 1.45 48.55 3 27.24
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 1,900.00 .00 1,900.00 .00 .00 926.64 973.36 49 1,853.28
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 20.00
5223.105 Meals and Refreshments Emergencies and Meetings .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 41.13

Program   4203 - HR and Risk Management Totals $88,390.00 $0.00 $88,390.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,992.11 $70,397.89 20% $82,681.16
Program   4300 - Legal Services

5210.100 Postage General 20.00 .00 20.00 .00 .00 3.36 16.64 17 42.72
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 176,400.00 .00 176,400.00 .00 .00 46,720.00 129,680.00 26 194,834.95

Program   4300 - Legal Services Totals $176,420.00 $0.00 $176,420.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,723.36 $129,696.64 26% $194,877.67
Department   20 - Administrative Services Totals $992,027.00 ($1,040.00) $990,987.00 $0.00 $752.82 $440,617.15 $549,617.03 45% $979,649.08

Department   25 - Finance 
Program   4400 - Finance

5101 Salaries - Permanent 144,997.00 .00 144,997.00 .00 .00 32,313.60 112,683.40 22 148,007.56
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 7,369.00 .00 7,369.00 .00 .00 .00 7,369.00 0 7,339.96
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 299.00 .00 299.00 .00 .00 .00 299.00 0 224.10
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 2,028.00 .00 2,028.00 .00 .00 509.00 1,519.00 25 2,092.50
5111 Medicare 2,239.00 .00 2,239.00 .00 .00 476.19 1,762.81 21 2,286.69
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 26,472.00 .00 26,472.00 .00 .00 17,107.22 9,364.78 65 18,365.62
5113 Worker's Compensation 1,128.00 .00 1,128.00 .00 .00 282.48 845.52 25 1,358.83
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 9,369.00 .00 9,369.00 .00 .00 2,183.43 7,185.57 23 8,858.16
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 497.00 (497.00) +++ 1,961.29
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 48.23 (48.23) +++ 196.72
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 253.77 (253.77) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 1,439.00 .00 1,439.00 .00 .00 119.81 1,319.19 8 487.24

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 9 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

98



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   25 - Finance 

Program   4400 - Finance
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 228.83 (228.83) +++ 688.58

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 14,624.00 .00 14,624.00 .00 .00 2,424.36 12,199.64 17 16,542.29
5201.100 Office Supplies General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .00 50.00 0 41.12
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 .00 150.00 0 322.12
5210.100 Postage General 1,550.00 .00 1,550.00 .00 .00 312.59 1,237.41 20 1,571.30
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 636.00 .00 636.00 .00 .00 102.94 533.06 16 907.26
5219.100 Printing General 600.00 .00 600.00 .00 .00 .00 600.00 0 906.46
5220.100 Employee Development General 110.00 .00 110.00 .00 .00 .00 110.00 0 110.00
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 218.00 .00 218.00 .00 .00 52.97 165.03 24 158.92

Program   4400 - Finance Totals $213,278.00 $0.00 $213,278.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,912.42 $156,365.58 27% $212,426.72
Program   4420 - Measure C TUT

5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 8,500.00 .00 8,500.00 .00 .00 .00 8,500.00 0 8,392.04
Cost Center Activity   300 - Police Administration

5303 Improvements 21,000.00 .00 21,000.00 .00 .00 .00 21,000.00 0 .00
5304 Furniture & Equipment 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 .00 .00 .00 12,000.00 0 .00

Cost Center Activity   300 - Police Administration Totals $33,000.00 $0.00 $33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00 0% $0.00
Cost Center Activity   301 - Police Operations

5101 Salaries - Permanent 61,453.00 .00 61,453.00 .00 .00 .00 61,453.00 0 .00
5104 Wages - PS Holiday Pay 3,192.00 .00 3,192.00 .00 .00 .00 3,192.00 0 .00
5106.101 Incentives & Admin Leave School Incentive 2,386.00 .00 2,386.00 .00 .00 .00 2,386.00 0 .00
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 775.00 .00 775.00 .00 .00 .00 775.00 0 .00
5111 Medicare 983.00 .00 983.00 .00 .00 .00 983.00 0 .00
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 39,840.00 .00 39,840.00 .00 .00 .00 39,840.00 0 .00
5113 Worker's Compensation 4,639.00 .00 4,639.00 .00 .00 1,161.73 3,477.27 25 .00
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 14,819.00 .00 14,819.00 .00 .00 .00 14,819.00 0 .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 691.00 .00 691.00 .00 .00 .00 691.00 0 .00
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 2,800.00 .00 2,800.00 .00 85.66 58.79 2,655.55 5 .00
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 .00 3,000.00 0 .00
5220.100 Employee Development General 19,200.00 .00 19,200.00 .00 1,879.50 11,798.58 5,521.92 71 .00
5304 Furniture & Equipment 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0 .00
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 106,584.00 (3,743.00) 102,841.00 .00 .00 4,878.58 97,962.42 5 .00

Cost Center Activity   301 - Police Operations Totals $270,362.00 ($3,743.00) $266,619.00 $0.00 $1,965.16 $17,897.68 $246,756.16 7% $0.00
Cost Center Activity   303 - Animal Control

5101 Salaries - Permanent 23,691.00 .00 23,691.00 .00 .00 .00 23,691.00 0 .00
5104 Wages - PS Holiday Pay 805.00 .00 805.00 .00 .00 .00 805.00 0 .00
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 311.00 .00 311.00 .00 .00 .00 311.00 0 .00

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 10 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

99



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   25 - Finance 

Program   4420 - Measure C TUT
Cost Center Activity   303 - Animal Control

5111 Medicare 360.00 .00 360.00 .00 .00 .00 360.00 0 .00
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 2,136.00 .00 2,136.00 .00 .00 .00 2,136.00 0 .00
5113 Worker's Compensation 2,498.00 .00 2,498.00 .00 .00 625.57 1,872.43 25 .00
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 4,895.00 .00 4,895.00 .00 .00 .00 4,895.00 0 .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 304.00 .00 304.00 .00 .00 .00 304.00 0 .00
5220.100 Employee Development General 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 .00 3,000.00 0 .00
5304 Furniture & Equipment 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 .00 3,000.00 0 .00

Cost Center Activity   303 - Animal Control Totals $41,000.00 $0.00 $41,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $625.57 $40,374.43 2% $0.00
Cost Center Activity   325 - Fire Administration

5303 Improvements 20,500.00 .00 20,500.00 .00 .00 .00 20,500.00 0 .00
Cost Center Activity   325 - Fire Administration Totals $20,500.00 $0.00 $20,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,500.00 0% $0.00

Cost Center Activity   326 - Fire Suppression
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 150,000.00 .00 150,000.00 .00 .00 .00 150,000.00 0 .00
5304 Furniture & Equipment 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 .00 .00 .00 25,000.00 0 .00
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 75,000.00 11,632.00 86,632.00 .00 .00 21,657.93 64,974.07 25 .00

Cost Center Activity   326 - Fire Suppression Totals $250,000.00 $11,632.00 $261,632.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,657.93 $239,974.07 8% $0.00
Cost Center Activity   350 - Public Works Streets

5910.100 Transfers Out To Capital Projects 200,000.00 .00 200,000.00 .00 .00 .00 200,000.00 0 .00
Cost Center Activity   350 - Public Works Streets Totals $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 0% $0.00

Program   4420 - Measure C TUT Totals $823,362.00 $7,889.00 $831,251.00 $0.00 $1,965.16 $40,181.18 $789,104.66 5% $8,392.04
Program   5005 - Rental Properties

5211.175 Utilities Rental Properties 2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 .00 .00 505.22 1,794.78 22 2,096.16
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 597.00
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 480.00 .00 480.00 .00 .00 120.00 360.00 25 474.92
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 17,202.00 .00 17,202.00 .00 .00 5,733.92 11,468.08 33 8,600.88

Program   5005 - Rental Properties Totals $19,982.00 $0.00 $19,982.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,359.14 $13,622.86 32% $11,768.96
Department   25 - Finance Totals $1,056,622.00 $7,889.00 $1,064,511.00 $0.00 $1,965.16 $103,452.74 $959,093.10 10% $232,587.72

Department   30 - Police
Program   4510 - Police Administration

5101 Salaries - Permanent 336,515.00 .00 336,515.00 .00 .00 75,581.33 260,933.67 22 326,219.32
5103.102 Differential Pay Out of Class .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 104.03 (104.03) +++ 228.86
5104 Wages - PS Holiday Pay 15,785.00 .00 15,785.00 .00 .00 3,418.75 12,366.25 22 14,356.60
5105 Salaries - Overtime/FLSA 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 .00 100.00 0 26.16
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 19,169.00 .00 19,169.00 .00 .00 .00 19,169.00 0 9,514.52
5106.101 Incentives & Admin Leave School Incentive 19,652.00 .00 19,652.00 .00 .00 4,766.10 14,885.90 24 8,100.00
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 360.00 .00 360.00 .00 .00 .00 360.00 0 .00

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 11 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

100



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   30 - Police

Program   4510 - Police Administration
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 2,790.00 .00 2,790.00 .00 .00 697.50 2,092.50 25 2,359.92
5111 Medicare 6,049.00 .00 6,049.00 .00 .00 1,196.56 4,852.44 20 5,284.94
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 206,280.00 .00 206,280.00 .00 .00 157,910.76 48,369.24 77 95,399.20
5113 Worker's Compensation 25,499.00 .00 25,499.00 .00 .00 6,385.63 19,113.37 25 25,628.18
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 44,458.00 .00 44,458.00 .00 .00 9,367.96 35,090.04 21 37,475.12
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 815.04 (815.04) +++ 3,165.06
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 104.58 (104.58) +++ 418.32
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 630.83 (630.83) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 3,088.00 .00 3,088.00 .00 .00 236.58 2,851.42 8 946.32
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 519.26 (519.26) +++ 1,528.82

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 49,170.00 .00 49,170.00 .00 .00 10,200.91 38,969.09 21 54,900.47
5119.120 Retiree Costs PERS 1959 Survivor Benefits .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 240.00
5122 Accrual Bank Payoff 23,168.00 .00 23,168.00 .00 .00 .00 23,168.00 0 10,485.60
5201.100 Office Supplies General 2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 .00 .00 325.02 1,974.98 14 2,068.22
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 6,879.00 .00 6,879.00 .00 95.97 1,197.59 5,585.44 19 5,998.82
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 2,050.00 .00 2,050.00 .00 127.15 397.72 1,525.13 26 1,620.12
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 85.25 14.75 85 84.86
5210.100 Postage General 2,200.00 .00 2,200.00 .00 .00 522.80 1,677.20 24 2,071.47
5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 850.00 .00 850.00 .00 .00 137.02 712.98 16 848.82
5211.137 Utilities Electric and Gas 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 .00 .00 6,253.97 18,746.03 25 27,100.72
5211.139 Utilities Propane 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 548.39
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 31,270.00 .00 31,270.00 .00 .00 10,200.39 21,069.61 33 27,013.05
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 33,978.00 .00 33,978.00 .00 .00 6,500.00 27,478.00 19 30,695.91
5215.100 Rents and Leases Miscellaneous 419.00 .00 419.00 .00 .00 103.86 315.14 25 417.44
5215.106 Rents and Leases Copiers 2,468.00 .00 2,468.00 .00 .00 322.50 2,145.50 13 107.50
5216.100 Communications General Services 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00 .00 847.36 5,152.64 14 5,040.64
5218.100 Advertising General 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 .00 100.00 0 .00
5219.100 Printing General 800.00 .00 800.00 .00 .00 40.00 760.00 5 1,530.53
5220.100 Employee Development General 1,380.00 .00 1,380.00 .00 .00 689.00 691.00 50 1,262.50
5223.105 Meals and Refreshments Emergencies and Meetings 400.00 .00 400.00 .00 139.80 .00 260.20 35 416.99
5225 Bank Fees and Charges 600.00 .00 600.00 .00 .00 86.49 513.51 14 507.08
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 4,068.00 .00 4,068.00 .00 .00 1,316.18 2,751.82 32 3,948.54

Program   4510 - Police Administration Totals $873,445.00 $0.00 $873,445.00 $0.00 $362.92 $300,960.97 $572,121.11 34% $707,559.01
Program   4520 - Police Operations

5101 Salaries - Permanent 1,098,880.00 .00 1,098,880.00 .00 .00 225,601.19 873,278.81 21 943,677.57
5102 Salaries - Temporary .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 602.40 (602.40) +++ 1,204.80

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 12 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

101



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   30 - Police

Program   4520 - Police Operations
5103.102 Differential Pay Out of Class .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,627.41 (1,627.41) +++ 4,348.79
5103.105 Differential Pay Swing/Graveyard Shift .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 7,638.11 (7,638.11) +++ 30,261.76
5103.108 Differential Pay Canine Maintenance .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,475.34 (1,475.34) +++ 3,651.98
5104 Wages - PS Holiday Pay 52,708.00 .00 52,708.00 .00 .00 11,552.12 41,155.88 22 51,864.23
5105 Salaries - Overtime/FLSA 220,000.00 .00 220,000.00 .00 .00 65,882.73 154,117.27 30 236,197.70
5106.101 Incentives & Admin Leave School Incentive 42,211.00 .00 42,211.00 .00 .00 10,023.89 32,187.11 24 40,253.05
5106.103 Incentives & Admin Leave Team Pay .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 693.57 (693.57) +++ 4,417.08
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 540.00 .00 540.00 .00 .00 .00 540.00 0 540.00
5106.205 Incentives & Admin Leave PS Recruitment Incentive 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 1,000.00 4,000.00 20 10,300.00
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 21,142.00 .00 21,142.00 .00 .00 3,992.86 17,149.14 19 19,682.01
5111 Medicare 20,761.00 .00 20,761.00 .00 .00 5,075.64 15,685.36 24 18,499.62
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 446,331.00 .00 446,331.00 .00 .00 328,633.39 117,697.61 74 274,886.83
5112.102 Retirement Contribution Social Security .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 353.65 (353.65) +++ 91.50
5113 Worker's Compensation 88,905.00 .00 88,905.00 .00 .00 22,264.70 66,640.30 25 102,464.66
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 285,159.00 .00 285,159.00 .00 .00 56,213.75 228,945.25 20 241,190.52
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 6,558.00 (6,558.00) +++ 24,938.40
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 603.12 (603.12) +++ 2,334.38
5115 Unemployment Compensation 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00 .00 2,651.24 848.76 76 .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 13,357.00 .00 13,357.00 .00 .00 988.00 12,369.00 7 3,800.00
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,890.65 (1,890.65) +++ 5,942.53

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 147,748.00 .00 147,748.00 .00 .00 25,906.41 121,841.59 18 128,230.19
5122 Accrual Bank Payoff .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 30,708.81 (30,708.81) +++ 11,166.71
5199.130 Other Payroll Expenses Interfund Payroll Transfers (127,901.00) .00 (127,901.00) .00 .00 (4,336.00) (123,565.00) 3 (44,247.59)
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 22,000.00 .00 22,000.00 .00 1,717.41 3,772.04 16,510.55 25 8,733.92
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 .00
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles 58,000.00 .00 58,000.00 .00 .00 8,677.50 49,322.50 15 53,789.23
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 8,700.00 .00 8,700.00 .00 11.39 28.09 8,660.52 0 14,985.55
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 396.00 1,104.00 26 .00
5216.100 Communications General Services 6,525.00 .00 6,525.00 .00 .00 1,281.60 5,243.40 20 5,825.42
5217 Extradition/Transportation Expen .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 31.17 (31.17) +++ .00
5218.100 Advertising General 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 228.27 (28.27) 114 65.37
5220.100 Employee Development General 20,150.00 .00 20,150.00 .00 308.18 3,129.00 16,712.82 17 9,002.28
5220.110 Employee Development Education Reimb MOU 

Program
1,650.00 .00 1,650.00 .00 .00 .00 1,650.00 0 .00

5220.120 Employee Development PD Cadet Tuition Reimb 
Program

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,381.76

Program   4520 - Police Operations Totals $2,437,566.00 $0.00 $2,437,566.00 $0.00 $2,036.98 $825,144.65 $1,610,384.37 34% $2,210,480.25

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 13 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

102



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   30 - Police

Program   4530 - Public Safety Communications
5101 Salaries - Permanent 320,255.00 .00 320,255.00 .00 .00 65,285.48 254,969.52 20 244,705.12
5102 Salaries - Temporary 65,158.00 .00 65,158.00 .00 .00 12,925.84 52,232.16 20 63,043.55
5103.102 Differential Pay Out of Class .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 475.29 (475.29) +++ 2,032.09
5103.105 Differential Pay Swing/Graveyard Shift .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,391.04 (2,391.04) +++ 9,184.50
5104 Wages - PS Holiday Pay 13,928.00 .00 13,928.00 .00 .00 3,247.13 10,680.87 23 11,916.16
5105 Salaries - Overtime/FLSA 45,000.00 .00 45,000.00 .00 .00 11,627.63 33,372.37 26 44,333.39
5106.101 Incentives & Admin Leave School Incentive 9,754.00 .00 9,754.00 .00 .00 2,615.79 7,138.21 27 8,621.62
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 180.00 .00 180.00 .00 .00 90.00 90.00 50 270.00
5106.205 Incentives & Admin Leave PS Recruitment Incentive 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 500.00 .00 100 500.00
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 5,456.00 .00 5,456.00 .00 .00 1,525.87 3,930.13 28 6,586.02
5111 Medicare 6,662.00 .00 6,662.00 .00 .00 1,427.25 5,234.75 21 5,622.46
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 42,356.00 .00 42,356.00 .00 .00 21,990.99 20,365.01 52 28,519.93
5113 Worker's Compensation 14,727.00 .00 14,727.00 .00 .00 3,688.04 11,038.96 25 18,764.14
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 83,202.00 .00 83,202.00 .00 .00 20,851.10 62,350.90 25 61,431.07
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,043.60 (2,043.60) +++ 5,572.16
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 171.48 (171.48) +++ 458.40
5115 Unemployment Compensation 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 741.96 2,258.04 25 .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 4,426.00 .00 4,426.00 .00 .00 443.68 3,982.32 10 1,413.72
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 548.69 (548.69) +++ 1,516.73

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 74,453.00 .00 74,453.00 .00 .00 11,412.49 63,040.51 15 69,842.91
5199.130 Other Payroll Expenses Interfund Payroll Transfers (50,000.00) .00 (50,000.00) .00 .00 (8,340.00) (41,660.00) 17 (50,000.00)
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 2,750.00 .00 2,750.00 .00 799.00 132.44 1,818.56 34 1,493.10
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 144.00 6.00 96 144.00
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General .00 .00 .00 .00 99.99 99.99 (199.98) +++ 3,876.74
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 35,243.00 .00 35,243.00 .00 .00 .00 35,243.00 0 33,504.00
5216.100 Communications General Services 20,394.00 .00 20,394.00 .00 .00 8,354.63 12,039.37 41 21,347.36
5218.100 Advertising General 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 .00 100.00 0 112.89
5220.100 Employee Development General 7,530.00 .00 7,530.00 .00 .00 760.02 6,769.98 10 6,732.11
5220.110 Employee Development Education Reimb MOU 

Program
550.00 .00 550.00 .00 .00 .00 550.00 0 .00

5304 Furniture & Equipment 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 482.71 517.29 48 896.36
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 66,476.00 .00 66,476.00 .00 .00 31,894.73 34,581.27 48 66,100.89

Program   4530 - Public Safety Communications Totals $773,250.00 $0.00 $773,250.00 $0.00 $898.99 $197,531.87 $574,819.14 26% $668,541.42
Program   4550 - Fleet Management

5101 Salaries - Permanent 48,880.00 .00 48,880.00 .00 .00 6,582.80 42,297.20 13 55,974.58
5105 Salaries - Overtime/FLSA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 176.33 (176.33) +++ .00
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,531.44

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 14 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

103



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   30 - Police

Program   4550 - Fleet Management
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 81.39 418.61 16 422.08
5109.102 Allowances Tool Allowance 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 1,000.00 .00 100 1,000.00
5111 Medicare 731.00 .00 731.00 .00 .00 100.46 630.54 14 866.68
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 4,716.00 .00 4,716.00 .00 .00 1,777.63 2,938.37 38 7,104.02
5113 Worker's Compensation 1,431.00 .00 1,431.00 .00 .00 358.36 1,072.64 25 2,455.30
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 11,786.00 .00 11,786.00 .00 .00 438.08 11,347.92 4 12,404.99
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 202.24 (202.24) +++ 1,525.10
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 9.68 (9.68) +++ 142.20
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 44.34 (44.34) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 647.00 .00 647.00 .00 .00 38.00 609.00 6 190.00
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 60.07 (60.07) +++ 336.22

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 22,182.00 .00 22,182.00 .00 .00 5,268.14 16,913.86 24 9,080.67
5122 Accrual Bank Payoff .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 9,796.49
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 634.21 (434.21) 317 209.71
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 46,600.00 .00 46,600.00 .00 .00 28,633.93 17,966.07 61 64,826.82
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 2,400.00 .00 2,400.00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 (600.00) 125 .00
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 562.92
5210.100 Postage General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 10.43
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 .00 .00 1,242.85 1,057.15 54 12,992.64
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 27,200.00 .00 27,200.00 .00 .00 9,902.94 17,297.06 36 35,162.53
5216.100 Communications General Services 900.00 .00 900.00 .00 .00 65.30 834.70 7 603.86
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 81.82
5303 Improvements 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 .00 5,000.00 0 .00
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 4,179.56
5910.611 Transfers Out GASB 45 Retiree Medical Trust 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0 .00

Program   4550 - Fleet Management Totals $186,473.00 $0.00 $186,473.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $58,116.75 $126,856.25 32% $222,460.06
Department   30 - Police Totals $4,270,734.00 $0.00 $4,270,734.00 $0.00 $4,798.89 $1,381,754.24 $2,884,180.87 32% $3,809,040.74

Department   35 - Fire
Program   0000 - Non Program Activity

5280.100 Bad Debt Write Off Expense .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 5,914.56
Program   0000 - Non Program Activity Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $5,914.56

Program   4610 - Fire - Administrative
5101 Salaries - Permanent 23,650.00 .00 23,650.00 .00 .00 5,211.25 18,438.75 22 23,793.41
5102 Salaries - Temporary 12,121.00 .00 12,121.00 .00 .00 2,680.65 9,440.35 22 11,969.91
5111 Medicare 519.00 .00 519.00 .00 .00 125.77 393.23 24 563.85
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 17,795.00 .00 17,795.00 .00 .00 15,510.72 2,284.28 87 2,948.51

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 15 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

104



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   35 - Fire

Program   4610 - Fire - Administrative
5112.102 Retirement Contribution Social Security .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 166.20 (166.20) +++ 742.82
5113 Worker's Compensation 539.00 .00 539.00 .00 .00 134.98 404.02 25 617.52
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 3,123.00 .00 3,123.00 .00 .00 780.72 2,342.28 25 3,122.88
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 66.62 (66.62) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 339.00 .00 339.00 .00 .00 34.20 304.80 10 136.80
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 43.56 (43.56) +++ 142.58

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 62,602.00 .00 62,602.00 .00 .00 11,818.44 50,783.56 19 63,129.77
5201.100 Office Supplies General 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 80.37 919.63 8 1,105.98
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 4,505.00 .00 4,505.00 .00 .00 37.34 4,467.66 1 1,336.72
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 .00 .00 1,160.56 3,339.44 26 5,048.42
5210.100 Postage General 345.00 .00 345.00 .00 .00 12.65 332.35 4 253.89
5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 .00 .00 325.42 1,974.58 14 2,148.73
5211.137 Utilities Electric and Gas 21,000.00 .00 21,000.00 .00 .00 4,343.81 16,656.19 21 21,363.19
5211.139 Utilities Propane 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 51.18 448.82 10 358.08
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 4,672.00 .00 4,672.00 .00 .00 16.00 4,656.00 0 4,259.60
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 5,597.00 .00 5,597.00 .00 .00 3,011.91 2,585.09 54 7,935.76
5215.106 Rents and Leases Copiers 2,350.00 .00 2,350.00 .00 .00 1,235.80 1,114.20 53 7,287.57
5216.100 Communications General Services 10,850.00 .00 10,850.00 .00 .00 4,631.70 6,218.30 43 11,100.14
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 458.69 (458.69) +++ .00
5219.100 Printing General 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 .00 150.00 0 197.96
5223.105 Meals and Refreshments Emergencies and Meetings .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 87.36 (87.36) +++ 87.20
5225 Bank Fees and Charges .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 215.38
5303 Improvements 6,980.00 .00 6,980.00 .00 .00 394.98 6,585.02 6 66,863.37
5304 Furniture & Equipment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 1,669.30
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 1,196.00 .00 1,196.00 .00 .00 292.45 903.55 24 771.41

Program   4610 - Fire - Administrative Totals $186,633.00 $0.00 $186,633.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,713.33 $133,919.67 28% $239,170.75
Program   4615 - Fire - EOC

5202.100 Operating Supplies General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 .00 50.00 0 119.31
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 185.87
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 120.00 .00 120.00 .00 .00 .00 120.00 0 .00
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 5,260.00 .00 5,260.00 .00 .00 .00 5,260.00 0 .00
5216.100 Communications General Services 4,141.00 .00 4,141.00 .00 .00 1,160.31 2,980.69 28 4,312.98
5304 Furniture & Equipment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 1,682.45

Program   4615 - Fire - EOC Totals $9,571.00 $0.00 $9,571.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,160.31 $8,410.69 12% $6,300.61
Program   4630 - Fire - Suppression

5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 69,443.00 .00 69,443.00 .00 .00 69,443.00 .00 100 .00

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 16 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

105



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   35 - Fire

Program   4630 - Fire - Suppression
5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 197,951.00 .00 197,951.00 .00 .00 32,341.26 165,609.74 16 197,569.53
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 14,200.00 .00 14,200.00 .00 .00 1,740.21 12,459.79 12 11,670.65
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00 .00 93.85 3,406.15 3 1,805.72
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles 27,000.00 .00 27,000.00 .00 .00 3,635.37 23,364.63 13 24,632.67
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 2,965,374.00 .00 2,965,374.00 .00 .00 .00 2,965,374.00 0 2,815,570.75
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 13,960.00 .00 13,960.00 .00 .00 .00 13,960.00 0 7,860.24
5220.100 Employee Development General 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 650.00
5269.135 Emergency Incident Costs Fire Related 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 38.28 1,461.72 3 271.32
5304 Furniture & Equipment 27,010.00 .00 27,010.00 .00 .00 .00 27,010.00 0 30,034.88
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 114,265.00 .00 114,265.00 .00 .00 114,264.53 .47 100 114,264.53

Program   4630 - Fire - Suppression Totals $3,435,203.00 $0.00 $3,435,203.00 $0.00 $0.00 $221,556.50 $3,213,646.50 6% $3,204,330.29
Program   4640 - Fire - Volunteer Program

5118 Volunteer Benefits 9,567.00 .00 9,567.00 .00 .00 527.09 9,039.91 6 9,033.35
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 1,680.00 .00 1,680.00 .00 .00 .00 1,680.00 0 537.22
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 5,500.00 .00 5,500.00 .00 .00 (90.00) 5,590.00 -2 4,112.00
5220.100 Employee Development General 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 65.00
5223.105 Meals and Refreshments Emergencies and Meetings .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 35.00

Program   4640 - Fire - Volunteer Program Totals $17,247.00 $0.00 $17,247.00 $0.00 $0.00 $437.09 $16,809.91 3% $13,782.57
Department   35 - Fire Totals $3,648,654.00 $0.00 $3,648,654.00 $0.00 $0.00 $275,867.23 $3,372,786.77 8% $3,469,498.78

Department   40 - Community Development
Program   4720 - CDD Planning 

5101 Salaries - Permanent 73,608.00 .00 73,608.00 .00 .00 16,065.11 57,542.89 22 59,485.37
5102 Salaries - Temporary .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 85.32 (85.32) +++ 5,530.06
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 1,354.00 .00 1,354.00 .00 .00 .00 1,354.00 0 1,471.50
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 12.60 37.40 25 18.00
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 552.00 .00 552.00 .00 .00 140.00 412.00 25 600.00
5109.101 Allowances Boot Allowance 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 .00 450.00 (150.00) 150 300.00
5111 Medicare 1,095.00 .00 1,095.00 .00 .00 200.64 894.36 18 868.53
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 7,927.00 .00 7,927.00 .00 .00 6,405.41 1,521.59 81 5,510.59
5113 Worker's Compensation 1,482.00 .00 1,482.00 .00 .00 371.13 1,110.87 25 1,707.42
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 10,464.00 .00 10,464.00 .00 .00 3,271.14 7,192.86 31 15,949.80
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 367.31 (367.31) +++ 1,954.22
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 30.02 (30.02) +++ 180.10
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 111.19 (111.19) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 871.00 .00 871.00 .00 .00 79.47 791.53 9 269.13
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 96.92 (96.92) +++ 225.75

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 17 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

106



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   40 - Community Development

Program   4720 - CDD Planning 
5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 15,354.00 .00 15,354.00 .00 .00 2,482.18 12,871.82 16 14,686.90
5201.100 Office Supplies General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 67.96 (67.96) +++ 78.61
5202.100 Operating Supplies General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 107.25 (107.25) +++ 180.64
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 143.05 (143.05) +++ 885.25
5210.100 Postage General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 141.91 (141.91) +++ 696.97
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 53.55
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 6,530.74 (6,530.74) +++ 7,124.44
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 100.97 (100.97) +++ 604.88

Program   4720 - CDD Planning Totals $113,057.00 $0.00 $113,057.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,260.32 $75,796.68 33% $118,381.71
Program   4780 - CDD - Waste Management

5101 Salaries - Permanent 30,778.00 .00 30,778.00 .00 .00 6,835.11 23,942.89 22 31,749.29
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 1,001.00 .00 1,001.00 .00 .00 .00 1,001.00 0 1,000.62
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 86.00 .00 86.00 .00 .00 21.60 64.40 25 72.90
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 408.00 .00 408.00 .00 .00 102.00 306.00 25 408.00
5111 Medicare 467.00 .00 467.00 .00 .00 88.57 378.43 19 434.38
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 5,194.00 .00 5,194.00 .00 .00 629.79 4,564.21 12 3,939.39
5113 Worker's Compensation 239.00 .00 239.00 .00 .00 59.85 179.15 25 281.32
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 5,478.00 .00 5,478.00 .00 .00 1,204.88 4,273.12 22 5,054.51
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 143.28 (143.28) +++ 579.51
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 14.76 (14.76) +++ 61.76
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 48.29 (48.29) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 321.00 .00 321.00 .00 .00 28.31 292.69 9 118.53
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 56.56 (56.56) +++ 205.47

5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 .00 .00 326.46 1,973.54 14 2,030.00
Program   4780 - CDD - Waste Management Totals $46,272.00 $0.00 $46,272.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,559.46 $36,712.54 21% $45,935.68
Department   40 - Community Development Totals $159,329.00 $0.00 $159,329.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,819.78 $112,509.22 29% $164,317.39

Department   45 - Public Works
Program   4740 - Public Works - Engineering

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 12,814.00 .00 12,814.00 .00 .00 2,096.14 10,717.86 16 11,871.56
5199.130 Other Payroll Expenses Interfund Payroll Transfers .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 3,366.78
5210.100 Postage General 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 16.73 133.27 11 133.23
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 1,150.00 1,850.00 38 3,514.00
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 2,177.00 .00 2,177.00 .00 .00 2,301.91 (124.91) 106 3,780.93
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 144.96 (144.96) +++ .00
5220.100 Employee Development General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 116.00

Program   4740 - Public Works - Engineering Totals $18,141.00 $0.00 $18,141.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,709.74 $12,431.26 31% $22,782.50

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 18 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

107



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   1010 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   45 - Public Works

Program   4745 - Paradise Community Park
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 2,375.00 .00 2,375.00 .00 .00 20.71 2,354.29 1 2,769.69
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 400.00 .00 400.00 .00 .00 114.61 285.39 29 826.07
5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 3,150.00 .00 3,150.00 .00 .00 512.34 2,637.66 16 2,768.38
5211.137 Utilities Electric and Gas 3,700.00 .00 3,700.00 .00 .00 632.49 3,067.51 17 3,556.84
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 685.00 .00 685.00 .00 .00 80.00 605.00 12 380.00
5216.100 Communications General Services 205.00 .00 205.00 .00 .00 53.44 151.56 26 202.16

Program   4745 - Paradise Community Park Totals $10,515.00 $0.00 $10,515.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,413.59 $9,101.41 13% $10,503.14
Program   4747 - Public Facilities

5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 250.00 .00 250.00 .00 .00 .00 250.00 0 220.84
5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 4,800.00 .00 4,800.00 .00 .00 911.17 3,888.83 19 4,467.17
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 .00 .00 300.00 0 200.00

Program   4747 - Public Facilities Totals $5,350.00 $0.00 $5,350.00 $0.00 $0.00 $911.17 $4,438.83 17% $4,888.01
Department   45 - Public Works Totals $34,006.00 $0.00 $34,006.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,034.50 $25,971.50 24% $38,173.65

EXPENSE TOTALS $11,440,547.00 $6,883.00 $11,447,430.00 $0.00 $7,869.09 $2,344,886.90 $9,094,674.01 21% $9,946,466.97

Fund   1010 - General Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 11,468,422.00 .00 11,468,422.00 .00 .00 182,179.13 11,286,242.87 2 10,999,495.94
EXPENSE TOTALS 11,440,547.00 6,883.00 11,447,430.00 .00 7,869.09 2,344,886.90 9,094,674.01 21 9,946,466.97

Fund   1010 - General Fund Totals $27,875.00 ($6,883.00) $20,992.00 $0.00 ($7,869.09) ($2,162,707.77) $2,191,568.86 $1,053,028.97

Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 11,468,422.00 .00 11,468,422.00 .00 .00 182,179.13 11,286,242.87 2 10,999,495.94
EXPENSE TOTALS 11,440,547.00 6,883.00 11,447,430.00 .00 7,869.09 2,344,886.90 9,094,674.01 21 9,946,466.97

Grand Totals $27,875.00 ($6,883.00) $20,992.00 $0.00 ($7,869.09) ($2,162,707.77) $2,191,568.86 $1,053,028.97

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:09:25 PM Page 19 of 19

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

108



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   2030 - Building Safety & Waste Wtr Svcs

REVENUE
Department   40 - Community Development

Program   4730 - Building and Onsite Inspections
3380.102 Local Government Revenue Fines and Citations Onsite 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00 .00 2,500.00 12,500.00 17 21,508.90
3380.103 Local Government Revenue Fines and Citations Fire .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 3,000.00
3380.107 Local Government Revenue Building Safety .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 16,055.00
3401.301 CDD Building Plan Check Fees 45,080.00 .00 45,080.00 .00 .00 23,541.14 21,538.86 52 67,321.07
3401.302 CDD Building Construction Review-Bldg Permit 172,822.00 .00 172,822.00 .00 .00 75,095.11 97,726.89 43 243,732.58
3401.306 CDD Building Development Permit/DIF Est Req 170.00 .00 170.00 .00 .00 84.77 85.23 50 423.85
3401.320 CDD Building Permit Valuation Surcharge 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 164.00 (114.00) 328 182.00
3404.116 Onsite Land Use Review 7,500.00 .00 7,500.00 .00 .00 1,380.36 6,119.64 18 8,446.50
3404.117 Onsite Repairs to Maintain Existing Use 80,000.00 .00 80,000.00 .00 .00 22,333.61 57,666.39 28 92,089.55
3404.118 Onsite New Installation Standard System 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 941.56 4,058.44 19 5,178.58
3404.119 Onsite Permit: Alteration/Expanded Use 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 259.74 740.26 26 519.48
3404.120 Onsite Review for Land Division 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 451.20 48.80 90 235.38
3404.125 Onsite Escrow Clearance 49,000.00 .00 49,000.00 .00 .00 14,616.77 34,383.23 30 46,141.68
3404.126 Onsite Building Permit Clearance 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00 .00 2,071.42 1,928.58 52 4,770.71
3404.127 Onsite Operating Permit/Annual 394,000.00 .00 394,000.00 .00 .00 5,987.55 388,012.45 2 396,148.12
3404.128 Onsite Construct Install Permit Renewal .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 543.20
3404.137 Onsite Alternative Systems Review 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 1,673.95 1,326.05 56 3,095.38
3404.138 Onsite Abandonment of Septic System 1,800.00 .00 1,800.00 .00 .00 .00 1,800.00 0 1,168.83
3404.150 Onsite Annual Evaluator License Fee .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 1,231.22
3404.151 Onsite Extension Req for Eval or Repair 1,300.00 .00 1,300.00 .00 .00 317.46 982.54 24 1,327.56
3410.150 Administrative Services Late Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ .75
3422.337 Fire Code Enforcement Inspection 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 4,015.20 984.80 80 10,213.56
3422.346 Fire Administrative Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 468.00
3422.368 Fire Permit Fees 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00 .00 1,521.00 979.00 61 5,247.00
3610.100 Interest Revenue Investments .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 574.31
3610.150 Interest Revenue Interfund Loans .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 970.90
3902.100 Miscellaneous Revenue General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 4,944.45
3902.110 Miscellaneous Revenue Cash Over and Short .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ (.01)

Program   4730 - Building and Onsite Inspections Totals $787,722.00 $0.00 $787,722.00 $0.00 $0.00 $156,954.84 $630,767.16 20% $935,538.55
Department   40 - Community Development Totals $787,722.00 $0.00 $787,722.00 $0.00 $0.00 $156,954.84 $630,767.16 20% $935,538.55

REVENUE TOTALS $787,722.00 $0.00 $787,722.00 $0.00 $0.00 $156,954.84 $630,767.16 20% $935,538.55
EXPENSE

Department   40 - Community Development
Program   4730 - Building and Onsite Inspections

5101 Salaries - Permanent 389,480.00 .00 389,480.00 .00 .00 86,132.97 303,347.03 22 369,706.23
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 12,950.00 .00 12,950.00 .00 .00 .00 12,950.00 0 12,360.00
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 1,509.00 .00 1,509.00 .00 .00 138.60 1,370.40 9 322.20

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:10:15 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

109



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   2030 - Building Safety & Waste Wtr Svcs

EXPENSE
Department   40 - Community Development

Program   4730 - Building and Onsite Inspections
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 1,536.00 .00 1,536.00 .00 .00 378.00 1,158.00 25 1,392.00
5109.101 Allowances Boot Allowance 600.00 .00 600.00 .00 .00 650.00 (50.00) 108 300.00
5111 Medicare 5,230.00 .00 5,230.00 .00 .00 1,209.57 4,020.43 23 5,353.57
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 66,554.00 .00 66,554.00 .00 .00 41,889.26 24,664.74 63 43,987.87
5113 Worker's Compensation 8,474.00 .00 8,474.00 .00 .00 2,122.37 6,351.63 25 6,946.39
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 73,987.00 .00 73,987.00 .00 .00 13,585.64 60,401.36 18 55,451.82
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,456.70 (2,456.70) +++ 9,101.51
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 142.58 (142.58) +++ 542.00
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 645.71 (645.71) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 4,315.00 .00 4,315.00 .00 .00 376.54 3,938.46 9 1,473.26
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 692.02 (692.02) +++ 2,190.92

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 43,862.00 .00 43,862.00 .00 .00 5,528.92 38,333.08 13 43,163.97
5201.100 Office Supplies General 350.00 .00 350.00 .00 .00 122.80 227.20 35 221.70
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 193.87 1,306.13 13 1,574.76
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00 .00 1,420.50 1,079.50 57 2,505.03
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles 2,700.00 .00 2,700.00 .00 .00 374.02 2,325.98 14 2,564.26
5210.100 Postage General 2,100.00 .00 2,100.00 .00 .00 246.53 1,853.47 12 2,166.87
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 5,500.00 .00 5,500.00 .00 .00 157.00 5,343.00 3 5,276.00
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 29,686.00 .00 29,686.00 .00 .00 32,653.68 (2,967.68) 110 29,685.16
5216.100 Communications General Services 2,350.00 .00 2,350.00 .00 .00 556.55 1,793.45 24 2,022.05
5218.100 Advertising General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 46.11 (46.11) +++ .00
5220.100 Employee Development General 2,650.00 .00 2,650.00 .00 .00 150.00 2,500.00 6 1,675.00
5280.100 Bad Debt Write Off Expense .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 209.95
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 1,215.00 101.00 1,316.00 .00 .00 158.91 1,157.09 12 582.67
5910.010 Transfers Out To General Fund 160,436.00 .00 160,436.00 .00 .00 .00 160,436.00 0 137,713.00
5910.611 Transfers Out GASB 45 Retiree Medical Trust 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 .00 5,000.00 0 .00

Program   4730 - Building and Onsite Inspections Totals $824,484.00 $101.00 $824,585.00 $0.00 $0.00 $192,028.85 $632,556.15 23% $738,488.19
Department   40 - Community Development Totals $824,484.00 $101.00 $824,585.00 $0.00 $0.00 $192,028.85 $632,556.15 23% $738,488.19

EXPENSE TOTALS $824,484.00 $101.00 $824,585.00 $0.00 $0.00 $192,028.85 $632,556.15 23% $738,488.19

Fund   2030 - Building Safety & Waste Wtr Svcs Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 787,722.00 .00 787,722.00 .00 .00 156,954.84 630,767.16 20 935,538.55
EXPENSE TOTALS 824,484.00 101.00 824,585.00 .00 .00 192,028.85 632,556.15 23 738,488.19

Fund   2030 - Building Safety & Waste Wtr Svcs Totals ($36,762.00) ($101.00) ($36,863.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($35,074.01) ($1,788.99) $197,050.36

Grand Totals

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:10:15 PM Page 2 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

110



REVENUE TOTALS 787,722.00 .00 787,722.00 .00 .00 156,954.84 630,767.16 20 935,538.55
EXPENSE TOTALS 824,484.00 101.00 824,585.00 .00 .00 192,028.85 632,556.15 23 738,488.19

Grand Totals ($36,762.00) ($101.00) ($36,863.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($35,074.01) ($1,788.99) $197,050.36

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:10:15 PM Page 3 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

111



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   2070 - Animal Control 

REVENUE
Department   30 - Police

Program   4540 - Police - Animal Control
3120.330 Other Taxes Voter Appointed Parcel Tax 132,362.00 .00 132,362.00 .00 .00 .00 132,362.00 0 132,361.50
3380.105 Local Government Revenue Fines and Citations Animal 

Cntrl
8,500.00 .00 8,500.00 .00 .00 3,123.00 5,377.00 37 13,563.00

3410.113 Administrative Services Document Coyping 25.00 .00 25.00 .00 .00 .00 25.00 0 80.25
3410.150 Administrative Services Late Fees 1,100.00 .00 1,100.00 .00 .00 367.27 732.73 33 1,161.23
3455.200 Animal Control Adoption Fees 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 .00 .00 1,379.00 3,121.00 31 4,195.00
3455.205 Animal Control Surrender/Euth/Disp Fees 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 429.17 1,070.83 29 1,354.56
3455.210 Animal Control Dog Licenses 22,000.00 .00 22,000.00 .00 .00 5,184.42 16,815.58 24 22,005.71
3455.215 Animal Control Dangerous/Wild Animal Permit 71.00 .00 71.00 .00 .00 .00 71.00 0 213.63
3455.225 Animal Control Impound/Quarantine Fees 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00 .00 1,964.66 5,035.34 28 12,160.98
3455.226 Animal Control Impound Unaltered State Fee 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 315.00 185.00 63 1,125.00
3610.100 Interest Revenue Investments .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 25.11
3901.100 Refunds & Reimbursements Miscellaneous 11,900.00 .00 11,900.00 .00 .00 797.67 11,102.33 7 9,754.02
3902.100 Miscellaneous Revenue General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 (3.00) 3.00 +++ (.38)
3910.811 Transfers In From Animal Control Donations 15,817.00 .00 15,817.00 .00 .00 2,637.00 13,180.00 17 .00

Program   4540 - Police - Animal Control Totals $205,275.00 $0.00 $205,275.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,194.19 $189,080.81 8% $197,999.61
Department   30 - Police Totals $205,275.00 $0.00 $205,275.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,194.19 $189,080.81 8% $197,999.61

REVENUE TOTALS $205,275.00 $0.00 $205,275.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,194.19 $189,080.81 8% $197,999.61
EXPENSE

Department   30 - Police
Program   4540 - Police - Animal Control

5101 Salaries - Permanent 63,078.00 .00 63,078.00 .00 .00 13,137.52 49,940.48 21 56,924.50
5102 Salaries - Temporary 21,382.00 .00 21,382.00 .00 .00 4,898.37 16,483.63 23 23,392.24
5103.102 Differential Pay Out of Class .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 293.05
5104 Wages - PS Holiday Pay 2,893.00 .00 2,893.00 .00 .00 426.24 2,466.76 15 1,666.17
5105 Salaries - Overtime/FLSA 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 2,680.53 (2,180.53) 536 7,047.82
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 180.00 (180.00) +++ 180.00
5109.100 Allowances Uniform Allowance 1,565.00 .00 1,565.00 .00 .00 298.44 1,266.56 19 1,193.76
5111 Medicare 1,293.00 .00 1,293.00 .00 .00 318.46 974.54 25 1,335.24
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 9,057.00 .00 9,057.00 .00 .00 4,439.23 4,617.77 49 5,329.34
5112.102 Retirement Contribution Social Security .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 306.78 (306.78) +++ 1,484.93
5113 Worker's Compensation 6,253.00 .00 6,253.00 .00 .00 1,566.17 4,686.83 25 7,565.84
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 16,604.00 .00 16,604.00 .00 .00 2,277.06 14,326.94 14 9,152.29
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 606.74 (606.74) +++ 514.90
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 14.52 (14.52) +++ 57.77
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 165.67 (165.67) +++ 3,094.00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 1,052.00 .00 1,052.00 .00 .00 99.78 952.22 9 398.17

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:10:54 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

112



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   2070 - Animal Control 

EXPENSE
Department   30 - Police

Program   4540 - Police - Animal Control
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 105.80 (105.80) +++ 333.37

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 14,622.00 .00 14,622.00 .00 .00 2,424.28 12,197.72 17 14,386.79
5201.100 Office Supplies General 250.00 .00 250.00 .00 .00 149.26 100.74 60 167.94
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 7,290.00 .00 7,290.00 .00 .00 475.24 6,814.76 7 5,293.37
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 400.00 .00 400.00 .00 .00 231.66 168.34 58 665.55
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 180.00 .00 180.00 .00 .00 .00 180.00 0 90.00
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00 .00 270.58 3,229.42 8 2,354.75
5210.100 Postage General 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 .49 99.51 0 73.09
5211.135 Utilities Water and Sewer 700.00 .00 700.00 .00 .00 235.15 464.85 34 714.77
5211.137 Utilities Electric and Gas 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00 .00 810.51 3,189.49 20 3,461.84
5211.139 Utilities Propane 1,070.00 .00 1,070.00 .00 .00 .00 1,070.00 0 741.62
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 9,668.00 .00 9,668.00 .00 .00 987.98 8,680.02 10 9,305.95
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 980.00 .00 980.00 .00 .00 235.00 745.00 24 1,535.24
5215.100 Rents and Leases Miscellaneous 1.00 .00 1.00 .00 .00 .00 1.00 0 1.00
5216.100 Communications General Services 1,620.00 .00 1,620.00 .00 .00 419.64 1,200.36 26 1,430.01
5218.100 Advertising General 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 21.21 78.79 21 43.79
5219.100 Printing General 395.00 .00 395.00 .00 .00 .00 395.00 0 318.47
5220.100 Employee Development General 2,280.00 .00 2,280.00 .00 .00 .00 2,280.00 0 255.00
5223.101 Meals and Refreshments Employee Meals-MOU 

Overtime
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 360.00 (360.00) +++ .00

5225 Bank Fees and Charges 950.00 .00 950.00 .00 .00 156.30 793.70 16 926.74
5280.100 Bad Debt Write Off Expense .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 1,979.11
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 187.00 34.00 221.00 .00 .00 .00 221.00 0 .00
5910.010 Transfers Out To General Fund 38,933.00 .00 38,933.00 .00 .00 .00 38,933.00 0 29,199.00

Program   4540 - Police - Animal Control Totals $210,903.00 $34.00 $210,937.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,298.61 $172,638.39 18% $192,907.42
Department   30 - Police Totals $210,903.00 $34.00 $210,937.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,298.61 $172,638.39 18% $192,907.42

EXPENSE TOTALS $210,903.00 $34.00 $210,937.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,298.61 $172,638.39 18% $192,907.42

Fund   2070 - Animal Control Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 205,275.00 .00 205,275.00 .00 .00 16,194.19 189,080.81 8 197,999.61
EXPENSE TOTALS 210,903.00 34.00 210,937.00 .00 .00 38,298.61 172,638.39 18 192,907.42

Fund   2070 - Animal Control Totals ($5,628.00) ($34.00) ($5,662.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($22,104.42) $16,442.42 $5,092.19

Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 205,275.00 .00 205,275.00 .00 .00 16,194.19 189,080.81 8 197,999.61
EXPENSE TOTALS 210,903.00 34.00 210,937.00 .00 .00 38,298.61 172,638.39 18 192,907.42

Grand Totals ($5,628.00) ($34.00) ($5,662.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($22,104.42) $16,442.42 $5,092.19

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:10:54 PM Page 2 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

113



Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:10:54 PM Page 3 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

114



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   2120 - State Gas Tax 

REVENUE
Department   45 - Public Works

Program   4750 - Public Works - Streets Maint.
3355.001 State Gas Tax Section 2106 83,519.00 .00 83,519.00 .00 .00 18,969.01 64,549.99 23 122,873.43
3355.002 State Gas Tax Section 2107 241,166.00 .00 241,166.00 .00 .00 24,997.58 216,168.42 10 216,951.46
3355.003 State Gas Tax Section 2107.5 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00 .00 6,000.00 .00 100 12,000.00
3355.005 State Gas Tax Section 2105 152,686.00 .00 152,686.00 .00 .00 24,332.04 128,353.96 16 158,419.25
3355.007 State Gas Tax Section 2103 121,053.00 .00 121,053.00 .00 .00 46,511.65 74,541.35 38 282,779.45
3410.150 Administrative Services Late Fees 150.00 .00 150.00 .00 .00 130.52 19.48 87 246.13
3610.100 Interest Revenue Investments .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 288.67
3901.100 Refunds & Reimbursements Miscellaneous 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00 2,000.00 0 4,208.66
3901.140 Refunds & Reimbursements Negligence Cost Recovery 

Fees
4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 .00 .00 (46.34) 4,546.34 -1 3,141.32

3902.100 Miscellaneous Revenue General 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 808.84
3910.121 Transfers In From RSTP Fund 300,000.00 .00 300,000.00 .00 .00 .00 300,000.00 0 298,180.93
3910.132 Transfers In From HSIP Grant 51,624.00 .00 51,624.00 .00 .00 .00 51,624.00 0 52,194.45
3910.133 Transfers In From ATP Grant 61,000.00 .00 61,000.00 .00 .00 .00 61,000.00 0 11,710.26

Program   4750 - Public Works - Streets Maint. Totals $1,024,198.00 $0.00 $1,024,198.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120,894.46 $903,303.54 12% $1,163,802.85
Department   45 - Public Works Totals $1,024,198.00 $0.00 $1,024,198.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120,894.46 $903,303.54 12% $1,163,802.85

REVENUE TOTALS $1,024,198.00 $0.00 $1,024,198.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120,894.46 $903,303.54 12% $1,163,802.85
EXPENSE

Department   45 - Public Works
Program   4750 - Public Works - Streets Maint.

5101 Salaries - Permanent 465,470.00 .00 465,470.00 .00 .00 94,105.41 371,364.59 20 450,421.84
5103.101 Differential Pay On Call .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 4,587.00 (4,587.00) +++ 20,595.00
5105 Salaries - Overtime/FLSA 7,500.00 .00 7,500.00 .00 .00 409.79 7,090.21 5 8,107.50
5106.100 Incentives & Admin Leave Administrative Leave 9,458.00 .00 9,458.00 .00 .00 .00 9,458.00 0 5,821.61
5106.200 Incentives & Admin Leave Gym Reimbursement 250.00 .00 250.00 .00 .00 187.20 62.80 75 233.10
5107 Car Allowance/Mileage 2,664.00 .00 2,664.00 .00 .00 673.00 1,991.00 25 1,366.25
5109.101 Allowances Boot Allowance 2,079.00 .00 2,079.00 .00 .00 3,300.00 (1,221.00) 159 2,100.00
5111 Medicare 6,116.00 .00 6,116.00 .00 .00 1,177.93 4,938.07 19 5,810.76
5112.101 Retirement Contribution PERS 62,502.00 .00 62,502.00 .00 .00 35,465.40 27,036.60 57 49,706.07
5113 Worker's Compensation 49,696.00 .00 49,696.00 .00 .00 12,438.70 37,257.30 25 60,067.96
5114.101 Health Insurance Medical 73,235.00 .00 73,235.00 .00 .00 18,648.11 54,586.89 25 68,162.74
5114.102 Health Insurance Dental .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,248.91 (2,248.91) +++ 10,750.67
5114.103 Health Insurance Vision .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 235.72 (235.72) +++ 1,066.61
5115 Unemployment Compensation .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 765.61 (765.61) +++ .00
5116.101 Life and Disability Insurance Life & Disab. 5,168.00 .00 5,168.00 .00 .00 501.77 4,666.23 10 1,952.72
5116.102 Life and Disability Insurance Long Term/Short Term 

Disability
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 765.12 (765.12) +++ 2,616.07

5119.100 Retiree Costs Medical Insurance 31,360.00 .00 31,360.00 .00 .00 5,894.00 25,466.00 19 21,784.67

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:08:43 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

115



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   2120 - State Gas Tax 

EXPENSE
Department   45 - Public Works

Program   4750 - Public Works - Streets Maint.
5122 Accrual Bank Payoff .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 3,383.05
5199.130 Other Payroll Expenses Interfund Payroll Transfers .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ (3,366.78)
5201.100 Office Supplies General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 70.57 (20.57) 141 167.93
5202.100 Operating Supplies General 1,700.00 .00 1,700.00 .00 .00 1,626.29 73.71 96 3,400.60
5203.100 Repairs and Maint Supplies General 73,450.00 .00 73,450.00 .00 .00 17,264.41 56,185.59 24 33,821.99
5204 Subscriptions and Code Books 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 .00 1,014.03 (714.03) 338 240.95
5209.101 Auto Fuel Expense Town Vehicles 22,000.00 .00 22,000.00 .00 .00 3,151.30 18,848.70 14 20,041.55
5210.100 Postage General 10.00 .00 10.00 .00 .00 29.03 (19.03) 290 241.06
5211.137 Utilities Electric and Gas 28,000.00 .00 28,000.00 .00 .00 5,887.98 22,112.02 21 33,222.76
5211.139 Utilities Propane 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 84.06
5213.100 Professional/Contract Services General 2,100.00 .00 2,100.00 .00 .00 25,000.00 (22,900.00) 1190 1,132.75
5214.100 Repair and Maint Service General 99,400.00 .00 99,400.00 .00 120.00 6,852.73 92,427.27 7 84,077.07
5215.100 Rents and Leases Miscellaneous .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,919.28
5215.131 Rents and Leases Street Maintenance Equipment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,888.27 (2,888.27) +++ .00
5216.100 Communications General Services 4,695.00 .00 4,695.00 .00 .00 1,155.13 3,539.87 25 4,438.64
5218.100 Advertising General 700.00 .00 700.00 .00 .00 503.60 196.40 72 1,258.13
5219.100 Printing General 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 500.00 0 1,008.33
5220.100 Employee Development General 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 .00 3,000.00 0 1,270.87
5223.101 Meals and Refreshments Employee Meals-MOU 

Overtime
75.00 .00 75.00 .00 .00 .00 75.00 0 .00

5280.100 Bad Debt Write Off Expense .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,712.43
5304 Furniture & Equipment 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00 .00 2,555.68 (555.68) 128 4,940.13
5501 Debt Service Payment - Principal 27,678.00 53.00 27,731.00 .00 .00 887.08 26,843.92 3 32,794.90
5910.010 Transfers Out To General Fund 167,031.00 .00 167,031.00 .00 .00 .00 167,031.00 0 166,681.00
5910.100 Transfers Out To Capital Projects 69,004.00 .00 69,004.00 .00 .00 .00 69,004.00 0 40,134.84

Program   4750 - Public Works - Streets Maint. Totals $1,218,191.00 $53.00 $1,218,244.00 $0.00 $120.00 $250,289.77 $967,834.23 21% $1,145,169.11
Department   45 - Public Works Totals $1,218,191.00 $53.00 $1,218,244.00 $0.00 $120.00 $250,289.77 $967,834.23 21% $1,145,169.11

EXPENSE TOTALS $1,218,191.00 $53.00 $1,218,244.00 $0.00 $120.00 $250,289.77 $967,834.23 21% $1,145,169.11

Fund   2120 - State Gas Tax Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 1,024,198.00 .00 1,024,198.00 .00 .00 120,894.46 903,303.54 12 1,163,802.85
EXPENSE TOTALS 1,218,191.00 53.00 1,218,244.00 .00 120.00 250,289.77 967,834.23 21 1,145,169.11

Fund   2120 - State Gas Tax Totals ($193,993.00) ($53.00) ($194,046.00) $0.00 ($120.00) ($129,395.31) ($64,530.69) $18,633.74

Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 1,024,198.00 .00 1,024,198.00 .00 .00 120,894.46 903,303.54 12 1,163,802.85
EXPENSE TOTALS 1,218,191.00 53.00 1,218,244.00 .00 120.00 250,289.77 967,834.23 21 1,145,169.11

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:08:43 PM Page 2 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

116



Grand Totals ($193,993.00) ($53.00) ($194,046.00) $0.00 ($120.00) ($129,395.31) ($64,530.69) $18,633.74

Run by Gina Will on 10/02/2015 01:08:43 PM Page 3 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 06/30/16

Exclude Rollup Account

117



 

1 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: October 13, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 7(c) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT:   American Way Property Exchange Agreement 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  
1. Approve the proposed property exchange agreement relating to Town property on 

American Way; and, 
2. Adopt the attached Resolution No. `15-___, ”A Resolution of the Town Council of the 

Town of Paradise authorizing an exchange agreement between the Town of Paradise 
and MC Horning Jr.”; and, 

3. Authorize the Town Manager to execute an agreement with L&L Surveying of Paradise, 
CA to perform Lot Line Adjustment and Record of Survey. 
 

Background:  
 
The Town of Paradise owns APN 055-180-076-000, a 5.19 acre parcel located at the northeast 
corner of American Way and Clark Road, further referenced as Parcel A. Parcel A is the current 
home to the Town’s Animal Control (925 American Way) and Public Works Corporation Yard 
(933 American Way) facilities. Furthermore, portions of this property are used by Northern 
Recycling and Waste Services (NRWS) for green waste collection and processing.  
 
MC Horning Jr. currently owns APN 055-180-077, a 5.00 acre parcel located on the north side 
at the end of American Way, further referenced as Parcel B. This parcel has a developed 
building which formerly housed Waste Management. This building has vehicle maintenance 
bays, covered storage, and office space.  
 
The Town of Paradise has long desired improved facilities for its Public Works Corporation Yard 
and vehicle repair shop. The Town of Paradise approached MC Horning Jr. to determine the 
interest and feasibility of a property exchange, which involves portions of Parcel A and Parcel B.  
 
This exchange would also involve APN 055-180-049, a 20.35 acre undeveloped parcel just 
north of Parcel A and Parcel B, further referenced Parcel C. Parcel C is also owned by MC 
Horning Jr.  
 
A map of the subject parcels is shown in Attachment 1. 
 
Analysis:  
 
Following several periods of negotiations with MC Horning Jr, staff is presenting a proposed 
property exchange agreement, included as Attachment 2 of this report. The agreement calls for 
a lot line adjustment with a merger to account for the modification in property boundaries. The 
Town’s property, Parcel A, would be modified to include the current corporation yard, animal 
control and add the former waste management building. MC Horning Jr.’s property (Parcel B 
and Parcel C) would merge into one property including the remaining portion of Parcel B while 
acquiring the majority of the northeast corner of Clark and American Way from the Town of 
Paradise.  
 

 

118



 

2 

 

A map of the final parcel layout is shown in Attachment 3.  
 
Due to the different values between Parcel A and Parcel B, as Parcel B has the developed 
structure, the Town of Paradise is proposing to provide a fee waiver relating to building 
inspections and plan checking for potential development of the new Parcel C. This waiver 
amount was calculated from price per acre of undeveloped land determined from a formal 
appraisal of Parcel A. The waiver would not include development impact fees. The total fee 
waiver shall not exceed $73,500 for any future development relating to the resulting Parcel C.  
 
Lastly, the agreement for closing of escrow has the following five conditions:  
 

(1) The performance by each party of all matters required to be performed by that 
party under this Agreement 

 
(2) Parcel A requires a lot line adjustment with Parcel C and survey to locate the 

centerline of the drainage draw as the new eastern boundary of Parcel A and 
shall be approved by Town before it can be conveyed to MC Horning Jr. 

 
(3) Parcel B requires a lot line adjustment and survey to locate the existing fence line 

east of the building. The lot line adjustment shall be between Parcels A and B 
and a merger between the remainder of Parcel B with Parcel C in compliance 
with Paradise Municipal Code Chapter 16.13 and Government Code Section 
66451.11.   

 
(4) American Way is a Town public roadway pursuant to Paradise Municipal Code 

Section 16.09.010 – Dedication of Streets, Alleys and Other Public Rights-of-
Way/Easements. 

 
(5) To the extent permitted by law, any future extension of American Way benefiting 

Parcel C along the centerline of the private easement shown in Exhibit D, Town 
shall not require it to be developed beyond a 30’ total width on the north half of 
such easement. 

 
If approved, staff will utilize the services of L&L Surveying to: 
 

A. Perform field survey and mapping of improvements along proposed property lines for 
review; 

B. Prepare Legal Descriptions and Plats for Lot Line Adjustment;  
C. Order Title reports for Lot Line Adjustments from Mid Valley Title 
D. Set final lot corners only around new Town of Paradise property boundary and file 

Record of Survey map with the Butte County Surveyor 
 
If escrow closes, staff proposes utilizing the newly acquired building to house the Public Works 
Department Street Maintenance Division while allowing for the Lead Mechanic to utilize the 
maintenance bays for larger vehicles. 

 
Financial Impact:  
 
The Town of Paradise has a quotation from L&L Surveying of Paradise to perform the lot line 
adjustment and record of survey in the amount of $7,400.00. Per the agreement these costs are 
to be shared 50/50 between parties, meaning $3,700.00 would be attributed to Public Works 
Department gas tax funds. Future costs are expected to bring the building to a functioning 
standard. These costs include a security system and infrastructure upgrades for telephone and 
internet.  
 
 

119



TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 

AUTHORIZING AN EXCHANGE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

TOWN OF PARADISE AND M. C. HORNING, JR. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise and M. C. Horning, Jr. have met and negotiated through their 

respective representatives the terms of an Exchange Agreement relating to parcels that each owns 

located near American Way, Paradise, California; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to proceed with the Exchange Agreement, it is necessary to obtain Town 

Council approval. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF PARADISE AS FOLLOWS:  

 Section 1.    The Town Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Exchange Agreement 

between the Town of Paradise and M. C. Horning, Jr. substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A.  

 

 Section 2.  Before any of the parcels covered by the Exchange Agreement are developed, 

they will be subject to compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise, County of Butte, 

State of California, on this ___ day of October, 2015, by the following vote: 

 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:   

NOT VOTING:            

       _______________________________                                                                     

           GREG BOLIN, Mayor   

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

    

________________________________                 ________________________________                      

JOANNA GUTIERREZ, Town Clerk  DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney  

120



1 
 

10-5-15 
EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 

 
 This Agreement is made on _____________, 2015 by and between Town of Paradise 
(“Town”) and M. C. Horning, Jr. 
 
 Town and M. C. Horning, Jr. agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1.  EXCHANGE 
 

Mutual Conveyances 
 

  1.01.   Town agrees to convey to MC Horning, Jr. that certain real property located in the 
Town of Paradise, County of Butte, State of California (“Parcel A”) and described in Exhibit 
A, which is attached to this Agreement and hereby incorporated by reference.  M.C. 
Horning, Jr. agrees to convey to Town that certain property located in the Town of 
Paradise, County of Butte, State of California (“Parcel B”), and described in Exhibit B, which 
is attached to this Agreement and hereby incorporated by reference.  These conveyances 
will be for and in consideration of each other and on the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement.  Parcel B is to be merged with Parcel C, which is described in Exhibit C. 
 

ARTICLE 2.  EXCEPTIONS 
 

Exceptions to Parcel A 
 

  2.01.   Town will convey title to Parcel A to M. C. Horning, Jr. free and clear of all 
encumbrances, covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations, easements, liens for taxes 
and assessments not yet payable, except as follows: ________________________ 
 

Exceptions to Parcel B 
 

  2.02.   M. C. Horning, Jr. will convey title to Parcel B to Town free and clear of all 
encumbrances, covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations, easements, and liens for 
taxes and assessments not yet payable, except as follows: ________________________ 
 

ARTICLE 3.  VALUE OF PROPERTY 
 

Valuation [and Adjustment of Difference in Equities] 
 

  3.01   For purposes of the exchange, (1) Parcel A is deemed to have a fair market value of 
$225,000, with no encumbrances against it and an equity of $225,000, and (2) Parcel B is 
deemed to have a fair market value of $289,500.  The difference in the respective equities 
of Parcel A and Parcel B is $73,500, and will be offset by the Town providing Parcel A and 
Parcel C, with fee waivers relating to plan check and inspection fees for a future project on 
the merged Parcel A and Parcel C; provided the total amount of the fee waivers shall not 
exceed $73,500 in any event. 

121



2 
 

 
3.02 Town shall pay 100 percent of the costs to obtain the lot line adjustments and 
mergers to create Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4.  ESCROW 
 

Opening of Escrow 
 

  4.01.   The exchange of Parcel A and Parcel B will be consummated by means of an escrow, 
which is to be opened with Mid-Valley Title and Escrow Company at 7084 Skyway, 
Paradise, California (“Escrow Holder”) within five days following the execution of this 
Agreement. 
 

Escrow Instructions 
 

  4.02   The escrow instructions given to Escrow Holder must incorporate the terms of, and 
must be consistent with, this Agreement.  Further, the escrow instructions must provide 
that if there is any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the escrow 
instructions, the terms of this Agreement will control. 
 
   The escrow instructions must also provide that Escrow Holder will concurrently record 
Town’s grant deed to Parcel A to M. C. Horning, Jr. and M. C. Horning, Jr.’s grant deed to 
Parcel B to Town, when the following apply: 
 
 (1) Escrow Holder can obtain the usual form C.L.T.A. standard coverage 
  policy of title insurance issued by First American Title Company with  
  liability not exceeding $225,000, showing title to Parcel A vested in   
  M. C. Horning, Jr. (or M. C. Horning, Jr.’s nominee), subject only to 
  ___________________. 
 
 (2) Escrow Holder can obtain the usual form C.L.T.A. standard coverage 
  policy of title insurance issued by First American Title Company, 
  with liability not exceeding $289,500, showing title to Parcel B vested in  
  Town, subject only to _______________. 
 

Close of Escrow 
 

  4.02.   Unless extended in accordance with this Agreement, the escrow must close on or 
before November ___, 2015 (the “close of escrow”).  If the escrow cannot close by title to 
Parcel A passing to M. C. Horning, Jr. and title to Parcel B passing to Town on or before that 
date, for any reason, the escrow will be automatically terminated and the Escrow Holder 
will upon demand of either party return all funds and documents deposited in the escrow 
to the party depositing them. 
 

 

122



3 
 

ARTICLE 5.  CONDITIONS TO CLOSING 
 

Conditions 
 

  5.01.   The enforceability of this Agreement and the closing of the escrow provided for in 
this Agreement are contingent upon the following: 
 
 
 (1) The performance by each party of all matters required to be performed by  
  that party under this Agreement 
 
 (2) Parcel A requires a lot line adjustment with Parcel C and survey to locate the  
  centerline of the drainage draw as the new eastern boundary of Parcel A and  
  shall be approved by Town before it can be conveyed to M. C. Horning, Jr. 
 
 (3) Parcel B requires a lot line adjustment and survey to locate the  existing fence 
  line east of the building.  The lot line adjustment  shall be between Parcels A  
  and B and a merger between the remainder of Parcel B with Parcel C  in  
  compliance with Paradise Municipal Code Chapter 16.13 and Government  
  Code Section 66451.11. 
  
 (4) American Way is a Town public roadway pursuant to Paradise  Municipal  
  Code Section 16.09.010 – Dedication of Streets, Alleys and Other Public  
  Rights-of Way/Easements.  
 
 (5) To the extent permitted by law, any future extension of American Way  
  benefiting Parcel C along the centerline of the private easement shown in  
  Exhibit D, Town shall not require it to be developed beyond a 30’ total width  
  on the north half of such easement. 
 

ARTICLE 6.  TITLE INSURANCE 
 

Policies 
 

6.01.   At the close of escrow, M. C. Horning, Jr. will be entitled to receive from First 
American Title Company its usual form C.L.T.A. standard coverage policy of the title 
insurance in the amount of $225,000, showing title to Parcel A vested in M. C. Horning, Jr. 
free and clear of all matters except those matters stated in Paragraph 2.01 of this 
Agreement; and Town will be entitled to receive from First American Title Company its 
usual form C.L.T.A. standard coverage policy of title insurance in the amount of $289,500, 
showing title to Parcel B vested in Town free and clear of all matters except those matters 
stated in Paragraph 2.02 of this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 

123



4 
 

ARTICLE 7.  DEPOSITS 
 

Required Deposits 
 
7.01.   Each party must deposit into the escrow provided for in this Agreement all funds and 
instruments required by this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 8.  PRORATIONS 
 

Parcel A 
 

  8.01.   The following matters will be prorated for Parcel A to the close of escrow: 
 
 (1) General and special real property taxes, and interests, and 
  assessments for the current fiscal tax year (or all taxes for the  
  fiscal year 2015/2016, a lien but not yet payable); and 
 
 (2) Any insurance, rents and interest on Parcel A. 
 
 

Parcel B 
 

  8.02   The following matters will be prorated for Parcel B to the close of escrow: 
 
 (1) General and special real property taxes, and interests, and 
  assessments for the current fiscal tax year (or all taxes for the  
  fiscal year 2015/2016, a lien but not yet payable); and 
 
 (2) Any insurance, rents and interest on Parcel B 
 

ARTICLE 9.  COSTS 
 

Town 
 

  9.01.   The charges and expenses of the escrow to be borne by Town are as follows: 
 
 (1) One half of the fee of the Escrow Holder for escrow services. 
 
 (2) The cost of a standard policy of title insurance on Parcel B. 
 
 (3) One half of the costs of drafting, processing and surveying the new boundary  
  lines and mergers of Parcels A, B and C. 
 
 (4) Any other costs and expenses that in the opinion of the Escrow Holder  
  are customarily borne by the Town. 
 

124



5 
 

M. C. Horning, Jr. 
 

  9.02.   The charges and expenses of the escrow to be borne by M. C. Horning, Jr. are as 
follows: 
 
 (1) One half of the fee of the Escrow Holder for escrow services. 
 
 (2) The cost of a standard policy of title insurance on Parcel A. 
 
 (3) One half of the costs of drafting, processing and surveying the new boundary  
  lines and mergers of Parcels A, B and C. 
 
 (4) Any other costs and expenses that in the opinion of the Escrow Holder  
  are customarily borne by M. C. Horning, Jr. 
 

 
ARTICLE 10.  DISCLOSURES AND WARRANTIES 

 
  10.01.   Both parties will disclose to the other party all matters required by law about their 
respective parcels. Neither party will warrant the physical condition of the parcel conveyed 
to the other party; provided each party will have thirty (30) days from the date of this 
Agreement to inspect the other’s parcel.  At the end of such thirty (30) days, either party 
may elect to terminate this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 11.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Time of Essence 
 

  11.01.   Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 

 
Notice 

 
  11.02.   Any notice to be given or other document to be delivered to either party by the 
other under this Agreement may be delivered in person or may be deposited in the United 
States mail in the State of California, duly registered or certified, with postage prepaid, and 
addressed as follows: 
 
To  Town of Paradise 
 Town Manager 
 5555 Skyway 
 Paradise, CA  95969 
 
To: M. C. Horning, Jr. 
 ________________________________ 
 Paradise, CA  95969 

125



6 
 

 
   Either party may, from time to time, by written notice to the other, designate a different 
address that will be substituted for the one specified above.  If any notice or other 
document must be sent by certified mail as specified above, it will be deemed to have been 
effectively served or delivered at the expiration of 24 hours following the deposit of the 
notice in the United States mail in the manner set forth above. 
 

Assignment 
 

  11.03.   Neither this Agreement, nor any interest in this Agreement, will be assignable by 
either party without the prior written consent of the other.  There are no third party 
beneficiaries to this Agreement. 
 

Governing Law 
 

  11.04.   All questions with respect to the construction of this Agreement, and the rights 
and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement, will be governed by the laws of the State of 
California. 
 

Inurement 
 

  11.05.   Subject to the restrictions against assignment contained in this Agreement, this 
Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and will be binding upon, the assigns, successors in 
interest, personal representatives, estates, heirs, and legatees of each of the parties. 
 

Attorneys’ Fees 
 

  11.06.   In the event of any controversy, claim, or dispute between the parties, arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement or the breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party will 
be entitled to recover from the other party reasonable expenses, attorneys’ fees, and costs. 
 

Entire Agreement 
 

  11.07.   This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and supersedes any 
prior written or oral agreements between them concerning the subject matter contained in 
this Agreement. There are no representations, agreements, arrangements, or 
understandings, oral or written, between the parties, relating to the subject matter 
contained in this Agreement that are not fully expressed in this Agreement. Any 
modification of this Agreement must be in writing and mutually agreed by the parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

126



7 
 

 
Executed on _____________, 2015 at Paradise, California 
 
 
TOWN OF PARADISE     M. C. HORNING, JR. 
 
 
By: ____________________________________   By: _______________________________________ 
        Lauren M. Gill, Town Manager 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 
      Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

127



American Way Property Exchange Agreement – Subject Parcels

Parcel A – Town of Paradise
Parcel B – MC Horning
Parcel C – MC Horning

128



American Way Property Exchange Agreement – Final Parcels

Town of 
Paradise

MC Horning

Attachment 3

129



    TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: October 13, 2015 
 

Agenda No. 7(d) 
ORIGINATED BY: Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager  
                                                 
SUBJECT:                 Conduct of Council Meetings - Amending Resolution No. 11-48 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  Approve the staff recommendation to streamline the 
meeting process and approve the following changes to Council’s meeting procedure:    
 
(1)  Reformat the agenda cover page to clarify meeting procedure;  
 
(2)  Change order of business – Section XIII 
 a. Eliminate the deferred item section 
 b.     Add a section for items removed from consent calendar 
 c.   Address scheduled business items prior to public communication on non-

 agenda items 
 
(4) Adopt Resolution No. 15-__, A Resolution Amending the Conduct of Council Meetings 
 
Background:  The Town Clerk has observed that the public might be unaware of the 
procedures relating to how the public is to address items on the agenda.  Citizens tend to 
address the staff, rather than the Council, on agenda and non-agenda items, possibly due to the 
proximity of staff to the public seating area.  All questions are to be addressed to the Mayor as 
the presiding chair.  Also, many issues that are brought up under public communication are not 
those that can be resolved by the Town Council and citizens are referred to the town staff 
regarding the issue.   
 
As such, it is recommended that the option for citizens to contact town staff during business 
hours be included on the cover page of the agenda.  It is also recommended that the Council 
change the order of the agenda so that the business items on the agenda are addressed prior to 
non-agenda items. Often questions asked during public communication are subsequently 
answered by staff presentations for agenda items. Currently the public communication section 
for non-agenda items is scheduled after public hearings but before the action calendar.   
 
The Town Council has adopted a resolution that sets forth meeting protocol for the purpose of 
conducting an orderly meeting. If Council is in agreement with the suggested changes, 
Resolution No. 11-48 would be amended to incorporate any changes.  
 
Discussion    The order of the Town meeting is governed by the Town Council members, not 
by state law or other authority.   
 
Fiscal Impact Analysis:  No fiscal impact.   
 
 
 
 130



  Town of Paradise 
Town Council Meeting Agenda 

 

 DATE OF MEETING 
 

                                   Date/Time:    2nd Tuesday of each month at 6:00 p.m. 
                                   Location:       Town Hall Council Chamber, 5555 Skyway, Paradise, CA 
  
   

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Procedures 
 

I. The Mayor is the Presiding Chair and is responsible for maintaining an orderly 
meeting.  The Mayor calls the meeting to order and introduces each item on the 
agenda. 

 
II. The Town staff then provides a report to Council and answers questions from the 

Council.     
 
III. Citizens are encouraged to participate in the meeting process and are provided 

several opportunities to address Council.  Any speaker addressing the Council is 
limited to three minutes per speaker - fifteen minutes per agenda item 

 
A. If you wish to address the Council regarding a specific agenda item, 

please complete a “Request to Address Council” card and give it to the 
Town Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  This process is 
voluntary and allows for citizens to be called to the speaker podium in 
alphabetical order.  Comments and questions from the public must be 
directed to the Presiding Chair and Town Council Members (please do not 
address staff.)  Town staff is available to address citizen concerns Monday 
through Thursday at Town Hall between the hours of 8am and 5pm.   

 
B. If you wish to address Council regarding an item not on the agenda, you 

may do so under Item 6, “Public Communication.” Again, please fill out a 
card and give it to the Town Clerk before the meeting.  State Law prohibits 
Council action on items not listed on a public agenda.   

 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance, persons who 
need special accommodations to participate in the Town Council meeting may contact 
the Town Clerk at least three business days prior to the date of the meeting to provide 

time for any such accommodation. 
 
 
 

Town Manager, Lauren Gill 
Town Attorney, Dwight L. Moore 
Town Clerk, Joanna Gutierrez 
Community Development Director, Craig Baker 
Finance Director/Town Treasurer, Gina Will 
Public Works Director/Town Engineer, Marc Mattox 
Division Chief, CAL FIRE/Paradise Fire, David Hawks 
Chief of Police, Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen 
 

Mayor, Greg Bolin 
Vice Mayor, Jody Jones 
Council Member, Steve “Woody” Culleton 
Council Member, Scott Lotter 
Council Member, John J. Rawlings 

131



3 

 

I. OPENING 
 
  A. Call to order, pledge, invocation 
  B. Presentations/Proclamations/Recognitions 
 
2.  CONSENT CALENDAR   

One roll call vote is taken for all items.  Consent items are considered to be 
routine business that does not call for discussion. 

 
3. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
  For items that require a published legal notice and/or a mailed notice. 
 
  Public Hearing Procedure: 
  A.  Staff Report 
  B.  Mayor opens the hearing for public comment in the following order: 
   i.    Project proponents (in favor of proposal) 
   ii.   Project opponents (against proposal) 
   iii.  Rebuttals – if requested 
  C.  Mayor closes the hearing  
  D.  Council discussion and vote 
 
5.  COUNCIL CONSIDERATION   
 

Action items are presented by staff and the vote of each Council Member must 
be announced.   A roll call vote is taken for each item on the action calendar.  
Citizens are allowed three (3) minutes to comment on agenda items.    

 
6.  PUBLIC COMMUNICATION (Non-Agenda Items) 
 

For matters that are not on the Council business agenda, speakers are allowed 
three (3) minutes to address the Council.  The Town Council is prohibited from 
taking action on matters that are not listed on the public agenda.  The Council 
may briefly respond for clarification and may refer the matter to the Town staff.  

 
7.  COUNCIL INITIATED ITEMS AND REPORTS 
 

Council initiated agenda items 
Council reports on committee representation 
Future Agenda Items 

  
8.  STAFF COMMUNICATION 
 
  Town Manager Report 
  Community Development Director 
 
9.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
10.   ADJOURNMENT 132



 

 

TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO.  15-__ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 

AMENDING AND RESTATING PROCEDURE RELATING TO CONDUCT OF 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to update certain sections of the resolution to 
comply with current procedures and/or law relating to the Conduct of Council meetings, and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Paradise as follows:   

 

1. AGENDA PREPARATION 

 
A. Agenda Deadline. All reports, ordinances, resolutions, contract documents or 

other matters to be submitted to the Council at the scheduled regular meeting on the first 
Tuesday of the month shall posted to the automated agenda system at least ten (10) days 
prior to the regular Town Council meeting. The Town Manager may determine that it is 
imperative that an item not meeting the Agenda deadline be heard by the Council. In such 
case, an Addendum to the Agenda may be prepared, distributed and posted so long as it 
meets the requirements of the applicable sections of the open meetings laws contained in 
Chapter 9 of the California Government Code known as the Brown Act.  

 
B.  Agenda Synopsis. The Town Clerk shall prepare the Agenda of all such matters 

according to the order of business and collate and distribute an Agenda Packet consisting 
of supporting written public information that pertains to matters on the agenda. The Agenda 
shall include a brief description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at 
the Council meeting together with the time and location of said meeting.  Agenda reports 
and supporting information shall be reviewed and approved as necessary by the Town 
Attorney, the Finance Director and the Town Manager, or their respective designees, prior 
to submittal to the Town Clerk.  

 
C. Agenda Availability. Printed copies of the Agenda and Agenda Packet shall be 

available to be picked up or delivered to each Council Member and each department 
director not later than 5:30 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding the scheduled meeting and 
shall be available to the public at 8:00 a.m. on the Thursday preceding the scheduled 
Regular Meeting. 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, agendas and other writings 

distributed for discussion or consideration at public meetings are to be made available for 
public inspection in the Town Clerk Department at the time the writing is distributed to all, or 
a majority of all, of the members of the legislative body.    

 
The Town Clerk utilizes electronic means to make the Agenda and supporting written 

information relating to Agenda items for an open session available on the Town’s Internet 
Website in accordance with Brown Act.   

133



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

2 
 

 
D. Additional Agenda Material. Staff will make every attempt to include all backup 

Agenda material in the packets for distribution. However, on the rare occasion when 
unusual circumstances are unavoidable, staff will provide additional Agenda material no 
later than 12:00 noon on the Monday preceding the Tuesday Regular Meeting.   

 
The Mayor, or Presiding Officer, shall note for the record the submission of additional 

agenda material, the corresponding agenda item number and subject matter, and request 
the concurrence of the Council to accept the additional agenda material.  

 
 

11 AGENDA POSTING 

 
A.  Posting of Agenda. The Agenda shall be posted in a location that is freely 

accessible to members of the public and on the Town’s Internet Website 72 hours before 
the regular meeting. 

 
B. Affidavit of Posting. The Town Clerk or designee shall use a stamped affidavit of 

posting on the Agenda and said Agenda and affidavit of posting shall be retained pursuant 
to the Town’s adopted records retention resolution.  

 

III. NO ACTION UNLESS POSTED 

 
A. No Action Unless Posted. No deliberation or action shall be taken on any item 

not appearing on the posted Agenda unless qualified within one of the three exceptions 
listed within Item IV below. 

 
B. Automatic Referral to Staff. All matters on which action is requested, but which 

does not qualify within one of the three exceptions listed below, shall be directed to the 
Town Manager for analysis. The Town Manager shall place the matter on a subsequent 
Council Agenda if deemed appropriate, or when requested by any Council Member. 

 

IV. NO ACTION UNLESS POSTED – EXCEPTIONS 

 
A. Previously Posted. The Council first determines by a majority vote that the item 

was properly posted for a prior meeting occurring not more than five days prior to the date 
action is proposed to be taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued 
to the meeting at which the action is proposed to be taken. 

 
B. Emergency The Council determines than an emergency situation exists. This 

determination must be made by separate motion and vote. The motion shall specify the 
specific facts on which the Council relies in making the determination. 

 
C. Definition of "Emergency Situation". An "emergency situation: as defined 

by Government Code Section 54956.5, means any of the following: 
 

134



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

3 
 

1 .       Work stoppage or other activity which severely impairs public health, 
safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the members of the 
legislative body. 

 
2.        Crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or 

both, as determined by a majority of the members of the legislative 
body. 

 
D. Need Arose After Posting The Council determines by a two-thirds vote, or by a 

unanimous vote if less than two-thirds of the Council Members are present, that the "need 
to take action" on the item arose subsequent to the posting of the Agenda; 

 
E. Written Justification. Except for Council and staff members, the party proposing 

immediate action shall present written justification to the Council prior to the Council's 
determination, addressing the following criteria: 

 
1.        The likelihood of public input on the item; 
 
2.        Knowledge of the Council's rules; 
 
3.        The date and time the applicant first learned of the facts and 

circumstances creating the need for Council action; and 
 

4.        An analysis of harm that may accrue to the Town, the public, and to  
the applicant if the matter is not addressed at the current meeting, but 
is continued to the next regular meeting. 

 

V. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

A. Agenda Item Required. Every Agenda for regular meetings shall provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Council on items of interest to 
the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council. 

 
B._ Item Already Considered. The Agenda need not provide an opportunity for 

members of the public to address the Council on any item that has already been 
considered by a committee composed exclusively of members of the Council at a public 
meeting wherein all interested members of the public were afforded the opportunity to 
address the committee on the item, unless the item has been substantially changed since 
the committee heard the item, as determined by the Council. 

 
C.  Written Communications. Interested parties or their authorized representatives 

may address the Council by written communication in regard to the subject matter under 
discussion. 

 
D. Oral Presentations. The purpose of oral and written presentations at Council 

meetings is to hear the public expression thereon and to solicit information on facts and 

135



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

4 
 

circumstances not otherwise known. The Council considers that such presentations are 
helpful in arriving at its' decisions. 

 
E. Previous Presentations.  Presentations that are repetitive of previous 

presentations and irrelevant to the issue in question are not helpful and are thus out of 
order. 

 
F. Criticism. Under Government Code Section 54954.3 the public has the right 

during presentations to criticize the Town's policies, procedures, programs or services, 
including acts or omissions of the Council. However, a Council meeting is not a public 
forum for personal attacks or disruptive presentations or demonstrations. 

 
G. Bar Further Audience The Presiding Officer or Council may bar from further 

audience before the Council at a meeting any person who during the meeting: 
 

1.     Engages in the use of profanity or antagonistic behavior; 
2.     Becomes boisterous or disruptive while addressing the Council; 
3.     Speaks without being recognized by the Presiding Officer; or 
4.     Violates any rules of order established by this resolution or the Council 

 
H. Removal - Disorderly Conduct. Any person or persons who engages in 

indecorous or disorderly conduct, such as hand clapping, stamping of feet, whistling, using 
profane language, yelling or similar demonstration which conduct disturbs the peace and 
good order of the meeting, shall, at the request of the Presiding Officer or the Council, be 
removed from the Council chambers. 

 
I. Removal - Disobey Orders. Any person who refuses to comply with the lawful 

orders of the Presiding Officer shall, at the request of the Presiding Officer or the Council, 
be removed from the Council Chamber by the Sergeant-at-Arms. 

 
J. Ruling of Chair - Appeal The ruling of the Presiding Officer to bar from further 

audience at that meeting shall be final and conclusive, subject only to the right of appeal 
by any Council Member to the entire Council. 

 
K. Oral Presentation - Matters on the Agenda. 
 

1.  Order. The public shall have the opportunity to address each item placed 
on the Agenda after each agenda item has been called, introduced for 
discussion with staff members, consultants, or applicants, and any 
presentations made with reference to the agenda item. 

 
2.        Written Request Encouraged  Each person wishing to be recognized 
and to speak on any listed agenda item may  complete a written request and 
submit it to the Town Clerk prior to the beginning of the scheduled Council 
meeting. The Town of Paradise shall provide the request form. Each person 
shall state his/her name and it is requested that they provide their address and 

136



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

5 
 

specify which agenda item he/she wishes to discuss and give an estimate of 
how long the presentation will last. Persons who have not submitted written 
requested may be allowed to speak as time permits, at the discretion of the 
Council. 

 
3.       Time. Each agenda item shall be allotted a total of 15 minutes during 
which public discussion may take place, unless additional time is allowed by a 
majority of the Council. If there are numerous speakers, they will have to 
divide the 15 minutes among the speakers, with a maximum of 3 minutes per 
speaker. Speakers on a given item may yield their time to another speaker on 
the same item with the approval of the Council; but total time shall not exceed 
15 minutes or such additional time as a majority of the Council may allow. 

 
L.  Oral Presentation - Matters Not on Agenda 
 

1. Public Communications. Each Council Agenda shall contain a public 
communication section where the public shall be given an opportunity to 
speak to the Council on items of interest to the public which are not listed on 
the Agenda for discussion or action. 
 

2. Time.  A person speaking shall be required to limit his/her total time as 
to all subjects in an aggregate of three (3) minutes unless additional time is 
granted by a majority of the Town Council. If more time is necessary the 
item should be requested to be placed on a future Agenda for Council 
consideration. 

 

VI. ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL – PROCEDURE 
 

A. Recognition.  No person shall address the Council unless he/she has been first 
recognized by the Presiding Officer. 

 
B.  Podium.  All speakers shall make their remarks from the podium. 
 
C. Speaker Identification. The speakers shall first identify themselves by name and 

it is requested that they state their address and any parties they represent before making 
their comments. 

 
 D.  Subject Matter.  The speaker's comments shall be limited to the matter 
which is pending before the Council. 
 

E.  Public Communication to the Council. The purpose of public communication is 

to inform the Council. Therefore, all remarks shall be made to the Council as a whole and 
not to individual members. Questions to individual Council Members and individual staff 
members should be addressed to those persons during time when Council is not in 
session. 

 

137



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

6 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS PROCEDURE  
 

A.  Time.  Public Hearings shall be divided into four major sections: (1) Staff reports 
for a total of 15 minutes maximum; (2) Proponents presentation for a total of 15 minutes 
maximum; (3) Opponents presentations for a total of 15minutes maximum; and (4) Rebuttals 
(if requested) for a total of 15 minutes maximum or 3 minutes maximum per speaker. If there 
are numerous speakers for any of the four sections, they will have to divide the 15 minutes 
total maximum among the speakers. Additional time may be granted by a majority of the 
Council. 

 
B. Spokesperson for a Group/Committee. In order to expedite matters and avoid 

repetitious presentations, whenever a group of persons wish to address the Council on the 
same subject matter the Presiding Officer shall inquire whether or not the group has a 
spokesperson and, if so, that he/she be heard. Speakers from the group, following such 
spokesperson, shall be limited to facts not presented by the group spokesperson. 

 
C. Evidence -Received.  After the agenda item has been called and introduced, the 

Council shall receive all oral and written staff reports, reports of consultants to the staff 
presentations by applicants and their consultants relative to the matter being considered. 
The rules of evidence shall be substantially relaxed in order to afford full presentation of 
facts essential for judicious consideration on the matter which is the subject of the public 
hearing. 

 
D. Written Material.  Written material for Public Hearings to be submitted by either 

proponents or opponents shall be delivered to the Town Clerk by noon on the business day 
preceding the hearing with copies provided for the Town Manager, Town Attorney, Town 
Council and one copy for Public Viewing 

 
E. Unreviewed Written Materials.  Written materials presented to the Council for the 

first time at or immediately prior to the public hearing, which have not been previously 
reviewed by staff or Council, may be accepted into evidence at the discretion of the Council. 
Sufficient copies should be made for each Council Member, the Town Manager, Town 
Attorney, Town Clerk and at least one extra copy for public viewing/the press. 

 
F. Closing. When the presentation of evidence has been completed, or when in the 

opinion of the Presiding Officer or the majority of the Council, sufficient evidence has been 
presented, the Presiding Officer shall order the public hearing closed and no further 
evidence shall be accepted or heard. 

G. Reopening. A public hearing on any matter, once closed, cannot be reopened 

on the date set for hearing unless by a 4/5 vote of the Council. Nothing herein, however, is 
intended to prevent or prohibit the reopening of public hearing at any subsequent, regular 
or special meeting of the Council. No public hearing may be reopened without the same 
notice as required for the original public hearing.   

 

138



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

7 
 

H.  Continuance. If at any time it appears to the Presiding Officer or the majority of 
the Council, that inadequate evidence has been presented to afford judicious consideration 
of any matter before the Council, continuation of such hearing may be ordered to afford the 
applicant, his/her opponents, or the Town staff, adequate time to assemble additional 
evidence for the Council's consideration. A continuance may also be granted for matters 
covered by, and in conformance with, Section XVII(I) of this resolution. 

 
I.  Date of Continuance. Any continuation shall be to a date certain, which date shall 

be publicly announced and shall constitute notice to all parties and to the public that such 
further evidence will be taken at the time and place specified. 

 
 

IX. QUORUM 

 
A. Quorum. Three (3) members of the Council shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of business. 
 
B. Deferral/Conflict of Interest. Where there is no quorum, the Mayor, Vice-Mayor or 

any member of the Council may adjourn or if no member of the Council is present, the Town 

Clerk shall adjourn such meeting. For the purpose of considering any item which is subject 

to the vote of the Council, when a member disqualifies himself/herself due to conflict of 
interest, his/her presence shall not be considered in determining the presence of a quorum. 
If by such disqualification a quorum of voting Council Members does not remain, 
consideration of such items shall be deferred until a quorum of Council Members who have 
no conflict are present to discuss and vote on the matter. 

 

X MEETINGS TO BE PUBLIC 

 
A. Open to the Public.  All regular and special meetings and study session of the 

Council shall be open to the public. The Council may hold closed sessions in the manner 
and form provided by law for such closed sessions. 

 

XI. CLOSED SESSIONS 

 
A. Non-disclosure.  No member of the Council, employee of the Town or persons 

present during a closed session of the Council shall disclose to any person the content or 
substance of any confidential discussion which took place during said closed session, 
unless the Council votes to authorize disclosure of such information by a majority vote. 

 
XII. PRESIDING OFFICER 

 
A. Chairing Meeting.  The Mayor, or in his/her absence, the Vice-Mayor, shall take 

the chair at the hour appointed for the meeting and shall call the meeting to order. In the 
absence of the Mayor and the Vice-Mayor, the Town Clerk or his/her assistant shall call the 
Council to order, whereupon a Temporary Chairman shall be selected by the Council 

139



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

8 
 

Members present. Upon the arrival of the Mayor or the Vice-Mayor, as the case may be, the 
person who is then presiding shall relinquish the chair at the conclusion of the business 
then before the Council. 
 

B. Presiding Officers Duties.  The Presiding Officer shall preserve strict order and 
decorum at all Council meetings, state questions coming before the Council, announce its 
decision on all subjects and decide all questions or order; subject, however, to appeal by 
any Council Member as provided herein. 

 
The Presiding Officer may make motions, debate and vote on all questions and on 

RolI Call his/her name should be called last. 
 
C. Public Debate.  The Presiding Officer controls public debate so that repetitive or 

irrelevant statements are not made, so that where public participation is in order, everyone 
will have a chance to speak before other persons have a second chance to speak, to 
expedite business at hand and to prevent Council meetings from being used as a forum for 
libel, slander or otherwise defamation of persons under the cloak of the "public privilege." 

 
D, Signing Documents.  The Mayor shall sign all ordinances and resolutions adopted 

and contracts approved by the Council at meetings at which he/she is in attendance. In the 
event of his/her absence, the Vice-Mayor shall sign such documents. In the absence of the 
Mayor and the Vice-Mayor, the Temporary Chairman shall sign such documents. 

 

XIII. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 A. Order of Business.  All regular meetings of the Council shall take up for 
consideration and disposition matters in substantially the following order, except as may 
otherwise be agreed by a majority of the Council: 

 
1 – Opening 
 

a.       Call to Order 
b.       Flag Salute 
c.       Invocation 
d.       RolI Call 

   e.       Introductions, Proclamations, Presentations 
 

2. Consent Calendar 
 
3.  Items Removed from Consent Calendar 
 
4. Public Hearings – Procedure on Cover Page 
 
5.  Council Consideration 
 
6. Public Communication 

140



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

9 
 

 
This is the time for members of the audience who have completed a 
"Request to Address Council" card and given it to the Clerk to present items 
not on the Agenda. Comments should be limited to a maximum of three (3) 
minutes duration. The Town Council is prohibited by State Law from taking 
action on any item presented if it is not listed on the Agenda. 
 

(A total of 30 minutes maximum will be allotted for this Agenda Item. Each 
speaker will be allowed a maximum of 3 minutes each, with the total time of 30 
minutes divided between all speakers if there are more than ten.) 
 
7.     Council Communication/Initiatives 
 
8.     Staff/Commission/Committee Communication 
 
9.     Closed Session 
 
10.    Adjournment 
 

B.   Directory.  The provisions of this section shall be directory and not mandatory. 
 
 

XIV. ROLL CALL 

 
A.  RolI Call.  Before proceeding with the business of the Council, the Town Clerk 

shall call the roll of the members and the name of those present shall be entered in the 
minutes. 

 

XV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
A.  Consent Calendar.  Actions recommended by the staff or the Mayor to be listed in 

a Consent Calendar shall be listed in a summary form. 
 

B.  Reading of Resolutions/Ordinances.  Each ordinance and resolution by reference 
on the written agenda is deemed to have been read by title only.  

 
C. Adoption of Consent Calendar.  The adoption of the Consent Calendar may be 

made in one motion by the Council; provided, however, that any Council Member may 
request that the Council defer action on any matters on the Consent Calendar and place 
it/them on the regular agenda. In such event, the Presiding Officer shall order that such 
matter (except for reading by title only as set forth in this section, unless a full reading is 
specifically requested) be removed from the said Consent Calendar and be placed for 
Council consideration. 

 
D.  All Items Adopted.  Adoption of the Consent Calendar and approval of the same 

shall constitute an affirmative vote for each and every item contained thereon. 
 

141



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

10 
 

E. Adopted by RolI Call.  The Consent Calendar shall be adopted only by roll call. 
 
 
 

XVI. RULES OF DEBATE 

 

A. Rules of Debate.  The Presiding Officer may move, second and debate from the 

chair, subject only to such limitations of debate as are by these rules imposed on all 
Council Members, and shall not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges of a Council 
Member by reason of his/her acting as the Presiding Officer. 

 
B. Robert's Rules of Order.  Except as otherwise provided in this resolution or 

provided by law, Robert's Rules of Order, Revised shall govern the conduct of regular 
meetings of the Council. 

 
C.  Objections to Informal Procedures.   Objections to the use of informal procedures 

by the Council or the failure of the Council to act strictly in accordance with Robert's Rules of 
Order shall be deemed waived by all Council Members, unless a Council Member express 
his/her objections at the time when such procedure is used. 

 
D. Taking Matters Out of Order.  The Presiding Officer may at any time, by consent of 

a majority of the Council, permit a member to introduce an ordinance, matter, resolution or 
motion out of the regular Agenda order. 

 
E. Dividing Issues.  If a matter contains two or more divisible propositions, the 

Presiding Officer may, and upon the request of a Council Member shall, unless appealed, 
divide the same. 

 

F. Points of Order.  The Presiding Officer shall determine all points of order subject 

to the right of any Council Member to appeal and request full Council ruling on the question. 
In the event of an appeal, the questions shall be: "Shall the decision of the Presiding Officer 
be sustained?" The majority vote shall conclusively determine such question of order. 

 
G. Point of Personal Privilege.  The right of a Council Member to address the Council 

on a question of personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which his/her integrity, 
character or motives are questions, or where the welfare of the Council is concerned. 

 
H. Gaining the Floor.  Every Council Member desiring to speak shall first address the 

chair and gain recognition by the Presiding Officer. Such member shall confine 
himself/herself to the question under debate, avoiding reference to character and 
indecorous language. 

 
I.   Interruptions of a Council Member.  A Council Member, once recognized, shall not 

be interrupted while speaking, unless called to order by the Presiding Officer, or unless a 
point of order or personal privilege is raised by another Council Member, or unless the 
speaker chooses to yield to a question by another Council Member. If a Council Member, 

142



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

11 
 

while speaking, is called to order, he/she shall cease speaking until the question of order is 
determine and, if determined to be in order, he/she may proceed. A Council Member, when 
speaking, shall speak to the subject matter of the item on the floor, and shall keep his/her 
remarks to a reasonable length. If a Council Member fails to do so, he/she may be called to 
order by a point of order. 
 

Members of the Town staff, after recognition by the Presiding Officer, shall hold the 
floor until completion of their remarks or until recognition is withdrawn by the Presiding 
Officer. 

J. Propriety of Conduct - Council.  Members of the Council must observe order and 
decorum and shall not by conversation otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings of the 
Council or in any way make or disturb any other member of the Council while speaking, or 
refuse to obey the orders of the Council or the Presiding Officer, except as in this resolution 
otherwise provided. 

 

XVII. VOTING 

 
A.  Passage of Motion. The passage of every motion shall be by roll call and entered 

in full upon the record. 

B. Roll Call Vote Required.  All ordinances, resolutions granting a franchise, and 

resolutions and orders for the payment of money shall be by roll call vote. Any member of 
the Council may demand a roll call vote on any matter before the Council. 

 
C.  Explanation of Vote.   It shall not be in order for any Council Member to explain 

their vote during the roll call, except in conformance with Section XVIII below. 
 
D.  Disqualification. Every member should vote unless disqualified for cause, but no 

Council Member shall be forced to vote. 
 
E.  Tie Votes. Tie votes shall be lost motions and result in a rejection of the matter 

voted upon. 
 
F.  Change of Vote. After the roll call has been completed but before the result of the 

vote is announced, a member may change his/her vote. A member may not change his/her 
vote after the vote has been announced unless a majority consent is obtained. 

 
G. Failure to Vote. A Council Member who is silent, or inattentive, or fails to vote 

without stating his/her abstention or without being disqualified, shall be deemed to have 
cast a "yes" vote. 

 
H. Conflict of Interest. A Council Member who is disqualified by reason of conflict of 

interest shall be recorded as "absent" and a Council Member who states he/she is 
abstaining shall be recorded as "not voting." 

 

143



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

12 
 

1. Appeals from Planning Commission Actions.  With regard to any matter that comes 
before the Town Council on appeal from determinations or actions taken by the Planning 
Commission, at least three (3) affirmative votes shall be required to uphold any appeal from 
said determinations or actions. Failure to obtain three (3) affirmative votes shall constitute 
rejections of any such appeal. 

 
In the event that there is less than a full Council present and qualified to vote on any 

appeal from Planning Commission determinations or actions, the appellant may continue 
the public hearing and the Town Council's determination on the appeal until a date certain 
when a full Council is expected to be available to hear and vote on said appeal. The 
appellant is required to exercise his/her said option to continue prior to the opening of the 
public hearing on the appeal and prior to any vote or action being taken by the Town 
Council on the appeal. In the event the appellant chooses to have the matter heard and 
decided by less than a full Council, the action taken by the Town Council on the appeal at 
the meeting at which the appeal is heard shall be considered final. Any continuances 
granted pursuant to this section shall conform to the provisions of Section VIII of this 
resolution. 

 

XVIII. RIGHT TO RECORD REASONS FOR VOTE 

 
A. Reasons Entered into the Minutes. Any Council member shall have the right to 

have the reasons for his/her vote on any action before the Council entered in the minutes. 
Such statement shall be made in substantially the following manner: "I would like the 
minutes to show that I favor/oppose this action for the following reasons..." 

 

XIX.  RECONSIDERATION 

 
A. Motion to Reconsider.  A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Council 

may be made only at the meeting when such action was taken. It may be made either 
immediately during the same session, or a recessed or adjourned session thereof. Such a 
motion to reconsider shall be made only by one of the Council Members who voted with the 
prevailing side. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent any Council member from 
making or remaking the same or another motion at a subsequent meeting of the Council. 

 

XX.  ENFORCEMENT OF ORDER 

 
A. Sergeant-At-Arms.  The Chief of Police is designated as Sergeant-at-Arms of the 

Council and shall carry out all orders by the Presiding Officer for the purpose of maintaining 
order at the Council meeting. In the absence of the Chief of Police or any member of the 
Police Department, the Presiding Officer may designate any person to act as 
Sergeant-at-Arms. 

 
B. Enforcement of Rules.  Any Council Member may move to require the Presiding 

Officer to enforce these rules. An affirmative vote of the majority of the Council shall require 
the Presiding Officer to enforce said rules. 

 

144



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

13 
 

 
 
 

XXI. PROCEDURAL RULES - VIOLATION SHALL NOT INVALIDATE 

 
A. Substantial Compliance.  Insofar as practicable, the business of the Council shall 

be conducted substantially in the order and the manner provided in this resolution. 
However, the failure to observe or enforce such procedural rules shall in no manner affect 
the regularity, validity or legality of any action or proceeding taken by the Council. The 
Council, in its discretion, reserves the right to govern its own proceedings. 

 

XXII. TESTIMONY UNDER OATH 

 
A. Testimony Under Oath.  The Presiding Officer may require any person addressing the 
Council to be sworn as a witness and testify under oath. The Presiding Officer shall require 
a witness to be sworn if directed to do so by a majority of the Council. 

 

XXIII. MINUTES OF COUNCIL 

 
A. Minutes. The official minutes of the Town Council will be kept by the Town 

Clerk in the Minute Book, with the record of each particular type of business transacted set 
off in the paragraph with the proper subheads. 

 
B. Record Business Passed by Council.  The Clerk shall be required to make a 

record only of such business actually passed upon by the Council, and shall not be required 
to record the remarks of any member of the Council or any other person, except as 
specifically provided by this resolution. 

 
 C. Persons Addressing Council.  The names and addresses (if volunteered) of 
persons addressing the Council and the subject matter of their remarks shall be entered in 
the minutes. 
 
 D.  Directory.   The provisions of this section shall be directory and not mandatory. 
 

XIV.    INVESTIGATIONS AND HEARINGS 

 
 A.  Investigations and Hearings.  The Council shall have the discretionary right to 
make investigations and hold hearings with respect to all matters within its legislative power 
and all matters pertaining to the administration of the business of the Town. 
 
 B.  Power of Subpoena.   The Council shall have the power of subpoena as provided 
in Sections 37104 and 37109 of the Government Code.  The Council may order the Clerk 
and the Chief of Police or his/her representative to issue subpoenas for any witnesses or 
records necessary for the production of evidence at any duly scheduled  meeting of the 
Council. 
 

145



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

14 
 

XV.     SMOKING AT MEETINGS 
 
 A.  Smoking.   No person shall smoke any cigarette, e-cigarette, vapor device, cigar or 
pipe during any meeting of the Town Council. 
 

XVI.     ADJOURNMENT 

 
 A.  Time of Adjournment.   It shall be the policy of the Town Council to adjourn its 
meetings at or before 11:00 p.m.  If the Council has not completed all items of the Agenda by 
11:00 p.m., the Council, shall, at that time, either (1) waive the adjournment hour by formal 
motion; or (2) determine a future date(s) and time(s) at which the remaining Agenda items 
will be heard.  Violation of this section shall not invalidate the action taken. 

146



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
Relating to the Conduct of Council Meetings 

15 
 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise on 
this  __ day of ________, 2015, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSENT:   
 

NOT VOTING:  
 

 
     ___________________________ 

Attest:        Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 

_____________________________ 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

147



1 
 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: October 13, 2015 
Agenda Item: 7e 

 
 
Originated by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 

  
Subject: 
 

Regional branding theme for Butte County 
 
 

 
Council Action Requested: 
 

1. Consider adopting a logo that coordinates with the Butte County branding theme. 
 

Background: 
 
 
Butte County recently formed a local design team consisting of business, tourism and 
government to create a brand that represents the best aspects of the region.  They 
hired the design firm of MC2 to assist in the project.  The result of their efforts was a 
simple yet elegant graphic that captures the essence of the County.  The County then 
extended an invitation to all Butte County cities to join a county-wide branding effort and 
utilize their design, at no cost to the cities, as a basis for developing a family of logos 
that could be used to bring visibility to the various attributes of the region to promote 
tourism, business, etc. The Butte County logo can be seen at the bottom of this agenda 
summary report. 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
 
Since the Town of Paradise recently joined with the County and other cities to form a 
Tourism Business Improvement District (TBID), staff felt this would be an excellent 
opportunity to consider participating in a regional branding effort as well.  The benefits 
of a regional branding theme would be much more effective than an individual effort.  
 
Marc Mattox, our Town Engineer is being given the credit for making a few 
modifications to the Butte County logo and creating a graphic that is currently being 
used for our TOP Access Mobile App.  The graphic can be viewed at the bottom of this 
agenda summary report.  Council may elect to use this graphic as a brand for the Town.  
The Town currently has an official seal, which would continue to be used for official 
Town business, as well as a flag design that represents our Town.  The logo, if adopted 
by Council, would be used as a regional branding tool. 
 

148



2 
 

 

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 
 
There is no impact to the general fund.  The logo was created by staff, using the Butte 
County logo with their permission. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

149


	Top
	(1) 10/13/15 1e Introduce Police Canine - Taz
	(2) 10/13/15 1e Proclamation - DVAM
	1e catalyst proc.pdf

	(3) 10/13/15 1e Recognition of Kelly Wells for MCOC
	1e Kelly Wells for Measure C.doc

	(4) 10/13/15 1e Sewer Line Presentation - CM Jones
	(5) 10/13/15 1e TOP Access Demonstration
	3a. 10/13/15 3a Minutes of 9/8/15
	3a_min_090815.docx

	3b. 10/13/15 3b Cash Disbursements
	3b Cash Disbursements 101315.pdf

	3c. 10/13/15 3c Adopt Ord. 557 - Expedite Solar
	3c Agenda summary Solar Ordinance - 2nd rdg.docx
	3c Solar Ordinance.docx
	3c Solar PV Submittal Checklist.pdf

	3d. 10/13/15 3d Adopt Res 15-40 OTS AVOID Grant Funds
	3d Agenda Summary AVOID grant funds 2015-16.doc
	3d AVOID resolution 2015.doc
	3d AVOID grant fund letter of approval 2015.pdf

	3e. 10/13/15 3e Temporary Public Works Maintenance Worker Recruitment
	3e Staff Report - Temporary SMW II.doc

	3f. 10/13/15 3f Adopt Res 15-41, AB109 Funds
	3f Agenda Summary AB109 october 2015.doc
	3f Reso AB109  October 2015.doc
	3f MOU AB109  FY 15-16.docx

	3g. 10/13/15 3g Adopt Res 15-42, Records Disposition (Town Clerk)
	3g101315 Records Agenda Summary.doc
	3g101315 Records Resolution - Ex A.docx
	3g 101315 Records Resolution - Ex B.doc

	3h. 10/13/15 3h Adopt Res 15-43 Skyway Guardrail Emergency
	3h Agenda Summary - Guardrail Repair.doc
	3h Resolution - Accept Project.doc

	3i. 10/13/15 3i Police Dept. Emergency Siding Project Update
	3i Agenda Summary  - PPD Siding Repair.doc
	3i Exhibit A - 1517 - Contract Agreement dated 092815.pdf

	7a. 10/13/15 7a Appoint Alternate to Vacant Position on MCOC
	7a Measure C Vacancy.doc

	7b. 10/13/15 7b Budget Update
	7b Agenda Summary - budget status 101315.docx
	7b 1010 - 101315.pdf
	7b 2030 - 101315.pdf
	7b 2070 - 101315.pdf
	7b 2120 - 101315.pdf

	7c. 10/13/15 7c American Way Property Exchange Agreement
	7c Staff Report - Property Exchange.doc
	Resolution - Exchange Agreement .doc
	Exchange Agreement-TOP and Horning 10-5-15 (002).doc
	American Way - Subject Parcels.pdf
	American Way - Final Parcels.pdf

	7d. 10/13/15 7d Adopt Res 15-__ Conduct of Council Meetings 
	7d Conduct of Meetings.docx
	7d Resolution - Conduct of Council.doc

	7e. 10/13/15 7e Consider Adopting Marketing Logo
	7e_Logo_Agenda_Summary.doc

	10a. 10/13/15 10a CS - Braun &amp; Funk
	Bottom

